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Corporate Information
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DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Hsu Feng (Chairman and Managing Director)
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183 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong
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PRINCIPAL BANKERS

China CITIC Bank International Limited
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Global Law Office

Zhong Lun Law Firm

Woo Kwan Lee & Lo

Vincent T.K. Cheung, Yap & Co.

SHARE LISTING

The Company’s shares are listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

Stock Code: 258

INVESTOR RELATIONS

Please write to the Company
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by fax at (852) 2845-0341 or
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Website:  http://www.tomson.com.hk
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Management Discussion and Analysis

GENERAL OVERVIEW

The Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”) is
pleased to present the audited consolidated annual results of
the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for
the year ended 31st December, 2020 and reports a consolidated
profit after taxation attributable to sharcholders of the Company
of HK$174,993,000 (2019: HK$172,513,000). Basic earnings per
share amounted to 8.88 HK cents (2019: 8.59 HK cents).

There was a slight increase in the gross proceeds from property
development and investment business for the year under review,
however, the segment profic was reduced to HK$268,854,000
(2019: HK$342,666,000) owing to higher cost of sales and selling
expenses as well as a loss on fair value changes of the investment
properties. Unlike the case in the corresponding period in
2019, an unrealized loss on fair value changes of the investment
properties of the Group in Shanghai, the People’s Republic of
China (“China”) of HK$12,329,000 was recorded for the year
2020 (2019: gain of HK$17,226,000) upon market valuation as at

year end pursuant to applicable accounting standards.

Dividend receipts from the listed and unlisted long-term equity
investments of the Group amounted to HK$26,046,000 for the
year under review (2019: HK$27,134,000).

During the year 2020, there were increases in the interest income
and net exchange gain recognized while the administrative
expenses and finance costs were reduced. As a result, excluding
the changes in revaluation of the investment properties, the Group
reported an operating profit before taxation of HK$419,044,000
for the year under review (2019: HK$357,195,000).

DIVIDEND

The Board has declared an interim dividend of 5.50 HK cents
per share for the year ended 31st December, 2020 (2019: 11 HK
cents per share) payable to the shareholders whose names appear
on the register of members of the Company on Thursday, 10th
June, 2021. The dividend is payable in cash and dividend warrants
are expected to be despatched on Tuesday, 22nd June, 2021.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B LI Wt B o Bt

OPERATIONS REVIEW

The Mainland of China, particularly Shanghai, is the principal

base of the Group’s operations.

For the year ended 31st December, 2020, the property
development and trading segment was the Group’s primary profit
maker by contributing a segment profit of HK$139,885,000
(2019: HK$189,344,000) which was attributable to the sales of
properties in Shanghai and the Macao Special Administrative

Region (“Macau”) of China.

The property investment segment was the secondary profit
contributor of the Group and this generated a segment profit of
HK$128,969,000 (2019: HK$153,322,000), which was derived
from the recurrent rental and management income from the
investment properties of the Group in Shanghai, however, it was
partly offset by the unrealized loss on fair value changes of these

investment properties upon revaluation at year end.

The other business segments of the Group reported losses during

the year under review.

Property Development and Investment

Property development and investment in Shanghai and Macau
remained the core business and the principal source of profit of the
Group for the year ended 31st December, 2020 by contributing
a total profit of HK$268,854,000 (2019: HK$342,666,000).
Tomson Riviera was the prime source of operating profit of the

Group.

This business segment generated total revenue of HK$884,035,000
which accounted for approximately 94.42% of the gross proceeds
from operations of the Group for the year 2020. There was an
improvement in the revenue which was mainly attributable to the
sale proceeds recognized. Projects in Pudong of Shanghai were
the primary source of revenue and accounted for approximately
90.80% of the gross proceeds from operations of the Group
whereas the project in Macau accounted for approximately
3.62%. However, an unrealized loss on fair value changes
of the investment properties of the Group in Shanghai of
HK$12,329,000 was recorded at the year-end date.
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Tomson Riviera, Shanghai

Tomson Riviera is a notable high-rise residential development along
the riverfront of Lujiazui of Pudong and right opposite the Bund.
There are four residential towers, and in order to maximize the
return on investment, two residential towers are earmarked for sale
while the other two towers are for leasing.

As at 31st December, 2020, the total residential gross floor area
available for sale of Towers A and C was approximately 5,000
square meters while of the total residential gross floor area of
Towers B and D of approximately 58,400 square meters, about
69% were leased.

TOMSON RIVIERA
B W

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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For the year 2020, Tomson Riviera recognized total revenue of
HK$709.43 million and this accounted for approximately 75.77%
of the gross proceeds from operations of the Group. The revenue
was principally attributable to sale proceeds with the rest derived
from rental income and management fee. In addition, sale deposits
of HK$46.51 million have been received by the Group and such
amount is expected to be recognized in 2021 upon delivery of
the properties to the buyers. However, the Group recorded an
unrealized loss on fair value changes of this project of HK$6.93
million in the annual results of the Group for the year 2020.

Commercial and Industrial Buildings, Shanghai

Rental income and management fee from the Group’s commercial
and industrial property portfolio in Pudong, which comprised,
inter alia, Tomson Commercial Building, Tomson International
Trade Building, Tomson Waigaoqiao Industrial Park, the
commercial podium of Tomson Business Centre and the office
premises on the entire 72nd Floor of Shanghai World Financial
Center, provided a steady recurrent revenue of HK$101.94 million
to the Group and this accounted for approximately 10.89% of
the gross proceeds from operations of the Group for the year
under review. Rental concessions have been granted to appropriate
tenants of some of the aforesaid properties under the impact of
COVID-19, hence there was a slight decrease in the rental income.
In addition, the Group recorded an unrealized net loss on fair
value changes of the aforesaid investment properties of HK$5.40
million in the annual results of the Group for the year 2020.

TOMSON COMMERCIAL
BUILDING
U b oK
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Tomson Garden, Shanghai

Tomson Garden is a development of a series of apartment houses of
the Group in Zhangjiang Hi-Tech Park of Pudong. All residential
units were sold out a long time ago. The club house previously
held by the Group for leasing purpose was sold in the second half
of 2020 and sale proceeds of HK$30.34 million was recognized
and this accounted for approximately 3.24% of the gross proceeds

from operations of the Group.

TOMSON WAIGAOQIAO
INDUSTRIAL PARK
¥ B Ah AR O I I

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B LI e B 43 B

Miscellaneous Residential Developments in Shanghai

Tomson Golf Villas and Garden have been developed in phases
around the periphery of Tomson Shanghai Pudong Golf Club in
Pudong since 1996 and there are now less than ten residential
units and one hundred plus car parking spaces available for sale.
During the year under review, gross proceeds from these projects
amounted to HK$2.45 million and this represented approximately
0.26% of the gross proceeds from operations of the Group. The

revenue was mainly generated from sales of car parking spaces.

TOMSON GOLF VILLAS AND GARDEN
¥ B R ) B R AE I

The Group received management fee of HK$6.04 million from
Tomson Riviera Garden for the year under review and this
accounted for approximately 0.64% of the gross proceeds from
operations of the Group. Tomson Riviera Garden is a low-density
residential project of the Group adjacent to Tomson Shanghai
Pudong Golf Club in Sanba River District of Pudong and the
Group holds 70% interests in this project.

In addition, the Group holds less than ten car parking spaces at

Xingguo Garden, the sole residential development of the Group

in Puxi, for sale.
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Jingiao-Zhangjiang Project, Shanghai

As disclosed in an announcement of the Company on 10th
January, 2020, the Group entered into a conditional agreement
(the “Supplemental Framework Agreement”) that day with
Shanghai Pudong Land Holding (Group) Co. Ltd. (“SPLH”), a
state-owned enterprise established in China, to amend and vary
the terms of various agreements made between the Group and
SPLH between 2001 and July 2016 (collectively the “Transaction
Agreements”) in relation to a property development project in
Jingiao-Zhangjiang District of Pudong and adjacent to Tomson
Shanghai Pudong Golf Club. It was to cope with the proposed
adjustment and change to the development plan of Zhangjiabang
Wedge-shaped Green Area in Pudong, which was published by
the Pudong New Area Planning and Land Authority of Shanghai
on its website on 1lth January, 2017, and the plan covers the
portion located in Jingiao-Zhangjiang District of Pudong and
to the north of a stream named Zhangjiabang (the “Northern
Portion”). Pursuant to the Supplemental Framework Agreement, it
was agreed, inter alia, that (i) three land lots with aggregate site
area of approximately 328,687.5 square meters located within the
Northern Portion for residential purpose (the “Revised Portions”)
were adjusted to the Group. As compared to the aggregate site
area of the land lots for residential purpose originally planned to
be delivered under the Transaction Agreements, there is a slight
decrease in aggregate site area of 298.7 square meters; and (ii) a
plot of land with a site area of approximately 422,174.6 square
meters (the “Sports Portion”) for landscaping and sports facilities
purposes, which was agreed to be acquired under the Transaction
Agreements, was not delivered to the Group as certain land lots
(including the Sports Portion) within the Northern Portion have
been planned and varied as land for public welfare and will be
resumed by the local government for development by the relevant
government authorities and/or any entity authorised by the
government authorities in the Mainland of China. All previous
agreements under the Transaction Agreements in relation to the
acquisition of the Sports Portion were cancelled.

In addition, the Company executed a guarantee (the “Guarantee”)
in favour of SPLH on 10th January, 2020 to undertake, inter alia,
not to transfer any rights in relation to the Revised Portions.

Management Discussion and Analysis

B W) B g3 B

b S i - SR H

WIMANFTR - FE _FE~ATHZA
o B BE > A A [ B IR R b b
() A MRAF (P —Z B A
S BAERE) R EHE L T A K
1 5 (TCH 78 HE B2 1 k) )) » DB T K&
v U Y S S Y e e S S e
— NAE-E AR RT L 2 A BE AV R T R 4
o — 55 T M [ BEL 355 B 36 YA R T R
Bk g it A48 2 5 b e g R I H 22 2 0 W ok
(MBI b)) 2 3k o UL T) E ¥
F b VA T VR SRR [ R R - b B R A
S —EE-AT - HEEPE T ER
B 3 R BR U B Ak b 2 B R B 2
AR KB E) o %R B R
G —IR VL Hb % K — R 4% 2 ok Kk 2 ]
it b T M B P Y M R (T L8R ) o AR 48
CHli 70 HE 28 B k) > & b e (L b L 45)
(i) AV 7 b b B A 4 b B TG A 40328,687.5
T ORAEE E i 2 S (T & 5T
F b ) o R A SR o BRAR R (3 5
HOHETRBELMEEERH G Ty
48 b, L TE R A LG o S%4E BT R b 2 48 b
LT AR W B 20 298,77 K 5 K (i) MR $E
(32 5 T e )R] T A 7 Wi 8 22— g o, L T
FEA) F422,174.6° 7 7 KAE 5Bl B8 & &%
it F 2 3 (THE & R b ) R e 7
A4 s JR A B b R R T (f
15 #8 5 ) w8 )80 A8 el A A 25 P
F b > 5H F o Hb R AR > S E R A
b, P TR TR A A R R R A e TR R A
MR AR ERET R (X O
) T A B S R b 2 BT A e
foh sk Y B HUH o

BEAh » ANFLL R Z S AR
FAE—H+ B AT (R RO (TR i
BRDL) > DR CH L 45) A 75 8 e A T
KEAE AT 1) o Z AT AT HEF -

Annual Report 2020 4 & 44

10



11

Management Discussion and Analysis

B LI Wt B o Bt

The transactions contemplated under the Supplemental Framework
Agreement and the Guarantee (the “Transactions”) constituted
connected transactions for the Company under the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) between the Group
and SPLH, which is a substantial shareholder of a non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, on normal commercial
terms. The Board had approved the terms of the Supplemental
Framework Agreement and the Guarantee, and the independent
non-executive Directors of the Company had confirmed that they
believed the terms of the Supplemental Framework Agreement
and the Guarantee were fair and reasonable, the Transactions
were on normal commercial terms and the entering into of
the Supplemental Framework Agreement and the Guarantee
were in the interests of the Company and its shareholders as
a whole. Accordingly, the Transactions were exempt from the
circular, independent financial advice and sharcholders’ approval
requirements under the Listing Rules.

Real estate ownership certificates of the Revised Portions were
obtained in June 2020. It is planned that the development of
the Revised Portions will be phased in over few years. The
construction works of the first phase, which is a low-density
residential development with a total residential gross floor area of
approximately 25,900 square meters, is scheduled for completion
in 2022. It is expected that the marketing plan will be launched
in the third quarter of 2021.
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One Penha Hill, Macau

The Group holds 70% interests in the development of a luxury
residential condominium, namely One Penha Hill, at Penha Hill
within a designated World Heritage Zone of Macau.

For the year ended 31st December, 2020, the project recognized
sale proceeds of HK$33.84 million and this accounted for
approximately 3.62% of the gross proceeds from operations of the
Group. As at 31st December, 2020, residential units with saleable
area of approximately 6,900 square meters were available for sale.

ONE PENHA HILL
B B B0l A 58

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Hospitality and Leisure Industry
Tomson Shanghai Pudong Golf Club, Shanghai

Tomson Shanghai Pudong Golf Club, situated in Pudong
of Shanghai, generated revenue of HK$42,315,000, being
approximately 4.52% of the gross proceeds from operations of the
Group, and reported gross profit of HK$21.25 million for the year
ended 31st December, 2020. The revenue was mainly attributable
to golfing activities of the Club and the annual membership fee
was the secondary source of income. The Club was closed from
late January 2020 owing to the outbreak of COVID-19 and has
fully resumed normal operation since the end of April 2020.
After making provision for depreciation of fixed assets, the Club
reported a segment loss of HK$14,745,000 for the year 2020
(2019: HK$22,665,000).

TOMSON SHANGHAI PUDONG GOLF CLUB
Ui B b gl R KR
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InterContinental Shanghai Pudong, Shanghai

InterContinental Shanghai Pudong hotel, situated in Lujiazui
of Pudong, Shanghai, reported an average occupancy rate of
approximately 41% in 2020. Under the impact of the outbreak of
COVID-19, there was a sharp decrease in the operation revenue,
especially the rental revenue and the hotel reported loss for the
year under review. As a result, the Group, which holds 50%
interests in the hotel, shared a net loss of HK$2.55 million from
this investment for the year 2020 (2019: net profit of HK$17.33
million). It is expected that the hotel operations will still face
challenges in 2021 subject to the travel restrictions owing to
the worldwide pandemic outbreak and under the impact of the
disputes between China and the USA on investment sentiments
and consumer spending in the Mainland of China. The hotel
management will continue to focus on controlling operating
costs, increasing marketing efforts on sale of rooms and food and

beverage operations to maintain the profitability of the hotel.

The Group received dividend (net of withholding tax) of
HK$15,582,000 from this investment during the year under review
(2019: HK$13,556,000).

INTERCONTINENTAL SHANGHAI PUDONG
B3 PIRVIER NP
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Securities Trading

For the year under review, the Group’s securities trading business
in the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (“Hong Kong”)
of China reported revenue of HK$6,356,000 and this accounted
for approximately 0.68% of the gross proceeds from operations of
the Group. The revenue was solely derived from dividend income
and a net loss on the trading securities investments held by the
Group of HK$7,070,000 (2019: net gain of HK$828,000) was

recorded.

As at 31st December, 2020, the aggregate fair value of the
Group’s securities investments held for trading amounted to
HK$90,302,000, representing approximately 0.44% of the Group’s

total assets.

Media and Entertainment Business

The Group has participated in the production of live entertainment
shows for years and also set up its film distribution business
in 2011. For the year ended 31st December, 2020, gross
revenue received and receivable from this segment amounted to
HK$3,244,000 and this accounted for approximately 0.34% of
the Group’s gross proceeds from operations. The revenue for the
year under review was solely generated from investments in the
production of live entertainment shows and a segment loss of
HK$3,526,000 (2019: HK$2,110,000) was recorded. The Group
intends to continue in participating in investments in various live

performances in 2021.

PVC Operations

With the intention of capitalizing on the Group’s established brand
and goodwill in the industry, the Group set up a wholly-owned
subsidiary in Shanghai in mid-2013 to engage in export trade
of PVC fittings and pipes. Market conditions for this business
have been unfavourable and it was decided to close down this
business in 2020 to focus the Group’s resources on its property
development and investment business. The trading operation
reported insignificant revenue which accounted for approximately
0.04% of the gross proceeds from operations of the Group for the
year under review and recorded a segment loss of HK$113,000
(2019: HK$324,000).

Tomson Group Limited {5 B 5 [ 4 FR A 7

e 7r B H

A [ A BE A > A A A o R A v R
TEE(TEFED 2 & HE TR RS
A6,356,000% 7T - {1 A< 4 ] 2 K8 i AR
HRAEA10.68% o T A ZFRAR BB EIA
HALHEAEFEBAREZBRE
#17,070,000%5 70 (. —JUAF « i 25 1F B
828,000%5 I ) ©

AR DEFEFTF A=t —H A&
Mz rRESEAEREZ AT HBERG
90,302,000%5 7C - A A< 42 ] & 7 A8 (H 4
0.44% ©

/8 MBS B

AEECT 2 BB REGHRIEZF
WA —F——FHREVEITEY - #
BEOFFZEFT A= —HIEFERE
W B 2 el B R W AR A 453,244,000
WL AR KW i BE D
0.34% ° Ji% [a] B 4F B 1R 22 e AL AR B B
B R HREZRE > W B0 B
83,526,000 7C (—F —JL4FE © 2,110,000
WI0) o AEFBEBE N T —FF
SZHEEKL BB REEHE -

BB

BT ERALEBETERNCE L Z T
K e > AEER T —ZFPE
SR D YA e & o8 < ¥ 7 RN K B
BEAE R BE R OE S - it EB W
MHREAHEM, SHER T %
R ERRZEG > AR EEZE
REREHE Y EERE LBEER L - i
[l AR BE N B 5 W B AR MDA
A 7 45 [ 45 7 i o SR BE £90.04% o NI B
5 4 % 5 113,000 70 (. F —JL4E -
324,000%5 JC) ©



Investment Holding

In addition to its own property development projects, as at 31st
December, 2020, the Group held long-term equity investments in
Rivera (Holdings) Limited and its associate, Shanghai Zhangjiang
Micro-electronics Port Co. Ltd. and the aggregate fair value of
these investments amounted to HK$408,816,000, representing
approximately 2.01% of the Group’s total assets.

Rivera (Holdings) Limited

The Group holds 9.80% interests in the issued shares of Rivera
(Holdings) Limited (“RHL”), a listed company in Hong Kong.
RHL is principally engaged in property development and
investment in Shanghai as well as securities trading and investment
in Hong Kong. The Group received dividend of HK$10,227,000
from RHL during the year under review (2019: HK$10,227,000)
and an unrealized gain on change in fair value of this investment
of HK$25.57 million was credited to the investment reserve of
the Group in 2020 (2019: loss of HK$23.01 million) pursuant to

applicable accounting standards.

Shanghai Zhangjiang Micro-electronics Port Co. Ltd.

The Group holds 13.483% interests in the registered capital of
Shanghai Zhangjiang Micro-electronics Port Co. Ltd. (“SZMP?),
an unlisted associated company of RHL established in Shanghai,
and this company is principally engaged in property development
and investment in Shanghai. Dividend of HK$15,819,000 (2019:
HK$16,907,000) were received from such investment during the
year under review and an unrealized loss on change in fair value
of such investment of HK$21.61 million was charged to the
investment reserve of the Group in 2020 (2019: HK$17.70 million)

pursuant to applicable accounting standards.
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Privatisation Proposal

On 18th January, 2021, RHL and Step Famous Investment
Limited (the “Offeror”) issued a joint announcement that a
proposal for the privatisation of RHL by the Offeror (the
“Proposal”) by way of a scheme of arrangement under Section 673
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (the “Scheme”) would be
put forward to the registered holders of the shares of RHL (other
than those held by the Offeror and its concert parties (excluding
the Group)) (the “Scheme Share(s)”). In addition, the Offeror
entered into a rollover agreement (the “Rollover Agreement”) with
Best Central Developments Limited (the “Rollover Shareholder”,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of Shanghai Zhangjiang Hi-Tech Park
Development Co., Ltd. (“Zhangjiang Hi-Tech”)) that the Offeror
and the Rollover Shareholder will remain as the shareholders of
RHL after the Scheme becoming effective. In addition, there is
a proposed transfer of approximately 10.503% interests in the
registered capital of SZMP held by a wholly-owned subsidiary
of RHL to Zhangjiang Hi-Tech (the “SZMP Transfer”) so that
Zhangjiang Hi-Tech will hold 60% interests in SZMP upon
completion of the SZMP Transfer. The arrangement between
the Offeror and the Rollover Shareholder under the Rollover
Agreement and the SZMP Transfer (collectively the “Special
Deals”) constitute special deals under Rule 25 of the Hong Kong
Code on Takeovers and Mergers (the “Takeovers Code”).

The RHL shares held by the Group will form part of the Scheme
Shares. The Proposal and the Scheme will become effective and
binding on RHL and all registered holders of the Scheme Shares
subject to the fulfilment or wavier (as applicable) of a number
of conditions of the Proposal including, inter alia, the following

conditions:

(@)  the approval of the Scheme at a meeting of the registered
holders of the Scheme Shares to be convened at the direction
of the High Court of Hong Kong (the “High Court”) (the
“Court Meeting”);

(b)  the passing of a special resolution at a general meeting of
RHL (the “General Meeting”) to approve and give effect to
the Scheme, including the approval of the reduction of the
issued share capital of RHL by cancelling and extinguishing
the Scheme Shares;

Tomson Group Limited {5 B 5 [ 4 FR A 7

AL Ak

AT T A A NH o T B R
EARA R (T T7)) TG AN E
LK) J7 f% 1) 3 IR h 24 7 T H— BoAT
BNt (A 4 B BR 51 Bir 455 A 22 )V i 4y
(TFH# ey ) 2 Sl A AR E - R
W (ARG 55 673 e LT 81 % PRy 7
2 (T5z w8 1) 1T FA A AL 2 22wk (6%
k) o MAh > AT EL Best Central
Developments Limited (74 it &1 > |1
5 VL 1 B 45 T Ik B P A BR 2 D (3R
TE ) 2 4 6 B J8 2> =) T 57 A7 48 o
it ([CFF B Wk )]) - 2 49 Ty B A7 28 IR
R 5% 3 A S AR AT B AT 2 IR -
A >8R T B A 45 R R 1 — R A2
J& 2~ R R A 2 BRI A R RE M E A
#110.503% HE 4 ([ & T ¥ 24 7] i 3 =
L) o B R VLA A R TR U A T
WEFEHENAFAMETELAZ
60% HE 2 o B & J7 Bl A7 A B AR 958 KFF
M) 2 TP B T A E
B (R0 2 [RF I 22 5 1) A A 1 8 i
i 2 Bk~ U0 (T B~ ) J) BRI 2505
YRR A 5y A o

>

A AR R A 2 VAR A5 S AL S 3 B0
ZER A o %R R A TR AR A
o G (RN ) AR % 0 R Mg wt
1% B 2B I S )1 9] R 4 R RO 2
FLTFA N B AR > b s D
7

(@) w% Al w4 B A B ([ 55
BiBE)) 2 164245 T B B 2 5T E i 0
ZHRFAANZ g (g k)
b

(b RNz R Keg (RRERKe])
AR I DR SR o DAL R I
W2 wT E > ARG A M G B K
28 5 B 4 DA B 2 B AT IR
PN



(¢)  the sanction of the Scheme and the confirmation of the
reduction of the issued share capital of RHL involved in the
Scheme by the High Court; and

(d)  the passing of an ordinary resolution by the independent
shareholders of RHL at the General Meeting to approve the
Special Deals.

The Offeror is wholly owned by Madam Hsu Feng, Mr Albert
Tong and Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles (collectively “Tong Family”),
the executive Directors and substantial shareholders of the
Company. The Company is a party presumed under the Takeovers
Code to be acting in concert with the Offeror and Tong Family
by virtue of the Company and the Offeror being controlled by
Madam Hsu Feng and her close relatives. Hence, the Group will
abstain from voting at the Court Meeting and abstain from voting
on the resolutions on the Special Deals to be proposed at the

General Meeting.

Subject to the requirements of the Takeovers Code, the Proposal
will lapse if any of its conditions has not been fulfilled or waived,
as applicable, on or before 31st December, 2021. Hence, the

Proposal may or may not be implemented.

As announced by RHL and the Offeror on 5th March, 2021, it
is expected that (i) the Court Meeting and the General Meeting
will be held on 30th June, 2021; and (ii) the court hearing of the
petition to sanction the Scheme and to confirm the reduction of
the share capital of RHL will be held on 17th August, 2021.

If the Scheme becomes effective, the Scheme Shares held by the
Group will be cancelled and extinguished and a cancellation price
of HK$0.65 per Scheme Share in the total sum of HK$166 million
will be paid to the Group in cash.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
Liquidity and Financing Position

As at 31st December, 2020, total assets of the Group increased
by approximately 2.70% to HK$20,387,155,000 (2019:
HK$19,852,038,000). Equity attributable to owners of the
Company was HK$12,888,642,000 (2019: HK$12,259,425,000)
in total, or approximately HK$6.54 (2019: HK$6.22) per share,
representing an increase of approximately 5.13% which was mainly
attributable to appreciation in value of Renminbi during the year

under review.

The Group’s operations and investments for the year ended 31st
December, 2020 were funded by cash on hand, revenue from

operating and investing activities, and bank borrowings.

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and cash
equivalents of the Group amounted to HK$3,711,525,000
(2019: HKS$3,654,035,000), a slight increase of approximately
1.57%. During the year under review, the Group achieved net
cash inflows of HK$321,697,000 and HK$166,811,000 from its
operating and investing activities respectively. After taking into
account net cash outflow of HK$559,349,000 from its financing
activities, the Group recorded a net decrease in cash and cash
equivalents of HK$70,841,000 for the year under review (2019:
HK$525,979,000). The net cash outflow was mainly attributable
to the repayment of borrowings and the Company’s dividend
payment, but this was partly offset by the withdrawal of pledged
bank deposits.

As at 31st December, 2020, excluding contract liabilities which
represented the deposits received from sales of properties,
of the liabilities of the Group of HK$7,123,907,000 (2019:
HK$7,003,033,000), about 57.63% were taxation under current
liabilities, about 17.32% were deferred tax liabilities, about 14.32%
were borrowings, about 10.46% were trade and other payables
and accruals and the remainder was lease liabilities. Details of the
trade and other payables and accruals, lease liabilities, borrowings
and deferred taxation are shown in Notes 24(d), 24(e), 27 and
28 to the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year under review on pages 151 and 152, and pages 158 to 160

respectively.
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The Group’s borrowings as at 31st December, 2020 amounted
to HK$1,019,758,000 (2019: HKS$1,293,510,000), equivalent to
approximately 7.91% (2019: 10.55%) of the equity attributable
to owners of the Company at the same date. The Group did
not employ any financial instruments for financing and treasury
management. All of the borrowings were under security and
subject to floating interest rates. Approximately 69.31% of the
borrowings were denominated in Hong Kong Dollar while the
remainder was denominated in Renminbi. Of these borrowings,
approximately 72.10% were due for repayment within one year
from the end of the reporting period, approximately 2.79% were
repayable more than one year but not exceeding two years from
the end of the reporting period, approximately 8.37% were due
for repayment more than two years but not exceeding five years
from the end of the reporting period, while the remaining 16.74%
were repayable more than five years from the end of the reporting

period.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments
in relation to expenditure on properties under development of
HK$224,499,000 (2019: HK$122,585,000) while it did not have
any commitments in relation to expenditure on property, plant and
equipment (2019: HK$43,056,000). All of the commitments were
contracted but not provided for. The Group anticipates that these
commitments will be funded from its future operating revenue,

bank borrowings and other sources of finance where appropriate.

As at 31st December, 2020, the Group recorded a current ratio of
1.94 times (2019: 2.04 times) and a gearing ratio (total liabilities
to equity attributable to the owners of the Company) of 55.64%
(2019: 59.38%). There was no significant change in the current
ratio while the improvement in the gearing ratio resulted from the

repayment of borrowings.

Charge on Assets

As at 31st December, 2020, assets of the Group with an aggregate
carrying value of HK$1,573,082,000 (2019: HK$1,603,628,000)
were pledged for securing borrowings of the Group of
HK$1,019,758,000 (2019: HK$1,293,510,000). Details of the
assets pledged are set out in Note 36 to the consolidated financial

statements of the Group for the year under review on page 182.

Management Discussion and Analysis

B W) B g3 B

RoFEFEF A= —H > AEME
ZAEFKE51,019,758,000 5 7T ( —F —JLAF -
1,293,510,000% 7)) » #H % A [ H 2 A 2
FRE 25 R AN AL RE 42 2 £97.91% (= F
—JUAF £ 10.55%) » A SEFTE LS ) B
7 T S PR AT T R DR o BT
B A I K% TF ARG
B oo #169.31% 2 A8 3K LA e I (H > 1 B
BDLANRWSIME - FEZ G &
72.10% 28 Jit #¢ #5 B R L T — 4F (B R
#92.79% ZE s ¥ E BA R B FF— FE L BE
R 3 TR AR TR B R - 4.8.37% 28 ik R
AL FT A DA - H S AR O R
T % %F16.74% RI) 28077 3t 4 HA R 6 5 AR
%18 -

AR > AEBABERTYEL
2 IR E £5224,499,0005 0 (— & — L
A 1122,585,0005 J0) > il M AT o] A B
W3~ Wk PB B s M B S 2 R I (R —
JUAE © 43,056,000 7)) - & EE HD
FI A AE M R B o A 42 [ T % DL H A%
ZE A~ SRAT A A B H A A 2 Rl
AR DA E AT 5% SR o

BB A= —H > REE B
79 U0 B LR 51,9405 (. F —JLAF 1 2.04
i) B B AR B E R (B A R AR
F)HE o A N AL £ 2 U R) £955.64%
(= F—JLHF 1 59.38%) ° ¥ B b R 4%
R E) - 1A A B A R R R K
A BT o

7 7 Ik

REERCREF AT —H AEEIE
T A4 (B 1,573,082,000%5 70 (& —JL4F -
1,603,628,000% 0) 2 & FE & T L > DA
VE By A% 45 18] 15 3K %H1,019,758,0009 7T (-
F—JL4E 1 1,293,510,0004 5T) 2 & 4 -
AT 2 R R AR AR [ TR A
2 AR I R B 182 E M 5E 36 o

Annual Report 2020 4 & 44

20



21

Management Discussion and Analysis

B LI Wt B o Bt

Foreign Exchange Exposure

The majority of the Group’s assets and liabilities are denominated
in Renminbi, and the liabilities are well covered by the assets.
Should there be a depreciation in value of Renminbi, there may be
an adverse impact on the Group’s results and net asset value. All
of the other assets and liabilities of the Group are denominated
in either Hong Kong Dollar or United States Dollar. Hence, the

Group anticipates that the exchange risk exposure is manageable.

Contingent Liabilities

The Group had no material contingent liabilities as at 3lst
December, 2020 (2019: Nil).

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group’s financial situation, operating results and business
prospects may be directly or indirectly affected by a number
of risks and uncertainties including business risks, operational
risks, financial risks and changes of local laws and regulations
in the jurisdictions in which it operates. Information on the
estimation uncertainty, capital risk management and financial risks
management is set out respectively in Notes 4, 29 and 30(b) to
the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year

under review on pages 118 to 120, and pages 160 to 173.

Property development and investment is the principal business
segment of the Group and price fluctuation is a major risk that
may affect the Group’s results and asset value. The management
holds a positive view of the potential demand from rtarget
customers for properties in Shanghai and Macau and will be
cautious in formulating the Group’s business plan and monitor
closely the marketing and pricing strategies of the Group’s property

projects to maximize the return on investment.

There may be other risks and uncertainties in addition to those
stated above which are not known to the Group or which may not
be imminent or material now but could turn out to be impending

or significant in the future.
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PROSPECTS

The disputes between the two biggest economies in the world
and the outbreak of COVID-19 have inflicted serious blows and
disruptions to economic, business and social activities worldwide.
The mid-term repercussions on the operations of the Group have
yet to be assessed in light of the fluidity of the evolving situation.
In addition to the reform of the individual income tax regime
in the Mainland of China that became effective from 2019, the
tense relations between China and the USA and the outbreak of
COVID-19 may further dampen foreign investment sentiments in
the Mainland of China and may have a negative impact on the
deployment of expatriate staff by multinational corporations and
this might in turn affect the demand for quality apartments in
the Mainland. On the other hand, facing the risk of pandemic
outbreak in foreign countries, there are overseas Chinese returned
to the Mainland and nationals deferring their overseas working
and studying plans and they become potential clients of the quality

apartments in the Mainland, especially the first-tier cities.

The Group has built up its reputation as a developer of high-
end residential properties in the Mainland of China and remains
optimistic about the underlying demand for properties catering to
a high-income middle class and high net-worth individuals in the
Mainland in the long run though the recent regulatory policies
may increase pressure on the sales market of the property sector
in the Mainland. The Group will endeavour to maintain the
momentum in its sale and leasing plans for the property portfolio
in Shanghai and Macau. It is anticipated that Tomson Riviera and
One Penha Hill will be the Group’s principal sources of profit in
the year 2021. At the same time, the Group is actively proceeding
with the construction works of Jinqiao-Zhangjiang project in
Pudong, Shanghai and this project will form an important
component of the Group’s property development and investment

segment and the major source of revenue in next few years.

In light of volatility in the Hong Kong and global financial
markets and economic conditions, the management will continue
to adopt a conservative approach in managing the securities trading
portfolio of the Group, with an emphasis on securities with steady
recurrent yield.

Whilst property development and investment will remain the
focus of the Group’s business and investment strategies, the Group
will continue to explore and evaluate prudently other potential
investment opportunities. It will be the objective of the Group to
maintain an optimum balance in the allocation of its resources

both geographically and in different business segments.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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The overall extent to which national and global economies and
financial markets would be adversely impacted by the outbreak
of COVID-19 would be difficult to predict with any accuracy at
this stage. However, with the commencement of vaccination all
over the world, it is cautiously optimistic that the situation will
be under control and the economy will be recovered gradually.
The Group will continue to monitor the situation closely and
any financial impact on the operations of the Group, should this
happen, would be reflected in the financial statements of the

Group for the financial year 2021.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31st December, 2020, the Group engaged around 450
employees in total in its various offices including Hong Kong and
Shanghai. Total emoluments paid to staff and directors of the
Group during the year under review amounted to HK$68,656,000.
Remuneration and benefit packages are generally structured with
reference to market terms and practice, as well as individual
responsibilities, performance and qualifications. Discretionary
bonus may be paid based on individual contribution. In addition,
the Company has established a share option scheme pursuant to
which the employees of the Group may be granted options to

subscribe for shares of the Company as a performance incentive.

Mr Yeung Kam Hoi retired as an executive Director of the
Company at the conclusion of the annual general meeting of
the Company held on 4th June, 2020 and did not stand for
re-clection. The Board wishes to record its sincere gratitude to

Mr Yeung for his contributions to the Group during his tenure of

office.

Taking this opportunity, the Board would like to express its
gratitude to the management and all the staff members of the

Group for their devotion and hard work over the years.

On behalf of the Board
Hsu Feng
Chairman and Managing Director

Hong Kong, 26th March, 2021
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Corporate Governance Report

The Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”) is
committed to maintaining good corporate governance standards
and procedures which emphasize management of high quality,

transparency and accountability to all shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has applied the principles set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and has
complied with the code provisions contained therein during the
year ended 31st December, 2020 and up to the date of this Report,
except that:

(@ Madam Hsu Feng takes up both the posts of Chairman of
the Board and Managing Director of the Company. While
this is a deviation from the CG Code, dual role leadership
provides the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
the “Group”) with a strong and consistent leadership and
allows for more effective operation of the business. The
Board is of the view that adequate check and balance of
power is in place. Responsibilities for the Company’s daily
business management are shared amongst Madam Hsu and
other members of the executive committee of the Board.
Besides, all major decisions are made in consultation with
members of the Board or appropriate committees of the
Board in accordance with the provisions of the code on risk

management and internal control of the Company;

(b)  none of the existing independent non-executive Directors of
the Company are appointed for a specific term, but they are
subject to retirement and re-election at least once every three
years at annual general meetings of the Company pursuant to

the Articles of Association of the Company (the “Articles”);
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in accordance with the Articles, any Director of the
Company appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy
shall hold office until the next following annual general
meeting of the Company instead of being subject to election
by shareholders at the first general meeting of the Company
after his/her appointment as stipulated in the CG Code.
Such arrangement not only complies with Appendix 3 to
the Listing Rules but also streamlines the mechanism of
re-election of Directors so that both new Directors appointed
by the Board (either for filling a causal vacancy or as
an additional member) and existing Directors retiring by
rotation shall be subject to re-election at the annual general
meeting for the relevant year. Furthermore, extraordinary
general meetings will be reserved for considering and
approving notifiable/connected transactions or other
corporate actions under the Listing Rules only, which should

enhance efficiency in procedures for corporate matters; and

the Company has not established a nomination committee
comprising a majority of independent non-executive
Directors as stipulated in the CG Code. This is because
when identifying individuals of the appropriate calibre and
qualification to be Board members and when assessing the
independence of independent non-executive Directors, it is
necessary to have a thorough understanding of the structure,
business strategy and daily operation of the Company. The
participation of executive Directors during the process is
therefore indispensable. Accordingly, the Board as a whole
remains responsible for reviewing its own structure, size
and composition annually, and also for considering the
appointment of Directors and nomination for re-election
as well as assessing the independence of independent

non-executive Directors.

THE BOARD

The Board commits itself to acting in the best interests of the

Group and the shareholders. It is accountable to the sharecholders

for the long-term performance of the Group, while taking into

consideration the interests of other stakeholders.

The Company recognizes that a diverse board is crucial to the

Board’s performance and development of the Company. The

Board has adopted a board diversity policy which sets out the

approach to achieve diversity on the Board. It believes that

diversity should be viewed from its widest perspective. Accordingly,
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selection of candidates to the Board is based on a range of
measurable objectives, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, professional experience and
qualifications, skills, knowledge and length of service, having due
regard to the Company’s own business model and specific needs
from time to time. The ultimate decision will be based on merit
and contribution that the candidates will bring to the Board with
due regard to the benefits of diversity on the Board. During the
year under review, the Board has conducted an annual review of

its structure and composition at a regular meeting.

Since the retirement of Mr Yeung Kam Hoi as an executive
Director at the conclusion of the Company’s annual general
meeting held on 4th June, 2020 (the “2020 AGM”), the Board
has been composed of six members, including three executive
Directors, namely Madam Hsu Feng (Chairman and Managing
Director), Mr Albert Tong (Vice-Chairman) and Mr Tong Chi Kar
Charles (Vice-Chairman), and three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr Cheung Siu Ping, Oscar, Mr Lee Chan
Fai and Mr Sean S ] Wang. Biographical details of the existing
Directors and relevant relationships among them together with
their respective roles on the Board and its committees are set out
in the Profile of the Directors and Officers on pages 40 to 44.

With the Board members coming from a variety of business
and professional background and one out of the six Board
members being female, the Company considers that the Board
has an appropriate size and balanced structure and composition
with diverse mix of skills, experience, expertise and diversity of
perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the Company’s
business and development. All the Directors have signed service
contracts or letters of appointment with the Company which set

out the key terms and conditions of their appointment.

There are three independent non-executive Directors of the
Company representing more than one third of the Board and
two of them have either appropriate professional accounting
qualifications or related financial management expertise as
required by the Listing Rules. The Company has received an
annual written confirmation for the year 2020 from each of
the independent non-executive Directors of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all of

the independent non-executive Directors to be independent.
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The Directors have disclosed to the Company the offices held in
other public companies or organisations and the time involved
and the Company has received confirmations from each Director
that he/she has devoted sufficient time to perform his/her
responsibilities as a Director and has given sufficient attention to

the affairs of the Company during their tenure of office.

The Board has reserved for its decision or consideration matters
covering formulation of corporate strategy, approval of annual
and interim results, changes of members of the Board and its
committees, major acquisitions, disposals and capital transactions,
and monitoring and controlling other significant operational and
financial matters of the Group. The independent non-executive
Directors have contributed valuable independent views and
proposals for the Board’s deliberation and decisions. The Board
has established an executive committee, an audit committee and
a remuneration committee (collectively the “Committees”) with
clear written terms of reference to oversee particular aspects
of the Company’s affairs and to assist in sharing the Board’s
responsibilities. The Committees report regularly to the Board on

their decisions and recommendations.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the
Group are delegated to the management and the management
also provides support to the Board to formulate overall strategic
direction, long term objectives and business plans of the Group.
Both the Board and the management have clearly defined
authorities and responsibilities under various risk management,
internal control and check-and-balance mechanisms. The
management is responsible for implementing the strategies and
plans adopted by the Board and the Committees and assumes full
accountability to the Board for the operation of the Group.

The Board meets regularly throughout the year and as and when
required. Sufficient notices are given to all Directors at least 14
days before the regular Board meetings. All Directors are consulted
whether to include any matters in the agenda. Agenda and
accompanying board papers are given to all Directors in a timely
manner before the appointed date of each regular Board meeting.
Drafts and final versions of minutes are circulated to the Directors
for comment and record respectively. During the year 2020, there
were four regular Board meetings. Besides, a Vice-Chairman of the
Board had an annual meeting in 2020 to exchange opinions with
the independent non-executive Directors of the Company without

the presence of the other Directors.
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All members of the Board have been provided with monthly
management updates to keep them up-to-date with material
developments of the Group’s operations, performance, financial
position and prospects. The Board has agreed on a procedure
to enable the Directors to seek independent professional advice
whenever deemed necessary, at the Company’s expense, to assist

them to perform their duties.

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance to
indemnify its Directors for their liabilities arising out of the
discharge of their duties. The insurance coverage is reviewed on

an annual basis.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Company strives to attain and maintain high standards of
corporate governance best suited to the needs and interests of
the Group. Good corporate governance is crucial to an orderly
and effective operational system, which will enhance operational
efficiencies, thereby bolstering sharecholder value. The Board is
responsible for the corporate governance functions. During the
year ended 31st December, 2020, the Board has discharged the

following corporate governance duties:

(@) review and revise the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance including, inter alia, the terms of

reference of the Committees;

(b) review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements,
including reviewing the provisions of the code on risk

management and internal control of the Group;

() review, monitor and revise the Company’s code of
practice for securities transactions by the Directors and
relevant employees (the “Code of Practice for Securities

Transactions”) and whistleblowing policy;

(d)  review the Company’s compliance with the code provisions
of the CG Code and relevant disclosure in interim and

annual reports; and

() arrange seminars and briefings to Directors, review
and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors, details of which are set out in
the paragraph headed “Directors’ Induction and Continuous

Professional Development” in this Report.
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Executive Committee

An executive committee (the “Executive Committee”) was
established by the Board in June 2005 with specific written
terms of reference. The Executive Committee is composed of
all the executive Directors of the Company at all times. Since
the retirement of Mr Yeung Kam Hoi at the conclusion of the
2020 AGM, the members of the Executive Committee have been
Madam Hsu Feng, Mr Albert Tong and Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles.
Madam Hsu Feng is the chairman of the Executive Committee.
The Executive Committee may convene meetings as it considers
necessary for reviewing and approving, inter alia, any matters
concerning the day-to-day management of the business of the
Company and any matters to be delegated to it by the Board from

time to time.

Remuneration Committee

A remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”)
was established by the Board in June 2005 with specific written
terms of reference. The terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee are available on the Company’s website. The
principal duties of the Remuneration Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and
structure for all Directors and senior management’s remuneration
and the remuneration packages of individual Directors and senior
management of the Company. Mr Cheung Siu Ping, Oscar, Mr
Lee Chan Fai and Mr Sean S ] Wang, being all independent
non-executive Directors of the Company, and Mr Albert Tong,
an executive Director of the Company, are members of the
Remuneration Committee while Mr Cheung Siu Ping, Oscar acts

as the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

During the year 2020, two meetings of the Remuneration
Committee were held for considering a revision of the
remuneration package of an executive Director and an annual
review of the remuneration policy and packages for all the
Directors and senior management of the Company. Details of the
emoluments paid to the Directors and senior management of the
Company for the year ended 31st December, 2020 are set out in
Note 11 to the consolidated financial statements on pages 131 and
132.
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Audit Committee

An audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) has been set up
by the Board with specific written terms of reference. The Audit
Committee is composed of all the independent non-executive
Directors of the Company, namely Mr Cheung Siu Ping, Oscar,
Mr Lee Chan Fai and Mr Sean S ] Wang. The Audit Committee is
chaired by Mr Cheung Siu Ping, Oscar who possesses appropriate
professional accounting qualifications as required under the Listing

Rules.

Under its terms of reference, the Audit Committee is required to
monitor the integrity of the financial statements of the Company,
to review significant financial reporting judgements, to evaluate
the overall effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group, and to oversee the relationship with
the Company’s auditor (the “Auditor”). The terms of reference of

the Audit Committee are available on the Company’s website.

During the year 2020, the Audit Committee held three meetings
for reviewing the interim and annual financial statements as well
as the accounting and financial reporting matters of the Group;
evaluating the risk management and internal control systems of
the Group, the significant risks faced by the Group and also the
adequacy and effectiveness of internal audit function; reviewing
the internal audit and enterprise risk assessment reports of the
Group for approval by the Board; reviewing the whistleblowing

policy and considering the engagement and scope of services of
the Auditor.

The Audit Committee concluded that in 2020 the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group and
the internal audit function of the Company were implemented
effectively. The Audit Committee was satisfied with the related
resources of the internal audit function and the resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and related
budget of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting
functions as well as the implementation, application and

effectiveness of the whistleblowing policy.

In March 2021, the Audit Committee held a meeting to review
the annual consolidated financial statements of the Group for
2020 and consider the re-appointment of the Auditor. On the
recommendation of the Audit Committee, the Board resolved to
submit the consolidated financial statements for review and to
propose the re-appointment of the Auditor for approval by the
shareholders at the annual general meeting of the Company for
2021.
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Attendance Records at Meetings

The attendance of individual Directors at general meeting,
regular meetings of the Board and meetings of the Remuneration
Committee and Audit Committee held during the year ended 31st
December, 2020 is set out below:

7wk U W 8%

MRl #EFHENSE - F FEF =1
—HIEFENRITZIRAREG - HFEH
EMEE UAFMZEGNEEZE
& & ik 2 RGN R

Number of meetings attended/held

YV YE Traih-r 1 |
General Remuneration Audit
Meeting Board Committee Committee
Name of Directors E g 3T JBE K & HR FMZRA EHRZRE
Executive Directors Wi E
Madam Hsu Feng fr Mt 1/1 4/4 N/A A% N/A A # F
(Chairman of the Board and EEVEY + 4
Managing Director) HFHAEH)
Mr Albert Tong b PR 11 414 12 N/A REH
(Vice-Chairman of the Board) (# F ) il % F)
Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles G rREE 111 4/4 N/A A% N/A A #
(Vice-Chairman of the Board) EX V1 /EY 7,
Retired Executive Director BICEAT H B
Mr Yeung Kam Hoi A 85 S A 1/1 1/1 N/A A ] N/A A
(retired at the conclusion of the (R REWE
2020 AGM) HFEX 55K
HE)
Independent Non-Executive Directors  Ji 3 $147 # 3¢
Mr Cheung Siu Ping, Oscar e 1/1 4/4 212 3/3
(Chairman of the Audit Committee (HEEZFEAER
and the Remuneration Committee) FZE 5 &L )
Mr Lee Chan Fai BB 11 414 202 3/3
Mr Sean S ] Wang EoRI%kEE 11 4/4 212 3/3
Appointment and Re-election of Directors HWHZEEME R

In accordance with the Articles, new Directors could be elected
by the Company or appointed by the Board. Any Director so
appointed by the Board shall hold office only until the next
following annual general meeting of the Company and the retiring

Director shall be eligible for re-election.
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The Company did not establish a nomination committee
pursuant to the code provisions of the CG Code and the Board is
responsible for reviewing its own structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experience of its members),
and identifying, selecting and considering any appointment or
re-election of its own members. The Board is also responsible
for assessing the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors. The Board has adopted a director nomination policy
to set out the approach to nominate candidates to the Board to
ensure that the Board has a balance of skills, experience, expertise
and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the
Company’s business.

No new Board member was appointed during the year under
review. Mr Yeung Kam Hoi and Mr Sean S ] Wang retired by
rotation at the 2020 AGM. Mr Wang was re-elected as Director
at that meeting. Mr Yeung did not seek re-election and retired at
the conclusion of the 2020 AGM and then ceased to be a member
of the Executive Committee.

An annual review of the Board structure and composition was
made by the Board during the year under review and the Board
resolved to keep the structure and composition of the Board
unchanged.

In addition, Madam Hsu Feng, Mr Albert Tong and Mr Lee
Chan Fai shall retire by rotation at the Company’s annual general
meeting for 2021 pursuant to the Articles and being eligible, offer
themselves for election. Having considered the selection criteria
of the Company including the review of the overall contribution
and service to the Company and a range of diversity perspectives
concerning, inter alia, gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional experience and qualifications, skills,
knowledge and business experience of the retiring directors, the
Board recommends that Madam Hsu, Mr Tong and Mr Lee be
re-clected as Directors at that general meeting.

DIRECTORS’ INDUCTION AND
CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

On appointment to the Board, each of the new Directors of
the Company is given a comprehensive orientation package,
including the latest information of the Group, induction into
their responsibilities and duties, terms of reference of the relevant

Committees and other related regulatory requirements.
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Throughout the course of their directorship, to keep them
abreast of the latest developments in the legislative or regulatory
environment, the Directors are regularly provided with updates
and briefings on the Listing Rules and other applicable legal and
regulatory requirements. Circulars or guidance notes issued by
various regulatory authorities or organizations, where appropriate,

are given to the Directors for reading and reference.

In order to assist the Directors to participate in continuous
professional development, the Company encourages the Directors
to enroll in a wide range of professional development seminars
and conferences. During the year ended 31st December, 2020, the
Company organized three in-house seminars on areas of corporate
governance, business strategy and industry-related subjects so as

to help the Directors refresh their knowledge and skills.

A summary of the continuous professional development in which
the Directors participated during the year ended 31st December,
2020 is as follows:

T (o0 4% 5 L 9 AT T 0 ) B 4R R ik
T B TR BT 1 R B B > S E )
AL LT AR ) 2 H At 7 ) 2 9 B
BEOR ZHE AR LA o hAT B E
PR AL Ak % e 2 e A 51 (AR )
TRt TEEMRH LL2E -

BT B S B R R AL
) ) 4 20 A [e] B B S
BRSO LR o M E T
FHEAZH=ZA—HIEFEERN > AR
BT SRR N A B AR
I~ SEH M M BLAT SE AR B < i DU
I Bh 4% 2 o B 57 Ok M B g -

wEE - F FEET AZ=Z1T—HILE

B HE T2 B R B R R
T

Continuous Professional Development

Y R ER
Type Subject

Name of Directors HHELH i R F8
Executive Directors Puar A
Madam Hsu Feng o+ 1, A, B
Mr Albert Tong % ¥ I e A 1, A, B
Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles BT EEE 1, 2 A, B
Retired Executive Director ML P47
Mr Yeung Kam Hoi ¥ 86 18 5 A= 1, 2 A, B

(retired at the conclusion of the (25 R AF W AE K

2020 AGM) B A I 1 (F)
Independent Non-Executive Directors 18 V. I $L 47 # 5
Mr Cheung Siu Ping, Oscar 5 JK TS A 1,2 A, B
Mr Lee Chan Fai 2 IR R A 1, A, B
Mr Sean S ] Wang F 0G4 4 1, 2 A, B
Types: FE K -
I:  Attending in-house briefings/training, seminars, conference 1 AR e G G B

or forums w o ol G 1

2: Reading relevant information and updates, and watching 20 BEABERKEHRER o BE

training webcasts
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Subjects:
A:  Subjects relevant to the businesses of the Group

B:  Legal, regulatory, finance and general management updates

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted its own Code of Practice for Securities
Transactions on terms no less exacting than the required standard
of the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the
“Model Code”).

The Company has made specific enquiry of all Directors of the
Company in office during the year ended 31st December, 2020
and each of the Directors has confirmed compliance with the
required standard set out in the Model Code and the Code of
Practice for Securities Transactions throughout the year or up to

the retirement date (as the case may be).

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for ensuring that proper
risk management and internal control systems are maintained
within the Group and for overseeing the effectiveness of these
systems in order to safeguard the shareholders’ investments and
the Group’s assets against misappropriation and to manage the
operational risks. The Company has adopted a code applicable
to the Group in respect of material internal controls, including
financial, operational and compliance controls, and risk
management functions since 2005. The code on risk management
and internal control is reviewed by the Company regularly and

modified pursuant to operational requirements of the Group.

The risk management and internal control systems are intended to
manage, not eliminate, significant risks of failure to achieve the
Group’s business objectives, so they can only provide reasonable

but not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.
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The operating units of the Group, as the risk owners, go through
the following processes on an ongoing basis and report results to

the management:

(a)  identify their own significant risks in the Group’s operation
environment and evaluate the impacts of those risks on the

Group’s business and financial position;
(b)  develop necessary measures to manage those risks; and
() monitor and review the effectiveness of such measures.

The Group regulates the handling and dissemination of inside
information as set out in the code on risk management and internal
control to ensure that inside information remains confidential until
the disclosure of such information and the dissemination of such

information is efficiently and consistently made.

The Board has authorized the Audit Committee to review the
effectiveness of the systems of risk management and internal
control of the Group regularly and the Audit Committee held
a meeting in 2020 for that purpose. The Board, based on the
review of the Audit Committee, considers that the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems have been adequate and
effectively implemented and the Group has complied with the
provisions on risk management and internal control as set out
in the CG Code and the Group’s code on risk management and
internal control during the year ended 31st December, 2020.

An external service provider has been engaged for providing
internal audit services to the Group during the year under review.
The Board reviewed and approved, after a review made by the
Audit Committee, the internal audit and enterprise risk assessment

reports of the Group for 2020.

The Board also considers that, after a review made by the Audit
Committee, the Group’s internal audit function was effectively
implemented and adequately resourced with experienced external
service provider in 2020 and the resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and related budget of the
Company’s accounting and financial reporting functions are

adequate.
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Directors’ and Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Financial Statements

The Directors of the Company acknowledge that they are
responsible for the preparation and the true and fair presentation
of the consolidated financial statements of the Group for each
financial period. In preparing the consolidated financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31st December, 2020, the
Directors have selected suitable accounting policies and applied
them consistently; have made judgements and estimates that
were prudent and reasonable; and have prepared the consolidated

financial statements on a going concern basis.

The responsibilities of the Auditor to the shareholders are to form
an independent opinion, based on the audit, on those consolidated
financial statements and their opinion on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 3lst
December, 2020 is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report
on pages 64 to 70.

Auditor’s Remuneration

The fee in respect of audit service provided to the Group by the
Auditor for the year ended 31st December, 2020 amounted to
HK$2,978,000, and the Auditor did not provide any non-audit

services during the year.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary has day-to-day knowledge of the
Company’s affairs and supports the Board by ensuring board
procedures are followed and board proceedings are efficiently
and effectively conducted. The incumbent is also responsible for
apprising the Board of all applicable law, rules, regulations and
corporate governance developments. During the year under review,
the Company Secretary has taken relevant professional training as
required by Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.
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COMMUNICATION WITH
SHAREHOLDERS

The Board maintains a continuing dialogue with the Company’s
shareholders through various channels including the Company’s
annual general meetings. All the Directors of the Company for the
time being (including the Chairman of the Board and chairman
of the Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee) attended
the 2020 AGM and answered questions from the shareholders.
Representatives of the Auditor also attended that meeting to
answer questions about the consolidated financial statements of
the Group for the year ended 31st December, 2019.

In order to further enhance communication with the shareholders
of the Company and enable the Company’s sharcholders to have
timely and updated information of the Group, the Company
has set up its own website at http://www.tomson.com.hk where
corporate information, interim and annual reports, environmental,
social and governance reports, announcements, circulars, business

development and other information of the Company are posted.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene
an Extraordinary General Meeting (“EGM”) and
Put Forward Proposals at General Meetings

(@)  Any three shareholders of the Company holding in aggregate
not less than 5% of the total paid up capital of the Company
and having the right to vote at general meetings of the
Company have the right to ask the Board to convene an
EGM by depositing a duly signed requisition stating the
general nature of business(es) to be transacted at the EGM
or the objects of the EGM at the office of the Company
in the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (“Hong
Kong”) of the People’s Republic of China at Rooms 1501-2
and 1507-12, 15th Floor, Wing On Centre, 111 Connaught
Road Central, Hong Kong for the attention of the Company
Secretary of the Company.
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If within 21 days of deposit of a valid requisition (which has
been duly verified with the share registrar of the Company)
the Board does not proceed to duly convene an EGM, the

requisitionists may themselves convene an EGM.

(b) The procedures for nomination of Directors by the
shareholders of the Company are available on the Company’s

website at htep://www.tomson.com.hk.

Procedures for Putting Forward Enquiries
to the Board

Shareholders can direct their enquiries about their shareholdings
to the share registrar of the Company in Hong Kong, Tricor
Secretaries Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Hong Kong.

To the extent that such information of the Group can be made
available to the public, shareholders may at any time put forward
enquiries to the Board through the Company Secretary in writing
by mail to the office of the Company in Hong Kong at Rooms
1501-2 and 1507-12, 15th Floor, Wing On Centre, 111 Connaught
Road Central, Hong Kong or by e-mail to ir@tomson.com.hk.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy, pursuant to which
the Company aims at providing stable and sustainable returns to
the shareholders of the Company. The dividend payout ratio shall
be determined or recommended, as appropriate, by the Board at
its absolute discretion after taking into account, inter alia, the
Group’s operation performance and business development plan,
consolidated financial results, liquidity position and indebtedness,
capital and investment requirements and any other factors that
the Board may deem relevant, and subject to the statutory and
regulatory restrictions under the Cayman Islands laws and the
Company’s Memorandum and Articles of Association. Besides,
no dividend would be payable except out of the retained earnings

and/or share premium of the Company.
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SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN
CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no change in the constitutional documents of the
Company during the year ended 31st December, 2020 and up to
the date of this Report.

CORPORATE CITIZENSHIP

The Group pledges itself to contribute to the well-being of the
society. During the year under review, the Group has made
charitable donations to various international and local charitable
organizations, including World Vision Hong Kong and Orbis
Hong Kong, to support their activities in the provision of relief
against poverty and education, children sponsorship, health

promotion and communal welfare.

The Company has participated in the “Heart to Heart Project”
organized by The Hong Kong Federation of Youth Groups since
its launch in 2005, to sponsor service projects proposed by
volunteer groups of those schools enrolled under the project so
as to encourage youth volunteers to serve the community and to

promote the concept of mutual help among neighborhood.

On behalf of the Board
Albert Tong

Vice-Chairman

Hong Kong, 26th March, 2021
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Profile of the Directors and Officers

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Madam Hsu Feng, aged 70, has been a director of the Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) since January 1990
and is an executive Director of the Company. She was appointed
Managing Director of the Company in December 2001 and the
chairman of the executive committee of the Board of Directors of
the Company (the “Board”) in June 2005. She was also elected as
Chairman of the Board in December 2006.

Madam Hsu has over 10 years’ experience in film production, and
in property development and investment as well as retail industry
in Taiwan. She has been engaged in the property development, and
hospitality and leisure business in the Mainland of the People’s
Republic of China (“China”) for nearly three decades. She is also
the Honorary Consul of the Principality of Monaco in Shanghai,
China.

Madam Hsu is the mother of Mr Albert Tong and Mr Tong Chi
Kar Charles, who are Vice-Chairmen of the Board and executive
Directors of the Company. They all are directors of E-Shares
Investments Limited (“E-Shares”) and executive directors of Rivera
(Holdings) Limited (“RHL”), a listed company in the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region (“Hong Kong”) of China.
In addition, both Madam Hsu and Mr Albert Tong are directors
of King China Holdings Limited (“King China”). Madam Hsu
is also the owner of E-Shares and King China and a substantial
shareholder of RHL. Mr Albert Tong, Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles,
E-Shares, King China and RHL are shareholders of the Company
having a notifiable interest under Part XV of the Hong Kong
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”).

As at the date of the Report of the Directors, pursuant to the SFO,
Madam Hsu is interested and taken to be interested in a total of
908,001,416 issued shares of the Company.
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Mr Albert Tong, aged 38, has been appointed an executive
Director of the Company since December 2001 and a member
of the executive committee and remuneration committee of the
Board since June 2005. He was also elected as Vice-Chairman
of the Board in December 2006. He has joined the Group and
taken up directorships of the subsidiaries of the Company since
March 2001. He has actively participated in the Group’s business
development, corporate management, property trading and

securities investment during the past two decades.

Mr Albert Tong is a son of Madam Hsu Feng, Chairman of the
Board and Managing Director of the Company, and the younger
brother of Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles, Vice-Chairman of the Board
and executive Director of the Company. They all are directors of
E-Shares and executive directors of RHL. In addition, both Mr
Albert Tong and Madam Hsu are directors of King China. He is
also a shareholder of RHL. Madam Hsu Feng, Mr Tong Chi Kar
Charles, E-Shares, King China and RHL are shareholders of the
Company having a notifiable interest under Part XV of the SFO.

As at the date of the Report of the Directors, pursuant to the SFO,
Mr Albert Tong is interested in 278,981,024 issued shares of the
Company.

Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles, aged 40, has been appointed an
executive Director of the Company and a member of the executive
committee of the Board since October 2008. He was also elected
as Vice-Chairman of the Board in December 2010. He has
joined the Group since December 2000 and has participated
in property trading and business management of the Shanghai
office of the Group. Mr Tong also acts as a director of a number
of subsidiaries of the Company. He now principally engages in
property development and trading business in the Mainland of
China.

In addition, Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles was a member of the 13th
Tianjin Municipal Committee of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference during the period from January 2013 to
January 2018.
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Mr Tong Chi Kar Chatles is a son of Madam Hsu Feng, Chairman
of the Board and Managing Director of the Company, and the
elder brother of Mr Albert Tong, Vice-Chairman of the Board
and executive Director of the Company. They all are directors of
E-Shares and executive directors of RHL. He is also a shareholder
of RHL. Madam Hsu Feng, Mr Albert Tong, E-Shares and RHL
are shareholders of the Company having a notifiable interest under
Part XV of the SFO.

As at the date of the Report of the Directors, pursuant to the
SFO, Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles is interested in 284,807,445 issued
shares of the Company.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr Cheung Siu Ping, Oscar, aged 56, has been appointed an
independent non-executive Director of the Company and the
chairman of the audit committee of the Board since September
2004. He was also appointed a member of the remuneration
committee of the Board in June 2005 and then was appointed as

the chairman of this committee in April 2011.

Mr Cheung is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and a member of the Hong Kong Institute

of Certified Public Accountants.

He is practising as a certified public accountant in Hong Kong

and is the sole proprietor of Oscar S. P. Cheung & Co..

The annual director’s fee of Mr Cheung has been increased from
HK$170,400 to HK$174,000 with effect from 1st January, 2021,
which was approved by the Board, under the authorization of the
shareholders at the 2020 annual general meeting of the Company
and on recommendation of the remuneration committee of the
Board with reference to his responsibilities and prevailing market

conditions.
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Mr Lee Chan Fai, aged 58, has been appointed an independent
non-executive Director of the Company and a member of each of
the audit committee and remuneration committee of the Board
since December 2005.

He graduated from Department of Architecture of The University
of Hong Kong, is a member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Architects and is qualified as a Registered Architect in Hong Kong
and a First Class Registered Architect in the Mainland of China.

Mr Lee has acted as a director of Marco Asia Limited and J&P
Architects Limited (ZF 08 2 5[l A FR/A ) since the 1990’s, and
a director of J&P Architects Limited (I 2% & 3¢ 5154 51 A R
/v H]) since January 2015. He was a director of JSP Architects
Limited during the period from 2008 to July 2012. He has

extensive experience in architectural design.

The annual director’s fee of Mr Lee has been increased from
HK$170,400 to HK$174,000 with effect from Ist January, 2021,
which was approved by the Board, under the authorization of the
shareholders at the 2020 annual general meeting of the Company
and on recommendation of the remuneration committee of the
Board with reference to his responsibilities and prevailing market

conditions.

Mr Sean S J Wang, aged 57, has been appointed an independent
non-executive Director of the Company and a member of each of
the audit committee and remuneration committee of the Board
since April 2011.

He graduated from Peking University and studied economics.
He then went to the United States of America and obtained a
bachelor of science degree from Hamline University in 1986 and
a MBA degree from University of Minnesota in 1989. Mr Wang
has in-depth and extensive experience in corporate management
and funds operation. He has many years of experience in financial
operation and project management at various multinational firms
listed on the New York Stock Exchange, NASDAQ and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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Mr Wang has held the positions of president and chief
operating officer of Hurray! Holding Limited, a company listed
on NASDAQ, a non-executive director of China Advanced
Construction Materials Group, Inc., a company listed on
NASDAQ), and an executive director and the chief financial officer
of SOHO China Limited, a company listed in Hong Kong. He
was awarded “CFO of the Year in China” in 2009. In addition, he
was an executive director and the chief financial officer of China
Huarong Energy Company Limited, a company listed in Hong
Kong, during the period from October 2010 to October 2016,
and was an executive director and the chief executive officer of
ENN Energy Holdings Limited, a company listed in Hong Kong,
during the period from March 2017 to January 2018. He now acts

as senior vice president of ENN Group.

The annual director’s fee of Mr Wang has been increased from
HK$170,400 to HK$174,000 with effect from Ist January, 2021,
which was approved by the Board, under the authorization of the
shareholders at the 2020 annual general meeting of the Company
and on recommendation of the remuneration committee of the
Board with reference to his responsibilities and prevailing market

conditions.

OFFICERS

Ms Lee Yuen Han, aged 54, joined the Group in 1991 and was
appointed the Company Secretary of the Company in March 1998
and has acted as the Deputy General Manager of the Company
since August 2005.

She attained a bachelor’s degree in economics and a master’s
degree in business studies, and is an associate of The Chartered
Governance Institute established in England and The Hong Kong

Institute of Chartered Secretaries.

Mr Wong Chi Keung, aged 44, joined the Group in 2008. He
was appointed the Chief Accountant of the Company in February
2018. He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified

Public Accountants.
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The Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”) is pleased to
present its Report together with the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
the “Group”) for the year ended 31st December, 2020 and the
Independent Auditor’s Report thereon.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Group in the course of the year
were property development and investment, hospitality and leisure
business, securities trading, as well as operation of and investment
in media and entertainment business. The PVC operations were

closed down during the year.

During the year under review, the Company acted as an
investment holding company and the principal activities and other
particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are listed
under Note 39 to the consolidated financial statements on pages
185 to 192.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the performance and position of the Group’s business
for the year ended 31st December, 2020, an indication of the
future development of the Group’s business as well as an analysis
of the Group’s principal risks and uncertainties are set out in
the Management Discussion and Analysis on pages 4 to 23. This

discussion forms part of this Report.

A discussion on the Group’s environmental policies and
performance as well as its compliance with laws and regulations,
and an account of the Group’s relationships with its employees,

customers and suppliers are set out below in this Report.

Details of the Group’s results for the year ended 31st December,
2020 and the Group’s financial position as at the end thereof are
set out on pages 71 to 194. An analysis by operating segments
and geographical location is set out in Note 6 to the consolidated

financial statements on pages 124 to 128.
As at the date of this Report, the Board is not aware of any

important events affecting the Group that have occurred since the

end of the year under review.
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DIVIDEND

The Board has declared an interim dividend of 5.50 HK cents
per share for the year ended 31st December, 2020 (2019: 11 HK
cents per share) to shareholders whose names appear on the register
of members of the Company on Thursday, 10th June, 2021. The
dividend is payable in cash and dividend warrants are expected to
be despatched on Tuesday, 22nd June, 2021.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The Board has resolved to convene the annual general meeting of
the Company for Thursday, 10th June, 2021 (the “2021 AGM”).

For the purpose of determining the sharcholders who are entitled
to attend and vote at the 2021 AGM and qualify for the interim
dividend for 2020, the register of members of the Company
will be closed from Monday, 7th June, 2021 to Thursday, 10cth
June, 2021, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer
of shares of HK$0.50 each in the capital of the Company (the
“Share(s)”) will be effected. In order to be eligible to attend and
vote at the 2021 AGM and qualify for the interim dividend, all
transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged with Tricor Secretaries Limited, the Company’s
share registrar in the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
(“Hong Kong”) of the People’s Republic of China (“China”), not
later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 4th June, 2021 for registration.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year under review, the Group’s five largest customers
contributed approximately 69.27% of the Group’s gross
proceeds from operations with the largest customer accounting
for approximately 21.73% of the Group’s gross proceeds from
operations while approximately 57.22% of the Group’s purchases
were attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers with the
largest supplier accounting for approximately 27.72% of the

Group’s purchases.
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None of the Directors of the Company, their close associates or
any shareholders (which to the knowledge of the Directors own
more than 5% interest in the number of issued Shares) have any

interest in the Group’s five largest customers or suppliers.

DONATIONS

During the year ended 31st December, 2020, the Group donated
approximately HK$4,020,000 for charitable and other causes.

FIXED ASSETS

During the year ended 3lst December, 2020, the Group
added fixed assets amounting to HK$102,332,000 (2019:
HK$9,292,000) while it disposed of and wrote off fixed assets
with an aggregate net book value of HK$4,911,000 (2019:
HK$136,000).

Movements in fixed assets of the Group during the year are shown
in Notes 15 and 16 to the consolidated financial statements on
pages 136 to 140.

A schedule of the principal properties held by the Group, either

under development or for sale or investment purposes, is set out

on pages 195 to 200.

BORROWINGS AND DEBENTURES

Details of borrowings of the Group as at 31st December, 2020
are set out in Note 27 to the consolidated financial statements on

page 158.

No debentures of any class were issued by the Company or any

of its subsidiaries, or were in issue, at any time during the year.

No interest expenses attributable to properties under development

were capitalized by the Group during the year (2019: Nil).

Tomson Group Limited {5 B 5 [ 4 FR A 7

EVAEIE:S & Y SN i § PNCRERC)S
R(EFEM LA R RAEES
5% L _FHE 25 ) B R A X LR R T
R e 2 A AT 4 o

1 =K

W8 E FE TEL A=+ —HILF
FEA > A% 5 H E 48 3K 494,020,000 % JCAF
28 %= K HAh R o

Il % & B

REEERETH = —HIEE
JEN > AR SE BN B 5 $102,332,00045 7
(. —JU4 1 9,292,000% 0) 2 [Hl € &
FE o T B R B 2 [ S AR T I
{8 744,911,000 %5 70 (—F —JL4F : 136,000
W T) o

AEEPEERNZEEEEZ BB
A S 136 2 5140 B 45 A W BS i R B 5
15 M Bt 5E16 -

—JES AL EFA 2 EEY ¥ (FEE
J& B B E R ) 2 B AR R
261954 5200 H o

fi B8 S A B

AEEME_F_FF+_H=F—HZ
3K 2 REIE BN S 158 E 45 A B K
B 5E27 o

AR ) 2 HAT Ao B 2 W) AR B A AT AT
3 i) ABE 40 35 47 K 2 98 A7 AT ol B0 2 A
2,

7 S5 B A A JEE A SIE 0 5 5 R A 36 2
B EAR (CF L ;) -



SHARE CAPITAL

As at 31Ist December, 2020, 1,971,025,125 Shares were in issue
and fully paid. The Company did not issue any new Shares or buy
back any Shares during the year under review. Details of the share
capital of the Company are set out in Note 25 to the consolidated

financial statements on pages 154 and 155.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31st December, 2020, there was no
purchase, sale or redemption made by the Company, or any of its

subsidiaries, of the Company’s listed securities.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than a share option scheme adopted by the Company in
2012 as disclosed in this Report, no equity-linked agreements were
entered into by the Company during the year under review or

subsisted at the end of the year.

RESERVES

The retained earnings and share premium of the Company
as at 31st December, 2020 amounted to HK$1,085,727,000
(2019: HK$1,150,942,000) and HK$560,161,000 (2019:
HK$776,974,000) respectively. These reserves are available for

distribution.

The Board recommends that the retained earnings of the Group
as at 31st December, 2020 amounting to HK$9,044,400,000 be

carried forward.

Other movements in reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year are shown in the Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity and Note 38 to the consolidated financial
statements on pages 76 and 77, and page 184 respectively.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company and

the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and financial position of the Group for

the preceding five financial years is set out on pages 202 and 203.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company as at the date of this Report and
those who were in office during the year under review and up to

the date of this Report are:

Executive Directors
Madam Hsu Feng (Chairman and Managing Director)
Mr Albert Tong (Vice-Chairman)
Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles (Vice-Chairman)
Mr Yeung Kam Hoi
(retired at the conclusion of the annual general meeting
held on 4th June, 2020)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr Cheung Siu Ping, Oscar

Mr Lee Chan Fai

Mr Sean S ] Wang

Mr Yeung Kam Hoi, an executive Director of the Company, retired
by rotation at the annual general meeting of the Company held
on 4th June, 2020 pursuant to the Articles of Association of the

Company and did not stand for re-election.

A profile of the existing Directors of the Company as at the date
of this Report is shown on pages 40 to 44.

Information relating to emoluments paid to the Company’s

Directors during the year is set out in Note 11 to the consolidated

financial statements on pages 131 and 132.
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All Directors of the Company are subject to retirement by rotation
at annual general meetings of the Company in accordance with
the Articles of Association of the Company. Article 116 of the
Articles of Association of the Company provides that at each
annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors of the Company
for the time being or, if their number is not three or a multiple
of three, then the nearest number to but not more than one-third
shall retire from office by rotation provided that every Director
shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years. The Directors to retire each year shall be those who have
been longest in office since their last election and are eligible for
re-election. In this connection, Madam Hsu Feng, Mr Albert Tong
and Mr Lee Chan Fai shall retire by rotation at the 2021 AGM.

Being eligible, they offer themselves for re-election.

The re-election of the retiring Directors of the Company is subject
to separate resolutions to be approved by the sharcholders at the
2021 AGM and details of those retiring Directors will be disclosed
in a circular of the Company to be despatched to the shareholders

together with the notice of the annual general meeting.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACT

The Directors of the Company who are proposed for re-election at
the 2021 AGM do not have any unexpired service contract with
the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable
by the employing company within one year without payment of

compensation, other than statutory compensation.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has taken out and maintained directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance throughout the year under review,
which provides appropriate cover for the directors and officers of

the Group.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SECURITIES

As at 31st December, 2020, the interests and short positions of the
Directors of the Company in shares, debentures and underlying
shares of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Hong Kong Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO”)), which were required, pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein
(including interests and short positions which they were taken to
have under Section 344 of the SFO) or which were required to be
notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing

Rules”), were as follows:

(I) The Company

EHZE PR RIRA

AR CEREFT A=t —H ARH
AT AR O ) CH AT o] AR B ik 1 (1%
ik G o e ) 8 Ak ) (T8 o I ) |
e BI))) EEXVER 2 %E Fe ik BE) < Hefy ~ 15
RS K A Bl BB A o R A 2R T TR R R
3 B R 1) 55 35240k 2 B R wE A % 1 B
Jor At % %5 w5 M (6L 46 AR B G o e I &
A1) 25344 R B0 S5 WAL 7 B 2 A 2 M
W) BUHE R A& 25 A R
25 ) ([ 52 e 1) Gt 2 B s BRI (IR T
BRI 22 K7€ g A 8w L 58 B 2
MESE KR T

@O AR&AH

Shares of HK$0.50 each 4 B Wi 4fL0.50 % oC =2 Bt By
Number of Shares
JBc B ¥ H

Personal Family Corporate Other
Name of Directors Interests Interests Interests Interests
R A A A 4 % B HE 42 2 v B 4R Jefio B 42
Madam Hsu Feng oMt 226,678,292 (B)(i) Nil % 681,323,124 (B)(ii), (iii) Nil
Mr Albert Tong P REEE @) 278,981,024 (C) Nil & Nil # (B)(iii) Nil f%
Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles R )| 284,807,445 (D) Nil 4 Nil & (B)(ii) Nil 4
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(IT) The Company’s associated corporations

@

)

China Boom Enterprises Limited (“China Boom”)

Shares of US$1 each
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(ID) A2 2 HH W %
1) BEEEAFRAATCERE])

5 I i fE 156 T 2 JBe Ay

Number of shares of China Boom

REHEZRRYH

Personal Family Corporate Other
Name of Director Interests Interests Interests Interests
HEHEA il A B 4 X B HE 2% 2 i) B 43 JEfib B 43
Madam Hsu Feng & #& L (B 716,800 Nil & 563,200 Nil &
Tomson Entertainment Co. Limited 2 GREBLBEMNEAERAH
(“Tomson Entertainment”) (R>1:%: % H)
Shares of NTD10 each 45 B¢ i 681 & W10 2 B

Number of shares of Tomson Entertainment

7 B B 4 2 B B H
Personal Family Corporate Other
Name of Director Interests Interests Interests Interests
HFEH A 4 % 6 B 2 B v B A b 2
Madam Hsu Feng & # &+ (F) 1,350,000 Nil & 1,125,000 Nil &
Notes: Mt it
(A) Madam Hsu Feng is mother of Mr Albert Tong and Mr Tong (A) R L% TR e A Ry TR SR

(B)

Chi Kar Charles. All of them are shareholders and executive
directors of Rivera (Holdings) Limited (“RHL”), a listed
company in Hong Kong.

Madam Hsu Feng was interested and deemed to be interested

in an aggregate of 908,001,416 issued Shares, representing

46.067% interests in the total number of issued Shares,

pursuant to the SFO in the following ways:

@

She held in her capacity as a beneficial owner an interest
in 226,678,292 issued Shares (being 11.500% of the total

number of issued Shares);

HE 2 BE R o ARAE 1 I )1 T AR AR
KRN =Kk & Bz A
A Z R KATE S -

M35 8 75 B 1 & W ) > bl 4 &
PVR B0 g5 SR A7 vk 5 5 R A A 3t
908,001,416 /5% CL 817 ey > 1L 34T
3 BB 2 46.067% HE 5 ¢

() HUHEAESESANZ &5
1 4226,678,292 1k © 8 47 Ik 13
(RN E 38 17 B 13 488 2 11.500%)
ZHEZS
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©

D)

(ii)

(iii)

She held the entire interests in the issued shares of the
following shareholders of the Company and was therefore
deemed to have interest in 434,023,124 issued Shares
(being 22.020% of the total number of issued Shares)

which were beneficially held by these companies:

Name of companies

(i)

WHEA THARNFAZKRZE
BEATREY 2 AT RE 25 > N b Bk
B ARZEAR Eafra
Z 434,023,124 % 285 47 B 4y (Bl
LB AT B0y A8 8 2 22.020%) 2
HE 5 -

Number of Shares held

PEER Bk By 2 ¥ H
King China Holdings Limited & # £ B A R A # 252,919,265
E-Shares Investments Limited 181,103,859

434,023,124

the following companies, being wholly-owned subsidiaries
of RHL, beneficially held an aggregate of 247,300,000
issued Shares (being 12.547% of the total number of

issued Shares):

Name of companies

(iii)

N HLSE] (B B N 22 A E R
5 A)) B g8 FF A A 4£247,300,000
& B 8517 B Ay (B 288 4T 1% 17y 48
B2 12.547%) :

Number of Shares held

A £ Pi ¥ ey 2 ¥ H
Forty Enterprises Company Limited BRMOERRAA 16,909,030
Shine Trip Limited Fi J A7 IR ] 230,390,970

247,300,000

Pursuant to the SFO, Madam Hsu Feng held and was
deemed to be holding an aggregate of 37.175% of the
total issued shares of RHL, she was therefore deemed
to be interested in the aforesaid Shares through a

corporation controlled by her.

Mr Albert Tong held in his capacity as a beneficial owner an

interest in 278,981,024 issued Shares (being 14.154% of the

total number of issued Shares).

Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles held in his capacity as a beneficial

owner an interest in 284,807,445 issued Shares (being 14.449%

of the total number of issued Shares).
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(E)

®

Madam Hsu Feng held, in her capacity as a beneficial owner, a
personal interest in 716,800 shares (being 56%) in the capital
of China Boom. The Company held the balance of interest
of 563,200 shares (being 44%) in the capital of China Boom
through its wholly-owned subsidiary and Madam Hsu was (by
virtue of her beneficial interest in the Company as disclosed in
the above Note (B)) deemed to be indirectly interested in these
shares through a corporation controlled by her pursuant to the
SFO. In conclusion, Madam Hsu was interested and deemed to
be interested in an aggregate of 1,280,000 shares (being 100%)
in the capital of China Boom pursuant to the SFO.

Madam Hsu Feng held, in her capacity as a beneficial owner,
a personal interest in 1,350,000 shares (being 54%) in the
capital of Tomson Entertainment. The Company held an
interest in 1,125,000 shares (being 45%) in the capital of
Tomson Entertainment through its wholly-owned subsidiary
and Madam Hsu was (by virtue of her beneficial interest in
the Company as disclosed in the above Note (B)) deemed to
be indirectly interested in these shares through a corporation
controlled by her pursuant to the SFO. In conclusion, Madam
Hsu was interested and deemed to be interested in a total
of 2,475,000 shares (being 99%) in the capital of Tomson

Entertainment pursuant to the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors of the Company and

their associates had any interests or short positions in the shares,

debentures and underlying shares of the Company or any of its

associated corporations as at 31st December, 2020, which were

required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the

register referred to therein (including interests or short positions

which they were taken to have under Section 344 of the SFO) or

which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock

Exchange pursuant to the Listing Rules.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “2012 Scheme”)
on Ist June, 2012. Under the 2012 Scheme, no options were
granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed during the year ended 31st
December, 2020, nor was there any option outstanding at the

beginning or at the end of the year.

Major terms of the 2012 Scheme

The purpose of the 2012 Scheme is to provide incentives or
rewards to selected persons for their contribution to any member
of the Group or any entity in which any member of the Group

holds any equity interest (the “Invested Entity”).
The participants include, inter alia:

(i)  any employee or proposed employee (whether full time or
part time) of any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity, including any executive director of any of these

companies; or

(i) any non-executive director (including independent
non-executive director) of any member of the Group or any

Invested Entity; or

(iii) any adviser or consultant or customer of, or any supplier
of goods or services to any member of the Group or any

Invested Entity; or

(iv) any shareholder of any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity or any holder of any securities issued by any member

of the Group or any Invested Entity.

As at the date of this Report, save as otherwise approved by
the shareholders of the Company, the maximum number of
Shares available for issue upon exercise of options which may
be granted under the 2012 Scheme is 137,252,380, representing
approximately 6.96% of the number of issued Shares.
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The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of the options granted and to be granted to each participant
(including exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month
period up to the date of grant of options shall not exceed 1% of
the Shares in issue at the date of grant (the “Individual Limit”). If
any further grant of options to a participant would result in the
total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
all options granted and to be granted to such person (including
exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) in the 12-month
period up to and including the date of such further grant to be in
excess of the Individual Limit, such further grant must be subject
to the shareholders’ approval in general meeting of the Company
with such participant and his or her associates abstaining from

voting.

The acceptance of an offer of granting an option must be made
within 28 days from the date on which such offer is made with
a non-refundable payment of HK$1 from the grantee to the

Company by way of a consideration for the grant thereof.

The subscription price per Share in respect of any option that
may be granted shall be such price as the Board in its absolute
discretion shall determine, save that such price will not be less

than the highest of:

(i)  the closing price of the Shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of offer

of the option, which must be a business day;

(i)  the average of the closing prices of the Shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the 5 business
days immediately preceding the date of offer of the option;

and

(iii) the nominal value of the Shares on the date of offer.

An option may be exercised at any time during a period as the
Board may determine which shall not be more than 10 years

commencing from the date of grant of the option.

Save as determined by the Board and stated in the offer of the
relevant options, there is no minimum period for which an option

must be held before it can be exercised under the 2012 Scheme.
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The 2012 Scheme shall be valid and effective until 31st May,
2022 subject to earlier termination by the Company in general
meeting or by the Board. After the expiry of such valid period, no
further options will be offered or granted but in all other respects
the provisions of the 2012 Scheme shall remain in full force and
effect.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
ARRANGEMENTS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Apart from the 2012 Scheme, at no time during the year nor at
the end of the year ended 31st December, 2020 was the Company
or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable
the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any

other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
COMPETING BUSINESS

Madam Hsu Feng, Chairman of the Board and Managing Director
of the Company, is a substantial shareholder of RHL while Mr
Albert Tong and Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles, being Vice-Chairmen
of the Board and executive Directors of the Company, are
shareholders of RHL. In addition, Madam Hsu, Mr Albert Tong
and Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles are executive directors of RHL.

RHL is engaged in property development and investment in
Shanghai of China, particularly in Zhangjiang Hi-Tech Park,
Pudong New Area, through its subsidiaries and associated
company. Property development and investment, with particular
focus on Pudong New Area in Shanghai, is one of the principal
businesses of the Group. The business of RHL in the property
sector in Shanghai (the “Excluded Business”) may therefore

potentially compete with the Group’s business.
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In this connection, Madam Hsu, Mr Albert Tong and Mr Tong
Chi Kar Charles are considered to have interests in a business
which may compete or is likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the business of the Group, other than that
business where the Directors of the Company have been appointed
or were appointed as directors to represent the interests of the
Company and/or the Group, pursuant to the Listing Rules.
Nevertheless, RHL is a listed company in Hong Kong and both
the Group’s business and the Excluded Business are managed by
their respective independent management and administration.
Besides, the Board is independent of the board of directors and
management of RHL and the independent non-executive Directors
of the Company will also be monitoring the operations of the
Group. The Group is therefore capable of carrying on its business

independently of, and at arm’s length from, the Excluded Business.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS
AND CONTRACTS

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to
the business of the Group to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of the Company
or any entity connected with him (within the meaning of Section
486 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance) had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, were entered into during
the year ended 31st December, 2020 or subsisted at the end of the

year or at any time during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts for the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of any business of the Group were entered

into or subsisted during the year ended 31st December, 2020.
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RELATIONSHIPS WITH SUPPLIERS
AND CUSTOMERS

The Group understands that it is important to maintain good
relationship with its suppliers and customers to achieve its
short-term and long-term goals. To maintain its competitive status,
the Group aims at providing quality products and services to its

customers.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Company recognizes that employees are one of the Group’s
valuable assets and the Group is conscious of the importance of
an effective staff management and incentive structure. The Group
provides competitive remuneration packages and makes regular
review to attract and motivate the employees. Remuneration and
benefits packages are generally structured by reference to market

terms, individual responsibilities, performance and qualifications.

The emoluments of the executive Directors of the Company
are determined by the Board on the recommendation of its
remuneration committee (the “Committee”). The fees of the
independent non-executive Directors of the Company are fixed
by the Board under the authorization of the shareholders of the
Company and on the recommendation of the Committee. In
addition, the Company has adopted the 2012 Scheme pursuant
to which it may grant the directors and employees of the Group

options to subscribe for Shares as a long-term incentive.

PENSION SCHEMES

The Company participates in a pension scheme, which was
registered under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance (the “MPF Ordinance”), for all its employees
in Hong Kong. The scheme is a defined contribution scheme
effective from December 2000 and is funded by contributions
from employer and employees in accordance with the provisions
of the MPF Ordinance. If the employer makes any voluntary
contributions for the employees under the scheme, forfeited
contributions in this nature can be applied to reduce the amount

of future voluntary contributions payable by the employer.
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The employees of the Group in the Mainland of China are
members of respective state-managed defined contribution
retirement benefit schemes operated by the local governments. The
employers and the employees are obliged to make contributions at
a certain percentage of the payroll under rules of the schemes. In
2020, the government of the Mainland implemented policies to
waive the employers’ payments to various social insurance schemes
to relieve the burden under the outbreak of COVID-19.

Furthermore, the Group and its employees in the Macao
Special Administrative Region (“Macau”) of China shall make
contributions of a fixed amount per quarter to the Social Security

Fund under the obligatory system pursuant to the laws of Macau.

During the year under review, the total amount contributed by
the Group to the said schemes and charged to the Consolidated
Statement of Profit or Loss amounted to HK$1,156,000 (2019:
HK$5,857,000) and no contributions were forfeited.

SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS

As at 3lst December, 2020, the following sharcholders (other
than the Directors of the Company) were interested, directly
or indirectly, in 5% or more of the number of issued Shares
and underlying shares of the Company and those interests were

required to be recorded in the register required to be kept under

Section 336 of the SFO:

(I) Substantial Shareholders of the Company

Name of shareholders

JBE 3 44 A
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Number of Shares held
(proportion to the

number of issued Shares)

Bt ¢ A By 2 B H
eBTBRBPEHZE A ))

King China Holdings Limited
Rivera (Holdings) Limited (“RHL”)

LM A RN )
N G A BR 22 =1 (TR D) (B)

252,919,265 (12.832%)
247,300,000 (12.547%)
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(II) Other Person

Name of shareholder

JBe 3 £

I Hib A+

Number of Shares held
(proportion to the

number of issued Shares)

Bids A ey Z S H
BT RDEHEZH L)

E-Shares Investments Limited (a)

Notes:

@

(b)

King China Holdings Limited and E-Shares Investments
Limited were the beneficial owners of these Shares respectively.
They were wholly owned by Madam Hsu Feng in her capacity
as a beneficial owner. Pursuant to the SFO, their interests in
these Shares therefore constituted part of the total interests of
Madam Hsu Feng in the capital of the Company as disclosed
in Note (B) to the above paragraph headed “Directors’ Interests
and Short Positions in Securities” in this Report.

RHL was deemed to have interests in these Shares through
corporations under its control under the SFO. Details of these
interests are set out in Note (B)(iii) to the above paragraph
headed “Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in Securities”
in this Report. Pursuant to the SFO, these interests constituted
part of the total interests of Madam Hsu Feng in the capital of
the Company as disclosed in Note (B) to the above paragraph
headed “Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in Securities”
in this Report.

Amongst these Shares disclosed, 230,390,970 issued Shares
were beneficially held by Shine Trip Limited, which was a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Superwell Development Limited
in which RHL held its entire equity interest. Therefore, Shine
Trip Limited, Superwell Development Limited and RHL
were interested or were taken to be interested in these Shares
pursuant to the SFO.

Save for the above interests, the Directors of the Company are not

aware of any person (other than the Directors of the Company)

who had, directly or indirectly, interests or short positions in

the number of issued Shares and the underlying shares of the

Company and those interests or short positions were required to
be recorded in the register kept under Section 336 of the SFO as
at 31st December, 2020.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this
Report, the Company has maintained a sufficient public float as

prescribed by the Listing Rules.

ENVIRONMENT POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to the long term sustainability of the
environment and communities in which it operates. It continually
secks to identify and manage environmental impacts attributable to
its operation activities to minimize the impacts as far as possible. It
adheres to the principle of recycling and reduction and implements
green office practices such as double-sided printing and copying
and reducing energy consumption by switching off idle lightings

and electrical appliances.

The Group also seeks to reduce its material consumption and
construction wastes in construction works. During the year under
review, the Group strived to comply with local regulations for

treatment of construction wastes.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group commits itself to comply with the relevant laws
and regulations including, inter alia, the Listing Rules, Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and other applicable local laws
and regulations in various jurisdictions in which it operates.
Furthermore, the Group, acting as a property developer, is subject
to environmental protection laws and regulations, including air
and noise pollution and discharge of construction wastes and water
in the Mainland and Macau of China. To the best knowledge of
the Board, the Group has complied with all the relevant laws and
regulations that have significant impact on the Group during the

year under review.
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AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31st December, 2020 have been audited by the Auditor of
the Company, Messrs Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu and there was
no change in the Auditor of the Company in the previous three

financial years.

Messrs Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu have been registered with
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants as a
Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor.

They will retire at the conclusion of the 2021 AGM and, being

eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board
Albert Tong

Vice-Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 26th March, 2021
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Deloitte.

TO THE MEMBERS OF
TOMSON GROUP LIMITED

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Tomson
Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as “the Group”) set out on pages 71 to 194 which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31st December, 2020, and the consolidated statement of
profit or loss, consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity
and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a

summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31st December, 2020, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ecthics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.

Valuation of investment properties

We identified the valuation of investment properties as a key audit
matter due to the significance of the assets and involvement of
management judgement and estimation in determining the fair

value.

The fair value of investment properties (which included
commercial properties, residential properties and industrial
properties in Shanghai of the People’s Republic of China (the
“Mainland China”) at 31st December, 2020 is HK$8,311,639,000,
with loss on fair value changes recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss of HK$12,329,000 for the year then
ended.

As disclosed in Notes 4 and 15 to the consolidated financial
statements, in estimating the fair value of these investment
properties, the Group engaged a professional independent
valuer (the “Valuer”) to establish and determine the appropriate
valuation technique and inputs to the valuation. The valuation
was arrived by capitalising the net rental income derived from
existing tenancies with due allowance for reversionary income
potential of the properties on a recurring basis. This involves the
making of certain assumptions and the use of estimates in respect
of the reversionary yield by the Valuer. A slight increase in the
reversionary yield would result in a significant decrease in fair

value, and vice versa.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Our procedures in relation to the valuation of investment

properties included:

. Evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity of
the Valuer;
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. Obtaining an understanding of the valuation process and
significant assumptions and critical judgement areas from
the management to assess if the investment approach is

appropriate for the respective properties and industry norms;

. Evaluating the appropriateness of the estimations used, in
particular, the underlying assumptions and methodologies,
based on our knowledge of the properties market of the

relevant locations; and

. Assessing the reasonableness of the key inputs used by the
Valuer in the valuation model, including the reversionary
yield, net rental income derived from existing tenancies
and annual unit market rental by comparing them against
current market data and entity specific information on a

sample basis.

Provision for land appreciation tax

We identified the provision for land appreciation tax (“LAT”)
calculations as a key audit matter since significant judgement and
estimation required in determining the amount of LAT to be paid

by the Group within each of the property development projects.

The Group is subject to LAT in the Mainland China. As
disclosed in Note 12 to the consolidated financial statements,
the Mainland China LAT of HK$301,892,000 was recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year ended
31st December, 2020. The Group had provision for LAT payable
amounted to HK$4,049,949,000 as at 31st December, 2020.

LAT has been provided at ranges of progressive rates of the
appreciation value, with certain allowable deductions including
land costs, borrowing costs and the relevant property development
expenditures, which are the key inputs in the calculation of the

LAT based on management’s best estimates.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Our procedures in relation to the provision for LAT included:

. Obtaining an understanding from the management of the
Group about the basis adopted in arriving at the provision
for LAT;

. Assessing the Group’s provision for LAT computation

prepared by the management of the Group with reference
to relevant rules and regulations with the assistance of our

tax specialists; and

. Checking the financial information, including land costs,
borrowing costs and relevant development expenditures,
used in the calculation of provision for LAT to the Group’s

historical financial data.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the

consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of

assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing

to report in this regard.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors ecither intend to liquidate the Group or to cease

operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the

Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on

the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,

or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal

control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related

disclosures made by the directors.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as

a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events

in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Tomson Group Limited {5 B 4 [#] A FR /A 7
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. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain

solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant

deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate

threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to

outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent

auditor’s report is Sze On Tat.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certitied Public Accountants

Hong Kong
26th March, 2021

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

I RV
Fr A7 1H 1 R
For the year ended 31st December, 2020 # £ ~F " FF+ - H =+ —HILHFE
2020 2019
—RoBE SRR
Notes HK$000 HK$°000
Rt 51 T# Tt
Gross proceeds from operations #8515 AR 5& 6 936,303 938,057
Revenue e A 5 929,947 915,757
Cost of sales FER N (426,591) (353,898)
Gross profit T # 503,356 561,859
Net (loss) gain on financial assets at AN FEHFABRGZ
fair value through profit or loss B & E 2 (kG 18)
W 4 A (7,070) 828
Other income HAthgie A 7 235,062 158,784
Other gains and losses HoA i 45 & 5 48 8 16,817 8,472
Selling expenses HEEH (143,393) (128,567)
Administrative expenses 1718 (145,012) (182,986)
(Loss) gain on fair value changes of & W 300 - (8 5 By IRf
investment properties EAZ (EHE) 15 (12,329) 17,226
Finance costs Al & # 9 (40,716) (61,195)
406,715 374,421
Share of results of associates JE A W 7 o R 2 3E AR 2,598 (353)
Share of result of a joint venture B —REEREL
ES (2,552) 17,330
Profit before taxation W B A Yo A1 10 406,761 391,398
Taxation i JH 12 (226,639) (160,855)
Profit for the year 4 J¥ Vi ) 180,122 230,543
Profit for the year attributable to: JRE A A B Jai A 40 T
Owners of the Company ENYNEIL ETESEEPN 174,993 172,513
Non-controlling interests T 52 T T B HE 4 5,129 58,030
180,122 230,543
Earnings per share (HK cents) B B 2R G5 Al 14
— Basic o 8.88 8.59
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

o 4R i B M il 4 i B AR

For the year ended 31st December, 2020 # £ —~F “FF - H =+ —HIELF &

2020 2019
—®o®E AR
HK$’000 HK$’000
T K T 7T
Profit for the year A JEE Vi | 180,122 230,543
Other comprehensive income (expense) A 2 i W 3% (BH %)
Items that may be subsequently reclassified to — H & 1] H 31 77 £
profit or loss: B A ZHH :
Exchange difference arising from translation of: AR e A 2 T S0 2 0
— subsidiaries — [t J& A 659,685 (212,844)
— a joint venture - —REERE 10,378 (3,889)
— associates o k- /NG 375 (43)
Item that will not be reclassified to VN v E
profit or loss: Ha #ZHH :
Fair value gain (loss) on equity instruments at %2\ ¥ {H 7 A H A 2 T
fair value through other comprehensive income Wt fii Z & A< T H 2
AR EAY i) 10,814 (36,783)
Other comprehensive income (expense) A FE A A AU 4
for the year (BH 32) 681,252 (253,559)
Total comprehensive income (expense) AE B % i W 2 (B %)
for the year M 861,374 (23,0106)
Total comprehensive income (expense) JRE i 2 TG Wiz % (BH S2)
attributable to: HBEWT
Owners of the Company ENYNEIE ETESEEPN 846,030 (79,088)
Non-controlling interests IE FE B B BRBE 25 15,344 56,072
861,374 (23,016)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

% o A IR D0 2

At 31st December, 2020 A - X X+ +_—H=+—H

2020 2019
—goRE SE
Notes HK$’000 HK$°000
B 5E T# L Tt
Non-Current Assets I i B B
Fixed assets EE E
— Investment properties - EWE 15 8,311,639 7,846,533
— Property, plant and equipment o /ERN Y & 16 258,202 202,375
Goodwill EE 19 33,288 33,288
Deferred tax assets AE JE Bl TH & 28 37,941 35,503
Interests in associates T G S N F 22 RE 2 20 14,225 11,259
Interest in a joint venture R EERE IR 21 175,740 184,316
Club debentures o BT f& 75 515 515
Equity instruments at fair value $2 5 - AH FEA HAth 2
through other comprehensive income I #i 2 IR A T H 22 408,816 389,399
Pledged bank deposits AT SR AT 17 3K 36 218,721 627,778
Other receivable b U R 3K 2,361 —
9,461,448 9,330,966
Current Assets W) % e
Properties under development By E 17 4,348,666 3,388,166
Deposit paid for land use rights + Hbfd R HE 2 BT RT & 18 = 368,994
Properties held for sale fFEME 1,547,246 1,828,696
Trade and other receivables JEE Wi & 5 B 3k~ HoAh
and prepayments JE A K B FE A IR 24(a) 297,962 519,034
Tax recoverable JiE 4B Fi TH = 187,179
Financial assets at fair value N FEHFAHEZGZ
through profit or loss W& E 23 90,302 =
Inventories TE 24(b) 4,212 4,046
Pledged bank deposits KA RAT F7 3K 36 912,755 559,284
Bank deposit AT K 24(c) 13,039 11,638
Cash and bank balances B & KSR AT &5 B 24(c) 3,711,525 3,654,035
10,925,707 10,521,072
Current Liabilities R RER
Trade and other payables WEAS B 5 B K~ HoAth
and accruals JRE AT B R M T 42 2 H 24(d) 732,465 766,198
Lease liabilities & A A 24(e) 7,645 4,297
Contract liabilities GHAKE 24(f) 46,874 277,192
Tax liabilities i TH £ 1 4,105,724 3,605,848
Borrowings K 27 735,263 508,208
5,627,971 5,161,743
Net Current Assets i W) ¥ A 5,297,736 5,359,329
Total Assets Less Current Liabilities 48 % & 3 ¥% B £1 4% 14,759,184 14,690,295

Tomson Group Limited {5 B 4 [#] A FR /A 7




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
& A B R UL &R

At 31st December, 2020 A - X X+ +_"H=+—H

2020 2019
SRORE 0K
Notes HK$’000 HK$000
B 5 T# 0 TH# T
Capital and Reserves B A B il
Share capital JB A 25 985,512 985,512
Share premium and reserves J A9 Y A I st A 11,903,130 11,273,913
Equity attributable to owners of AKprltEmEFEA N
the Company JRE A5 HE 4 12,888,642 12,259,425
Non-controlling interests IE ¥ M B BROME 25 327,732 312,388
Total Equity 28R A 13,216,374 12,571,813
Non-Current Liabilities I B 5
Other payables H At A5 B 3K 24(d) 12,541 14,166
Lease liabilities & Ak 24(e) 11,745 =
Borrowings & 7K 27 284,495 785,302
Deferred tax liabilities % 9T A JH A 1R 28 1,234,029 1,319,014
1,542,810 2,118,482
14,759,184 14,690,295

The consolidated financial statements were approved and

GEMBHREROCR-F_—F=ZH_+

authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 26th March,
2021 and are signed on its behalf by:

Hsu Feng
i
Chairman

EY3

75 H A ol B SR L e Sl A HE T EE - e
THIERERMAREE:

Albert Tong
b A

Vice-Chairman

& T
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
B4 HE ot 5 B
For the year ended 31st December, 2020 # £ ~ & “FF+ - H =+ —HILFE

Notes: Mt -

(a) The special reserves of the Company and its subsidiaries (a) PN/ N Q= = /N M o I N S T )

(collectively the “Group”) arose from the difference between the
aggregate amount of the then share capital and share premium
account of Tomson Investment Limited, the former holding
company of the Group, and the nominal amount of the Company’s

shares issued pursuant to a scheme of arrangement in 1989.

Capital redemption reserve arose from repurchase of shares. The

amounts represent the nominal amount of the shares repurchased.

The enterprises expansion reserve is an appropriation from retained
earnings in relation to tax concession granted by the relevant
government authorities. This reserve is only used for the future
development or expansion of that company where concession is

granted.

The statutory surplus reserve (“SSR”) is an appropriation from
retained earnings by subsidiaries of the Company in the Mainland
of the People’s Republic of China (“Mainland China”). In
accordance with the Company Law of the Mainland China, the
Mainland China subsidiaries of the Company are required to
allocate 10% of their profit after tax to the SSR until such reserve
reaches 50% of the registered capital of that subsidiary. The SSR
may be converted to increase capital subject to certain restrictions

set out in the Company Law of the Mainland China.

Of the retained earnings of HK$9,044,400,000 (2019:
HK$8,869,526,000), retained earnings of HK$9,671,000 (2019:
HK$28,625,000) and accumulated losses of HK$5,514,000 (2019:
HK$8,112,000) are attributable to a joint venture and associates

of the Group respectively.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mabllaemak

For the year ended 31st December, 2020 # £ —~F “FF - H =+ —HIELF &

2020 2019
SRoRE SEF
HK$’000 HK$000
T#x T T
OPERATING ACTIVITIES BEXH
Profit before taxation W B4 AT s 406,761 391,398
Adjustments for: KT 5
Share of results of associates JE 1 W 8 A w2 R (2,598) 353
Share of result of a joint venture Bl —REENEZER 2,552 (17,330)
Interest expenses F BB S 40,716 61,195
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ) 3 ~ & 5 I % 4§ 37 # 45,044 39,456
Impairment of film distribution rights R TR R E - 150
Net impairment losses on trade and other TERIEUCE 5 R 3k &
receivables recognised Al B o B Kk 2 Ik A e 4R i AR 822 1,274
Net loss on disposal/write off of property, plant 8 /8591 2 ~ B 5 L st 2
and equipment JiE 1H 4,854 67
Loss (gain) on fair value changes of investment BEYENTEHEB R ELE 2
properties Jies 15 (W 43 12,329 (17,226)
Loss on fair value changes of financial assets at %23 °F ErtA B &2 I % & E
fair value through profit or loss N EZ B EE L EE 13,426 -
Interest income A Bl A (165,267) (84,051)
Dividends from equity instruments at fair value #% /A F (5 A H A 2 W UL 45 2
through other comprehensive income A TR Z B Bk A (26,046) (27,134)
Operating cash flows before movements in EBEESBEHN KB EN
working capital 332,593 348,152
Decrease in properties held for sale FrEMER D 368,537 291,033
Decrease in trade and other receivables and JRE Wi B ) MRk~ L At R Wi R K I
prepayments FEAT BA W D 23,508 2,485
(Increase) decrease in financial assets at fair WA TFEFARGZMEEE
value through profit or loss (38 ) D (103,728) 882
Decrease in inventories fFE WD 76 385
Decrease in trade and other payables and JRE A B 7 R K~ H At B AT R R
accruals T 42 2 s A (55,920) (68,588)
Decrease in contract liabilities & AR (246,879) (8,6006)
Additions in properties under development BERE Y R (70,690) (4,116)
Cash from operations KEeEBEL 2B E 247,497 561,627
Income taxes refunded (paid) B3R [ (B AT) By 15 Bl 74,200 (1,121,430)
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) BEXHEEPNZ
OPERATING ACTIVITIES BeSHE 321,697 (559,803)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

A Bl R R

For the year ended 31st December, 2020 # £ —~F ~FF - H =+ —HIEF &

2020 2019
“ECRA —F-NE
Notes HK$°000 HK$000
Wit 5 T#xL Tt
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BE B
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits RIE KR AT 773 260,786 123,043
Withdrawal of time deposits with original TR EHH = Ak
maturity over three months Z EWAER 12,333 700,000
Placement of pledged bank deposits Bk AR AT 3K (134,280) (744)
Placement of time deposits with original Mg R E =M A -
maturity over three months Z B (13,039) (11,638)
Additions in investment properties REREYE (8,654) =
Purchase of property, plant and equipment EEWE  KE KM (70,627) (9,292)
Interest received EAE PSS 76,848 85,921
Dividends from equity instruments at fair value #% /A F (H5HA H b 2 11
through other comprehensive income Wiz AT HZ
BB A 26,046 27,134
Dividend from a joint venture W —REEREZER
(net of withholding tax) (EFuBRuZH) 15,582 13,556
Proceeds on disposal of equity instruments B 4 2 F (B 7 HC A
at fair value through other comprehensive EHl Gz BATRZ
income Jir 15 3K JH 1,752 -
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and HEWE - BB Rk
equipment Jir 15 3K JH 57 69
Repayment from (advance to) an associate a3 F-UNCIPA 3
(F) 7 (5)
NET CASH FROM INVESTING B E A2
ACTIVITIES B4&w¥# 166,811 928,044
FINANCING ACTIVITIES ik ¥ 35 )
New borrowings raised A K 31 216,813 354,785
Repayment of borrowings fE 32 5 3K 31 (509,010) (483,423)
Interest paid B A LS 31 (42,381) (68,867)
Cash dividend paid BBk E (216,813) (354,785)
Payment on repurchase of shares $i 1] R £ A 5K - (333,759)
Repayment of lease liabilities fEEME AR (7,958) (8,171)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING k5 ) T 2
ACTIVITIES Bl & (559,349) (894,220)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND B4 BBl 4 S H H B
CASH EQUIVALENTS WA (70,841) (525,979)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS B—H—HZBEER
AT 1ST JANUARY Be&SHEH 3,654,035 4,268,775
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE b I Ié 3 5% B 2 3% %
CHANGES 128,331 (88,761)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS BRT-A=Z1T—HZB4
AT 31ST DECEMBER, BB &S %A
represented by cash and bank balances RO BE & B SR AT &5 B 3,711,525 3,654,035
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A 13 B B e o B R

For the year ended 31st December, 2020 # £ —~F “FF - H =+ —HIELF &

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company is a public limited company incorporated in
the Cayman Islands and its shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
The addresses of the registered office and principal place
of business of the Company are disclosed in the Corporate

Information of the annual report.

The principal activities of the Group for the year were
property development and investment, hospitality and leisure
business, securities trading, as well as operation of and
investment in media and entertainment business. The PVC

operations were closed down during the year.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied the “Amendments
to References to the Conceptual Framework in HKFRS
Standards” and the following amendments to HKFRSs
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA”) for the first time, which
are mandatorily effective for the annual period beginning
on or after Ist January, 2020 for the preparation of the

consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKAS 8

Definition of Material

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business

Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39 and HKERS 7

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

The application of the “Amendments to References to the
Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards” and the
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year had no material
impact on the Group’s financial positions and performance
for the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set

out in these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
&% 0 W B 3 R B
For the year ended 31st December, 2020 # £ —~F ~FF - H =+ —HIEF &

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

The Group has applied the Amendments to Hong Kong
Accounting Standard (“HKAS”) 1 (Revised) “Presentation
of Financial Statements” and HKAS 8 “Accounting Policies,
Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors” for the first
time in the current year. The amendments provide a new
definition of material that states “information is material
if omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be
expected to influence decisions that the primary users of
general purpose financial statements make on the basis of
those financial statements”. The amendments also clarify
that materiality depends on the nature or magnitude of
information, either individually or in combination with other
information, in the context of the financial statements taken

as a whole.

The Group has not early applied the following new HKFRS
and amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are

not yet effective:

HKERS 17 Insurance Contracts and the related
Amendments'

Amendments to HKFRS 16 ~ COVID-19 - Related Rent
Concessions*

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual

Framework?
Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform —
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, Phase 2°

HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
&5 0 T B W R B
For the year ended 31st December, 2020 # & —~F “FF - H =+ —HILF &

APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. HEH W AT Ko v 1 5 R o

AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG e ) B HAB T AR a)
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between (R B R MERI ) B B
and HKAS 28 an Investor and its Associate or Joint 1095 KA & 5T AT A E A
Venture? R 552858 (15 71 &) EMERELE
LN
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current R g st RIS ABARRRD
or Non-current and related (BRI &) s IR ik B S
amendments to Hong Kong M AR
Interpretation 5 (2020)" st 2
B (=%
—EEN
Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment — (FHgRHEAD S YW KER
Proceeds before Intended Use? (3T A) R — 45
ikgipe
i 13 3K JH >
Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling (HawHERD 379 BREGL -
a Contract? (7T A%) Biia#z
B A2
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs (FlEMBEREELN) BT N\FZR
20182020 (BFTA) —EFF
P s B
B 5 2RI
I 47 B Bl a2
L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after Ist 1 o E T =F—H—HEHER
January, 2023. 2 AR RE T A Ko
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after Ist 2 W oE - AFE—H—HmHZM
January, 2022. 2 A B T AR 2 o
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to 3 A 8 2 H ) sk CH A% B iR 2 4
be determined. JE A ] AR 2 o
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st June, 4 AT E BN HBHAZB
2020. 2 4F BT AR B o
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after Ist 5 W —4F—H—H H%R
January, 2021. 2 A B T AR 2 o
The Directors of the Company anticipate that the application A R S TE R DL b A R RT
of all above new HKFRS and amendments to HKFRSs CFF o B B S A ME I Y e BB T A
will have no material impact on the Group’s consolidated 1% 35 A A TR AT RN R 2 AR A B
financial statements in the foreseeable future. R ERIAIIE N I
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
&% 0 W B 3 R B
For the year ended 31st December, 2020 # £ —~F ~FF - H =+ —HIEF &

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by HKICPA. For
the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements, information is considered material if such
information is reasonably expected to influence decisions
made by primary users. In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis, except for investment properties
and certain financial instruments, which are measured at
fair values, as explained in the accounting policies set out

below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the

consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on such
a basis, except for share-based payment transactions that
are within the scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based Payment”,
leasing transactions that are accounted for in accordance
with HKFRS 16 “Leases”, and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value in use in
HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets”.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st December, 2020 # & —~F “FF - H =+ —HILF &

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the

asset in its highest and best use.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as

follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity

can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the

asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or

liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st December, 2020 # £ —~F ~FF - H =+ —HIEF &

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved

when the Company:
D has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its

involvement with the investee; and

. has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to

one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group
loses control of the subsidiary. The results of subsidiary
acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss from the date of the
Group gains control until the date when the Group ceases

to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the

non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies

in line with those used by the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31st December, 2020 f# £ —.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

All significant inter-group transactions, balances, income

and expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which represent
present ownership interest entitling their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries

upon liquidation.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of net assets and
operations of another entity for which the agreement date
is before Ist January, 2005 represents the excess of the cost
of acquisition over the Group’s interest in the fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities of the relevant acquiree

at the date of acquisition.

From 1st January, 2005 onward, the Group will carry

goodwill at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is presented

separately in the consolidated statement of financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill arising
from an acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the acquisition. A
cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment annually, and whenever there is
an indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill
arising on an acquisition in a financial year, the cash-
generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment before the end of that financial year. When

the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st December, 2020 # £ —~F ~FF - H =+ —HIEF &

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Goodwill (Continued)

than the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss
is allocated to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the unit first, and then to the other assets of
the unit pro rata on the basis of the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is
recognised directly in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss. An impairment loss for goodwill is not reversed in

subsequent periods.

On subsequent disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit,
the attributable amount of goodwill capitalised is included in

the determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.

Interests in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but not control or joint control over those

policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities

require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and joint
ventures are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting. Under the
equity method, investments in associates or joint ventures are
carried in the consolidated statement of financial position at

cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
&5 0 T B W R B
For the year ended 31st December, 2020 # £ ~F “FF+ - H =+ —HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Interests in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the
associate or joint venture, less any identified impairment loss.
When the Group’s share of losses of an associate or a joint
venture exceeds its interest in that associate or joint venture
(which includes any long-term interests that, in substance,
form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate or
joint venture), the Group discontinues recognising its share
of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to
the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payment on behalf of that associate or

joint venture.

The associate’s and joint venture’s financial statements used
for the application of equity method of accounting are
prepared using uniform accounting policies with the Group

for transactions and events in similar circumstances.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence
that the interest in associates or joint ventures may be
impaired. When any objective evidence exists, the entire
carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is
tested for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 as a
single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of
value in use and fair value less costs to sell) with its carrying
amount. Any impairment loss recognised is not allocated to
any asset, including goodwill, that forms part of the carrying
amount of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment
loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent
that the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently

increases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st December, 2020 # £ —~F ~FF - H =+ —HIEF &

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Interests in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over
the cost of acquisition, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint
venture of the Group, profits or losses are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interest in the relevant associate or

joint venture.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an
associate or a joint venture, it is accounted for as a disposal
of the entire interest in the investee with a resulting gain
or loss being recognised in profit or loss. When the Group
retains an interest in the former associate or joint venture
and the retained interest is a financial asset within the scope
of HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”, the Group measures
the retained interest at fair value at that date and the fair
value is regarded as its fair value on initial recognition. The
difference between the carrying amount of the associate
or joint venture and the fair value of any retained interest,
and any proceeds from disposing of the relevant interests
is included in the determination of the gain or loss on
disposal of the associate or joint venture. In addition, the
Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to that associate or
joint venture on the same basis as would be required if that
associate or joint venture had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously
recognised in other comprehensive income by that associate
or joint venture would be reclassified to profit or loss on
the disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the Group
reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as
a reclassification adjustment) upon disposal/partial disposal

of the relevant associate or joint venture.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
&5 0 T B W R B
For the year ended 31st December, 2020 # £ ~F “FF+ - H =+ —HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when
a group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the financial instrument. All regular way purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation or

convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value except for trade receivables arising from
contracts with customers which are initially measured in
accordance with HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers”. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets or financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”)) are added
to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets
or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are
recognised immediately in the consolidated statement of

profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments (including all fees paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial asset or financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on

initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Bk 45 W 05 A Y ik

For the year ended 31st December, 2020 # £ —~F ~FF - H =+ —HIEF &

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are

subsequently measured at amortised cost:

o the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows;

and

. the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and

interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at
FVTPL, except that at initial recognition of a financial
asset the Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent
changes in fair value of an equity investment in other
comprehensive income if that equity investment is not held

for trading.

A financial asset is held for trading if:

. it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term; or

. on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of

short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as

a hedging instrument.

Tomson Group Limited 355 4 B A PR/ 7

A7 B S o R A L
B 3 B 5FBUOK (4)

&k T H (4)
W 05 %
B B 2 A e % T

T4 9 W P 2 B R LA B
1 05 A

o REREEMKAIEEG LB
SWMEAHNWEAE Z M B
e M

c ABRRFREEAIHELZ
B B RS A S R
BEAEZFIE -

Fir A7 At B B AR A P E
At AR E R - MEAE E UCHE R Y
BEEEZ HW > i A & 3 F
FRPE R E A 5 1 AT A Al s
128 R R HL At A T i 4R 2 8 LA
BN TPHZHKEES) -

il 75 & T FUMRAE > R B & E S

7

-

e HHEXETEAMAMEMH
B

o JRE UK RS I HL A 4 O
] 4 B 2 A oA 4wl TR A
wz—uk My WRAEME
A 22 2 B B RS B

o HARIEIEE RAR B A S B
WLREZMAETH -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

By 45 W 5 A Y

For the year ended 31st December, 2020 # & —~F “FF - H =+ —HILF &

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (Continued)

Amortised cost and interest income

)

3. AR R R
B 3 G G5HBUR )

&k T H %)

W B ()

W B B 2 4 R I %l

(#)

@)

Interest income is recognised using the effective

interest method for financial assets measured

subsequently at amortised cost. Interest income is

calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the

gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except for

financial assets that have subsequently become ¢

impaired (see below). For financial assets that

redit-

have

subsequently become credit-impaired, interest income

is recognised by applying the effective interest rate

to the amortised cost of the financial asset from the

next reporting period. If the credit risk on the ¢

redit-

impaired financial instrument improves so that the

financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, in

terest

income is recognised by applying the effective interest

rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial

asset

from the beginning of the reporting period following

the determination that the asset is no longer c

impaired.

(ii)

Equity instruments designated as at fair
value through other comprehensive incom

(“FVTOCI)

redit-

(ii)

(<]

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are

subsequently measured at fair value with gains and

losses arising from changes in fair value recognised in

other comprehensive income and accumulated in the

investment reserve and are not subject to impairment

assessment. The cumulative gain or loss will n

ot be

reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the equity

investments, and will be transferred to ret

earnings.

ained
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
&% 0 W B 3 R B

For the year ended 31st December, 2020 # £ —.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (Continued)

(i) Equity instruments designated as at fair

SFET A= o HIRFEE

A 3 B e o o I v
B 38 & wHEUOR ()

&k T H %)
Wb 05 % R (A1)

g 3 iy BN Tk
(#)

(i) H7RE 2y #4821 T A HE A

value through other comprehensive income
(Continued)

Dividends from these investments in equity
instruments are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss when the Group’s right
to receive the dividends is established, unless the
dividends clearly represent a recovery of part of the

cost of the investment.

(iii) Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or designated as FVTOCI
are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value
at the end of each reporting period, with any fair value
gains or losses recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss includes any

dividend or interest earned on the financial asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
&5 0 T B W R B
For the year ended 31st December, 2020 # £ ~F “FF+ - H =+ —HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected
credit losses (“ECL”) model on financial assets (including
trade and other receivables, amounts due from associates,
pledged bank deposits, bank deposit and cash and bank
balances) which are subject to impairment assessment under
HKEFRS 9. The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting

date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the relevant
instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL”)
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to
result from default events that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date. Assessment is done based on the
Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions
and an assessment of both the current conditions at the

reporting date as well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade

receivables individually.

For other financial assets, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
in which case the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is
based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a

default occurring since initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
&% 0 W B 3 R B
For the year ended 31st December, 2020 # £ —~F ~FF - H =+ —HIEF &

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as
at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on
the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without undue

cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased

significantly:

. an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal

credit rating;

o significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit

spread or the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

o existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to

meet its debt obligations;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the

operating results of the debtor; and

o an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of
the debtor that results in a significant decrease in the

debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

By 45 W 5 A Y

For the year ended 31st December, 2020 # & —~F “FF - H =+ —HILF &

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that

demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria
used to identify whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that
the criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in

credit risk before the amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers
an event of default occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates that
the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the

Group, in full (without taking into account any collaterals

held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default
has occurred when the financial instrument is more than
90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more lagging

default criterion is more appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
&% 0 W B 3 R B
For the year ended 31st December, 2020 # £ —~F ~FF - H =+ —HIEF &

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
of default that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes

observable data about the following events:

(@)  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the

borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due

event;

(¢) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise

consider; or

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter

bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings. Financial assets written off may still be
subject to enforcement activities under the Group’s
recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition event.
Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in the consolidated

statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
&5 0 T B W R B
For the year ended 31st December, 2020 # £ ~F “FF+ - H =+ —HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given default
is based on historical data and forward-looking information.
Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and probability-
weighted amount that is determined with the respective risks

of default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest rate determined
at initial recognition. For a lease receivable, the cash flows
used for determining the ECL is consistent with the cash
flows used in measuring the lease receivable in accordance

with HKFRS 16.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is
credit-impaired, in which case interest income is calculated

based on the amortised cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in the
consolidated statement of profict or loss for all financial
instruments by adjusting their carrying amount, with the
exception of trade and other receivables and amounts due
from associates where the corresponding adjustment is

recognised through a loss allowance account.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
&% 0 W B 3 R B
For the year ended 31st December, 2020 # £ —~F ~FF - H =+ —HIEF &

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another

entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is

recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument
which the Group has elected on initial recognition to
measure at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the investments reserve is not reclassified to
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, but is transferred

to retained earnings.

Financial liabilities and equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial

liability and an equity instrument.

Tomson Group Limited {5 B 4 [#] A FR /A 7

A7 B S o R A L
B 3 B 5FBUOK (4)

&k T H (4)
W 05 i ()
IR ¥ W 8 I A

EEEERRA R EZEAHE
AIEE T - A 5 B N B B
Fo H v A HE 2 48 O 1 BB K
(o] S e T ) — LRI > A ARy
B WO i R E

TP 3B e R — JE LA B B A T &
ZHBEER > ZEERAHEED
W B W A A A 2 2 B R AR

HTH e R — TR 4R B R R R
I 738 428 4% 2% - (H wH A H At 42 T i
fat B RA TR Z SER k
Al A £ &l M 2 a2 Bkl a
HEEAEENR I ELSSHEG
xoBgumERE RN -

W 05 £ 0 B It AR

MAEMBERETZHELRAT
BIRBERT L e M L2 hE
B A B A B A T H 2 G #64)
8 e



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

By 45 W 5 A Y

For the year ended 31st December, 2020 # & —~F “FF - H =+ —HILF &

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)
Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company
are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue

COSts.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instrument is
recognised and deducted directly in share capital for par
value and in share premium for total amount paid in excess
of par value. The same amount recognised in share capital
will be transferred from share premium to capital redemption
reserve. No gain or loss is recognised in consolidated
statement of profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or

cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities (including trade and other payables,
and borrowings) are subsequently measured at amortised

cost, using the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the obligations are discharged, cancelled or have
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in the consolidated statement of

profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
&% 0 W B 3 R B
For the year ended 31st December, 2020 # £ —~F ~FF - H =+ —HIEF &

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent
to initial recognition, investment properties are measured at
fair values. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair
value of investment property are included in the consolidated

statement of profit or loss for the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use or no future economic benefits is expected from
its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of
the property (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss in

the year in which the property is derecognised.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, including leasehold land
and buildings held for use in the production or supply
of goods or services, or for administrative purposes other
than construction work-in-progress, are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment

losses, if any.

Construction work-in-progress is stated at cost less any
identified impairment loss. When the construction is
completed and the asset is available for use, the related cost
is transferred to appropriate category of property, plant and

equipment and depreciated in accordance with the following

policy.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

By 45 W 5 A Y

For the year ended 31st December, 2020 # & —~F “FF - H =+ —HILF &

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

If a property becomes an investment property because its use
has changed as evidenced by end of owner-occupation, any
difference between the carrying amount and the fair value
of that item (including the relevant leasehold land classified
as right-of-use assets) at the date of transfer is recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in revaluation
reserve. On the subsequent sale or retirement of the property,
the relevant revaluation reserve will be transferred directly

to retained earnings.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
assets other than construction work-in-progress less than
their residual values over their estimated useful lives, using

the straight-line method.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item) is included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss in the year in which the item is

derecognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
&% 0 W B 3 R B
For the year ended 31st December, 2020 # £ —~F ~FF - H =+ —HIEF &

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Ownership interests in leasehold land and building

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests of
properties which includes both leasehold land and building
elements, the entire consideration is allocated between the
leasehold land and the building elements in proportion to

the relative fair values at initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can
be made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as “right-of-use assets”
under property, plant and equipment in the consolidated
statement of financial position except for those that are
classified and accounted for as investment properties under
the fair value model. When the consideration cannot
be allocated reliably between non-lease building element
and undivided interest in the underlying leaschold land,
the entire properties are classified as property, plant and

equipment.

Impairment losses on assets other than goodwill
and financial assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its assets to determine whether there is
any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the relevant asset is estimated in order to determine the

extent of the impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amounts of its assets are estimated
individually. When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount individually, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the

asset belongs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31st December, 2020 f# £ —.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment losses on assets other than goodwill
and financial assets (Continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. For corporate assets or
portion of corporate assets which cannot be allocated on a
reasonable and consistent basis to a cash-generating unit,
the Group compares the carrying amount of a group of
cash-generating units, including the carrying amounts of
the corporate assets or portion of corporate assets allocated
to that group of cash-generating units, with the recoverable
amount of the group of cash-generating units. In allocating
the impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable)
and then to the assets on a pro-rata basis based on the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit or the group of
cash-generating units. The carrying amount of an asset is
not reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if determinable)
and zero. The amount of the impairment loss that would
otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated
pro rata to the other assets of the unit or the group of
cash-generating units. An impairment loss is recognised

immediately in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised immediately in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
&% 0 W B 3 R B
For the year ended 31st December, 2020 # £ —~F ~FF - H =+ —HIEF &

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Properties held for sale/properties under
development (current asset)

Properties held for sale/properties under development
(current asset) are stated at the lower of cost/deemed cost
and estimated net realisable value. No depreciation charge is
made on the leasehold lands that included in the properties
held for sale/properties under development (current asset).
Properties under development which are intended for sale
in the ordinary course of business upon completion are

classified as current assets.

Properties under development are transferred to properties

held for sale upon completion.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost
of those assets until such time as the assets are substantially

ready for their intended use or sale.

Any specific borrowing that remain outstanding after the
related asset is ready for its intended use or sale is included
in the general borrowing pool for calculation of capitalisation
rate on general borrowings. Investment income earned on
the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the

borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss in the year in which they are

incurred.

Tomson Group Limited {5 B 4 [#] A FR /A 7

A7 B S o R A L
B 3 B 5FBUOK (4)

HEME BEDYE
(¥t B & 7E)

HEWE BRIV ERHEE)
PASCAE /A A (B R A it T 5
B E M 2 BAR SR - 5
AREWE ERDYERDE
2E) R N FHR AR o B
TR TAR A F W SE 8 o B i B
) 2 o SR T B

HRERTYEN R T REBERGEY
=

it B A

PR i~ R A E R B EE
HEEEZMEERA (W FE B
PR IR [H] B BE B¢ A H 458 € T i 51
HEREE) & A A R EE A
W B2 EE R BRI E &

T AR Bl B T LA K B E R B
R TS R MR R AT T 4 E
BEtA— A E - URHE— &
HEZ AR R - F5EHE R
AR B R R R P ik
Wz BEEWARBEERZMEH
BLAS AR

i A HE At £ 5 AR 3 FEATE HE
EZAERENNEGEHEBRF -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B A W5 B e Y

For the year ended 31st December, 2020 # & —~F “FF - H =+ —HILF &

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is

transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a goods or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of

distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of

the following criteria is met:

. the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the

Group performs;

. the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset

that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

. the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance

completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the

customer obtains control of the distinct goods or service.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group
has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is

due) from customer.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
&% 0 W B 3 R B

For the year ended 31st December, 2020 % 2 —.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a performance
obligation is measured based on output method, which is to
recognise revenue on the basis of direct measurements of the
value of the goods or services transferred to the customer
to date relative to the remaining goods or services promised
under the contract, that best depict the Group’s performance

in transferring control of goods or services.

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are those costs
that the Group incurs to obtain a contract with a customer
that it would not have incurred if the contract had not been

obtained.

The Group recognises sales commissions as an asset if it
expects to recover these costs. The asset so recognised is
subsequently charged to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss when the Group transfers to the customer of the

relevant goods to which the assets relate.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e. the
currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies

are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B A W5 B e Y

For the year ended 31st December, 2020 # & —~F “FF - H =+ —HILF &

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised
in consolidated statement of profit or loss in the period
in which they arise except for exchange differences on
monetary items receivable from or payable to a foreign
operation for which settlement is neither planned nor likely
to occur (therefore forming part of the net investment in the
foreign operation), which are recognised initially in other
comprehensive income and reclassified from equity to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss on disposal or partial

disposal of the Group’s interest in associates/a joint venture.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars (“HKD”)) at the
rate of exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting
period, and their income and expenses are translated at the
average exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates
fluctuate significantly during the period, in which case, the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are
used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of foreign currencies translation reserves
(attributed to non-controlling interests as appropriate). Such
exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect of that
operations attributable to the owners of the Company are
reclassified to the consolidated statement of profit or loss in

the period in which the foreign operation is disposed of.

A7 B S o R A L
B 3 B 5FBUOK (4)

Hb s ()

B W TH H 2 M S0 2 A T A A
[ A &5 5 18 i <5 e R o P B Wi B
JRE A5t it A1 3 5 T 5 Sl 4 st ) R
N A BE B A (IF] G A A 26 5 £
W@z 2 BWIHA ZE
i 25 FBR Ah > u% % BE L 2 BE K
TP JFC At 2 T i 2 N B R > A B
o i B A SR R Bk N R —
PRER - Pa S AR ]
MBMELZAFHREE -

AR A MBREZIME - A%
EIRGRAOE X7 8 gD SR PEE P
HHIOR 2 E R A LA L
Z B3 (A TT) » mH A K&
BH SC % 5% 4F B 2 3 HE R
B JE T 52 00 ] 22 M 4 K i ) 1
BRAN > RIS UL T > BE A H 22 5
HAET 2 8 MR o A2
ME e, 25 BH (AN A7) T 73 H At 4 TH7 Ui 4
AR N N A T
i 2t (e JF 422 B A SRR 2t B A (A
) o A2 FHE i R AN AL
A B % 26 5 2 EH R HE AR 2 BE G 22
R A g S 2 B 2 0 T R Ay
MELZGRERE -

Annual Report 2020 4 & 4F 43

108



109

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
&% 0 W B 3 R B

For the year ended 31st December, 2020 % 2 —.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation

Taxation represents the sum of the tax currently payable and

deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit before taxation
because of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible.
The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the

end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred
tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such deferred tax is not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the

taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and
interests in associates and joint ventures, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments and interests are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable

future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B A W5 B e Y

For the year ended 31st December, 2020 # & —~F “FF - H =+ —HILF &

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be

available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period when the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax
rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively

enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and

liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred taxes for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model,
the carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to be
recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption is
rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a business model
whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment property over
time. If the presumption is rebutted, deferred tax for such
investment properties are measured in accordance with the
general principles set out in HKAS 12 “Income Taxes” (i.e.
based on the expected manner as to how the properties will

be recovered).

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied to the same taxable entity by the same taxation

authority.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
&% 0 W B 3 R B

For the year ended 31st December, 2020 % 2 —.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Current tax and deferred tax are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, except when they
relate to items that are recognised to other comprehensive
income, in which case the current and deferred tax are also

recognised in other comprehensive income.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable

value. Cost is calculated using the weighted average method.

Share-based payment transactions

The fair value of share-based payments determined by
reference to the fair value of equity instruments granted at
the grant date is recognised as an expense in full at the grant
date when the share options granted vest immediately, with
a corresponding increase in share option reserve. If a director
or an employee chooses to exercise options, the related share
option reserve is transferred to share premium. When the
share options are forfeited after the vesting date or are still
not exercised at the expiry date, the related share option

reserve is transferred directly to retained earnings.

Leases
The Group as a lessee

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases of premises that have lease terms of
12 months or less from the commencement dates and do
not contain purchase option. Lease payments on short-term
leases are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over

the lease terms.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
&5 0 T B W R B
For the year ended 31st December, 2020 # £ ~F “FF+ - H =+ —HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of
the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of
the non-lease components, including contract for acquisition
of ownership interests of a property which includes both
leasehold land and non-lease building components, unless

such allocation cannot be made reliably.

The cost of right-of-use assets includes:

o the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liabilities;
. any lease payments made at or before the

commencement date, less any lease incentives received;

. any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

. an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group
is dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring
the underlying asset to be condition required by the

terms and conditions of the lease.

Except for those that are classified as investment properties
and measured under fair value model, right-of-use assets
are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of

lease liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
&% 0 W B 3 R B
For the year ended 31st December, 2020 # £ —~F ~FF - H =+ —HIEF &

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of their estimated useful lives and the lease

terms.

The Group presents right-of-use assets in “property, plant
and equipment”’, the same line item within which the
corresponding underlying assets would be presented if they

were owned.

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted for under
HKEFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments
to fair value at initial recognition are considered as additional

lease payments and included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises
and measures the lease liability at the present value of
lease payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating
the present value of lease payments, the Group uses the
incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. The lease payments include fixed payments

less any lease incentives receivables.

After the commencement dates of the leases, lease liabilities

are adjusted by interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets)
when the lease term has changed, in such case the related
lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised
lease payments using a revised discount rate at the date
of reassessment. The Group presents leases liabilities as a
separate line item on the consolidated statement of financial

position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

By 45 W 5 A Y

For the year ended 31st December, 2020 # & —~F “FF - H =+ —HILF &

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate
lease if the modification increases the scope of the lease
by adding the right to use one or more underlying assets
and the consideration for the leases increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increase in
scope and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-alone

price to reflect the circumstances of the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability based
on the lease term of the modified lease by discounting the
revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at the

effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities
by making corresponding adjustments to the relevant right-
of-use asset. When the modified contract contains a lease
component and one or more additional lease or non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in the
modified contract to each lease component on the basis of
the relative stand-alone price of the lease component and the

aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
&% 0 W B 3 R B
For the year ended 31st December, 2020 # £ —~F ~FF - H =+ —HIEF &

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessor

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee. All other

leases are classified as operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the terms of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset, and such
costs are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term except for investment properties measured

under fair value model.

Changes in considerations of lease contracts that were not
part of the original terms and conditions are accounted for
as lease modifications, including lease incentives provided

through forgiveness or reduction of rentals.

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted for under
HKEFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments
to fair value at initial recognition are considered as additional

lease payments from lessees.

The Group accounts for a modification to an operating lease
as a new lease from the effective date of the modification,
considering any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating
to the original lease as part of the lease payments for the

new lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

By 45 W 5 A Y

For the year ended 31st December, 2020 # & —~F “FF - H =+ —HILF &

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Retirement benefit cost

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes
are charged as expenses when employees have rendered

service entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All the short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the

benefit in the cost of an asset.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in Note 3, the Directors of the Company are
required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual

results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both

current and future periods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
&% 0 W B 3 R B

For the year ended 31st December, 2020 % 2 —.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the Directors of the
Company have made in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial

statements.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax arising from
investment properties that are measured using the fair value
model, the Directors of the Company have reviewed the
Group’s investment property portfolios and concluded that
the certain Group’s investment properties are held under a
business model whose objective is to consume substantially
all of the economic benefits embodied in the investment
properties over time. Therefore, in measuring the Group’s
deferred taxation on investment properties, the Directors
of the Company have determined whether the presumption
that the carrying amounts of investment properties measured
using the fair value model are recovered entirely through sale
is rebutted and the Group has recognised deferred tax on
changes in fair value of investment properties on the basis
that the deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that will
follow from the manner in which the Group expects at the
end of the reporting period to recover the carrying amount

of the investment properties.

Tomson Group Limited 355 4 B A PR/ 7

SFET A= o HIRFEE

BB A B R A wt
AU B R Z 3R R

(#)

W & 51 SR i SOH) B

UTP&ZI-‘/\?%$B"FEH%ZIK%@]’§
w UK B B AR H TR AR
B R AR 2 WA A R E KR
22 E RPN (W R A EEE BR AN (A
T3X0) e

B Wy S 208 4 B

R A S E R R B
EY EELEZIERBIAN S > A
NAERCHFHNAEBR ZHLEY
A - RS LU i
MHfER AR TREWRT &2
A8 VR A K ) 4 A B 22 S
BAFAEDHE - W RE
B BE Y 3 2K ST BLA
> AXFERCHE > EHAF
(ERCE P&/ ES YUK
75 3 H B T 2R Bl ] 2 A E
OB o B > A5 B A AR %

BN EHE B R E L 2R
& BEIE > B R AR E B IE K ER AT A
4 [ S o W OR W el LR W)
MR (E 2 T X S BB B 2



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31st December, 2020 f# £ —.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumption concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the date
of reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and

liabilities within the next financial year.

Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT”)

The Group is subject to LAT in the Mainland China.
However, the implementation and settlement of the tax
vary amongst different jurisdictions in various cities in the
Mainland China and certain subsidiaries of the Group has
not finalised its LAT calculation and payments with local tax
authorities in the Mainland China. Accordingly, significant
judgement is required in determining the amount of the LAT
and its related income tax provisions. LAT has been provided
at ranges of progressive rates of the appreciation value, with
certain allowable deductions including land costs, borrowing
costs and the relevant property development expenditures,
which are the key inputs in the calculation of the LAT,
the Group recognised the LAT based on management’s
best estimates. The final tax outcome could be different
from the amounts that were initially recorded, and these
differences will have impact on the income tax provisions
in the periods in which such tax is finalised with local tax
authorities. The carrying amount of Group’s LAT provision
at 31st December, 2020 was HK$4,049,949,000 (2019:
HK$3,539,334,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
&% 0 W B 3 R B
For the year ended 31st December, 2020 # £ —~F ~FF - H =+ —HIEF &

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Net realisable value assessment of properties under
development and properties held for sale

Properties under development and properties held for sale
are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Net realisable value is determined by reference to Directors’
estimates on future selling prices based on the prevailing
market condition. The future selling prices are estimated
by reference to the recent selling prices of similar properties
in the same project or relevant locations. In addition,
management estimated the future costs to complete the
properties under development by reference to the actual
development cost of the Group’s other completed projects,
adjusted by certain current market data. The Group has
properties under development and properties held for sale
in Shanghai and Macau, which exposes the Group to
certain price risk. If the net realisable value is less than the
cost, write-down of the properties under development and
properties held for sale has to be made. Management is
optimistic about the prospect of the Group’s investment in
the property sector and it has been cautious in formulating
and reviewing regularly the Group’s business plan. The
carrying amount of Group’s properties under development
and properties held for sale at 31st December, 2020
was HK$4,348,666,000 and HKS$1,547,246,000 (2019:
HK$3,388,166,000 and HK$1,828,696,000) respectively.

Tomson Group Limited {5 B 4 [#] A FR /A 7

BB A B R A wt
AU B R Z 3R R

()
fili 5 A WA R 2 32 R R
(41)

P ULEY T T E £
] 58 3L ¥ L0 A

B ) 2 TR B W) SE TR AR I
A VR 2 AR E R o s B
FEDE2EERBRFEBATH I
HHBEEEZ MGG EEE - HEE
8 75 88 2 2% [] — T8 H 55 AH B #h B 2
KiIY 2 2 B A& E & AL 5 -
o> EH g2 E AR EEEMD R
LI H 2 B WS 5% R m A A w58 i g%
JERY) 2 KRR THA > M %4
T B Fi 5 B R o AR
v T SR P R A ) 2
FrEWE - i A 4 18 T B A7 T A
JECRgE o ik AT 5 B R DA A > Al
IR E R E Y M o E
T A AR [ UG T 7 S 2 i
FHRE L4800 O R E S FT & B
M at A 2 R o R T
ZHEFT_H=T—H AEE
J& v ) 3 T B ) 3 2 BR T (B 4 I
144,348,666,000%5 7T 2 1,547,246,000
W It (& — JL4F : 3,388,166,000 45
It % 1,828,696,000%5 TG ) °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31st December, 2020 #% 2 —

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Valuation of investment properties

Investment properties are carried in the consolidated
statement of financial position at 31st December, 2020 at
their fair values, details of which are disclosed in Note 15.
The fair value of the investment properties was determined
by reference to valuations conducted on these properties by
an independent firm of qualified professional valuers (the
“Valuer”) using investment approach which is reflective of
current market conditions. Property valuation techniques
involve key inputs including reversionary yield, net rental
income derived from existing tenancies and annual unit
market rentals. This involves the making of certain
assumptions and the use of estimates in respect of the

reversionary yield by the Valuer.

The Group considers these valuations are the best estimates.
Changes to these assumptions may result in changes in
the fair value of the Group’s investment properties and
corresponding adjustments to the changes in fair value
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
The carrying amount of Group’s investment properties
at 31st December, 2020 was HK$8,311,639,000 (2019:
HK$7,846,533,000).

Valuation of unlisted equity instruments

Unlisted equity instruments are measured at fair values
being determined based on valuation techniques that involve
unobservable inputs including the marketability discounts.
Judgements and estimation are required in establishing
the relevant valuation techniques and the relevant inputs
thereof. The Group considers these valuations are the best
estimates. Changes in assumptions relating to these factors
could affect the reported fair values of the instruments. The
carrying amount of Group’s unlisted equity instruments
at 31st December, 2020 was HKS$257,967,000 (2019:
HK$264,117,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
&% 0 W B 3 R B
For the year ended 31st December, 2020 # £ —~F ~FF - H =+ —HIEF &

GROSS PROCEEDS FROM
OPERATIONS AND REVENUE

Revenue represents the aggregate of revenue under the

following headings:
(i) Property investment
—  represents revenue from property management
and rental income
(i) Property development and trading
—  represents gross revenue received and receivable
from sales of properties
(iii) PVC operations

—  represents the gross revenue from sale of PVC

pipes and fittings
(iv) Leisure

— represents the income from golf club operations

and its related services

(v) Media and entertainment

— represents the gross revenue received and
receivable from investment in the production of
live entertainment shows, film distribution and

related income

Gross proceeds from operations include the gross proceeds
from sale of and dividend income received and receivable
from financial assets at FVTPL under the business of
securities trading, in addition to the above aggregated

revenue.

Tomson Group Limited {5 B 4 [#] A FR /A 7
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B A W5 B e Y

For the year ended 31st December, 2020 # & —~F “FF - H =+ —HILF &

GROSS PROCEEDS FROM 5. W B KW A )
OPERATIONS AND REVENUE (Continued)
Revenue and gross proceeds from each type of business BB EB 2 A K88 I 5 S5
consist of the following: 55T 54506
2020 2019
ZRORAE —EF L
HK$’000 HK$’000
T# K TH# T
Revenue from sale of properties HEMEZWA 647,698 635,681
Revenue from sale of goods HEmE M Z A 353 1,444
Revenue from rendering of services from Bk e ER
golf club operations 1 A IR B 2 e A 42,315 41,517
Revenue from property management fee VBB A 37,008 33,664
Revenue from media and entertainment I R bR g SERS 2 A
business 3,244 5,959
Revenue from contracts with customers RHZE P& HZKA 730,618 718,265
Revenue from lease payments that are fixed [ % Fil & 17 g A 199,329 197,492
Total revenue BB 929,947 915,757

Gross proceeds from sale of and dividend

income from financial assets at FVTPL

Gross proceeds from operations

A EHFABRLZ
M B R E 2 iR
B b L Bl A

28 W A A

The Group’s revenue from contracts with customers are

mainly derived from the Mainland China except for revenue

from media and entertainment business which are derived in

Hong Kong and certain properties sales derived in Macau

as disclosed in Note 6.

6,356 22,300
936,303 938,057
AEFAAES GHZWA EZR

B A 2R B A i Y S
5 48 S5 W A R OIR P T W 3 8
& BRAh (AN Bt 5E6 B 7 %) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
&% 0 W B 3 R B
For the year ended 31st December, 2020 # £ —~F ~FF - H =+ —HIEF &

GROSS PROCEEDS FROM
OPERATIONS AND REVENUE (Continued)

Performance obligation for contracts with
customers

Revenue from property management fee is recognised over
time as income when the services and facilities are provided.
Other revenue from contracts with customers are recognised
at a point in time when customer obtains control of the
distinct goods and services. For the revenue from sale of
properties, the payment term is less than one year upon

signing the sales and purchase agreement.

Transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligation for contracts with
customers

Except for the revenue from property management fee, all
other revenue from contracts with customers are contracted

for periods of one year or less.

Contracts for property management services typically have
more than one year non-cancellable term in which the Group

bills a fixed amount each month according to the terms.

Tomson Group Limited {5 B 4 [#] A FR /A 7
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
&5 0 T B W R B
For the year ended 31st December, 2020 # £ ~F “FF+ - H =+ —HILFE

The Group’s operating and reportable segments are based on

information reported to the chief operating decision makers,

the Executive Directors of the Company, for the purposes of

resources allocation and performance assessment. In addition

to those set out in Note 5(i) to (v), the Group’s operating

segments under HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments” include

securities trading segment which is dealing in financial assets

5 JE Ok

A4 B 2 SR o BUS B
YRy Bl K S AR Al H B 1) £ 2
BERRE (MARFRPTES)
Wl 2 B R # g o BR B EESG) =
W) 5 > A SR BAR U K ¥ B 3R
BADFEEE I T E 2 BE
NREBFHRELAFEFAR

at FVTPL. W MBEEEZ B EEENE -
2020 R R
Property
Property  Development PVC Media and Securities
Investment ~ and Trading  Operations Leisure Entertainment Trading Total
B 1 [ 4Y
S REE  MBEE  WREER  REEE  BHHE it
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
T#x T T T T T T
GROSS PROCEEDS FROM #2135 S %
OPERATIONS
- SEGMENT REVENUE - KA 236,337 647,698 353 2,315 3,244 635 936,303
RESULTS 4
Segment profit (loss) AR (B8 128,969 139,885 (113) (14,745) (3,526) (7350 243,120
Other unallocated income EfATERA 257,555
Unallocated expenses AP EREL (53,244)
Finance costs HEER (40,716)
406,715
Share of results of associates [ YN S 2,598
Share of result of a joint venture Eii—-ZAELEL
£5 (2,552)
Profit before taxation W B i i 406,761
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
&% 0 W B 3 R B
For the year ended 31st December, 2020 # £ —~F ~FF - H =+ —HIEF &

6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continucd) 6. FEEP )
2019 —EF—h4E
Property
Property  Development PVC Media and Securities
Investment ~ and Trading ~ Operations Leisure  Entertainment Trading Total
ER 1 R
WERR ke BBEE O WAEE  REEE  B5EE &t
HK$°000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
T T T T i i T
GROSS PROCEEDS FROM #2135 %
OPERATIONS
- SEGMENT REVENUE - KA 31156 635,681 1,444 41517 5,959 22,300 938,057
RESULTS £
Segment profi (loss) AR (B 8) 153,322 189,344 6M) (2665 (2,110) 506 318,073
Other unallocated income EfAT A ERA 168,530
Unallocated expenses AT IR (50,987)
Finance costs HEER (61,195)
374421
Share of results of associates [ F- YNV S (3%9)
Share of result of a joint venture Eii—-ZAELEL
ES | 17330
Profit before taxation B B A 391,398

Except for the presentation of segment revenue which is
different from the reported revenue in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, the accounting policies of the
operating segments are the same as the Group’s accounting
policies described in Note 3. For details of revenue from
each type of business and reconciliation of segment
revenue to the Group’s revenue of HK$929,947,000 (2019:
HK$915,757,000), please refer to Note 5.

Segment profit (loss) represents the results by each segment
without allocation of central administration costs, directors’
salaries, share of results of associates and a joint venture,

other non-recurring income and expenses and finance costs.

Tomson Group Limited {5 B 4 [#] A FR /A 7

R Bl A B 4% 5 48 fi 3R Y R
HIA Z BH ) XARR S > &5
$H 2 B T IBUSK BB 5 3 T Y A 4R
Mz s BUORAM R o & 0 BER
WA Y FE IS B o Bl A B A 4R
W A 929,947,000 7T ( —F —JL4F
915,757,000%5 JG) & ¥f Bk 5F 1 #& i
Bt 5E5 ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31st December, 2020 #% 2 —

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

This is the measure reported to the Executive Directors
for the purposes of resource allocation and performance

assessment.

Segment assets and liabilities are not presented as the chief
operating decision makers review the consolidated financial
position of the Group as a whole to assess their performance.

Management focuses more on the results of the Group.

In October 2020, the Group commenced to liquidate a
subsidiary, which engaged in sale of PVC pipes and fittings
and represented the whole PVC operations segment of the
Group. The results for the year and the total assets and total

liabilities from this PVC operations were set out as follows:

By 45 W 5 A Y
SFEF A= HIRFEE

5 FE B )

I TG AT R ORI 2 i
%A‘E?F’TEZJH‘-'_E‘ °

BER R EFHA LA
ﬁa%ﬂk(ﬁu%ﬁﬁyzﬁﬁf
‘E@E’J%%fﬁ B 4 25 0 JH A
LA EHBRLEEAEH

ZEB -

REFFETA AEER GRS
— R B OB R R
23 ) (B A 2 o 2R ] 90 18 26 55 7 80)
EATIR S - LI B W5 4R B 36 4
MARE E KB AEEIIIT

2020 2019
TR ZE—ILE
HK$’000 HK$’000
T K T T
Revenue from sale of goods BB WA 2 WA 353 1,443
Cost of sales B4 B B A (45) (923)
Other income HoA e A 300 167
Selling expenses R (89) (165)
Administrative expenses 17 B (332) (687)
Profit (loss) before taxation W Bl I A1 (s 18) 187 (165)
Taxation BiIH - -
Profit (loss) for the year A B e A (5 18) 187 (165)
Other comprehensive (expense) income AF B Ath 4 T (
for the year K % (48) 16
Total comprehensive income (expense) AF B A TR AR (B 32)
for the year Fak 139 (149)
Total assets & 522 645
Total liabilities A (832) (1,094)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
&% 0 W B 3 R B
For the year ended 31st December, 2020 # £ —~F ~FF - H =+ —HIEF &

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continucd) 6. rFE R
Other information H Ath ¥ B}
Amounts included in the measure of segment profit or loss: AR BIEGZ EHAHE
Property
Property  Development PVC Media and  Securities
Investment  and Trading  Operations ~ Leisure  Entertainment ~ Trading  Unallocated Total
ES Bk

hE&E  REE  EBRE WARE  BARE BRI ATAN it
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000 HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000
Tt  TEx  TExX  T#x Tt Td#x  TEx  TEx

2020 “R0RE
Depreciation of property; plant and 413 ~ % R st i 41
equipment 7,080 9,350 0 20,298 122 - 8,188 45,044

Impairment losses on trade and other 2B (B ) PR R ok
receivables recognised (reversed) R A R R

ZBEER (1,230) - - - 2,052 - - 822
Loss on fair value changes of BREMELTHEH R
investment properties ELZER (12,329) = = = - - - (12,329)
Loss on fair value changes of BATEFARGZ
financial assets at FVTPL HEEEATHE
BRRELZER = = = - - (1342 - (1342
2019 “ENE
Depreciation of property, plant and 413 ~ B 5 R st ff 41 8¢
equipment 17 11,277 52 19436 122 = 8,552 39,456
Tmpairment losses on trade and other FEsR (B ) RERE oo ok
receivables recognised (reversed) T A B B 3
LW RS 1,529 = ] (248) - - - 1,074
Gain on fair value changes of TEMENTHEG M
investment properties ELZlg 17,226 = = = = 17,226

Information about major customers

For the year ended 31lst December, 2020, revenue from
three single customers in property development and trading
segment amounted to HK$203,437,000, HK$201,179,000
and HK$182,338,000 which contributed to approximately
21.88%, 21.63% and 19.61% respectively, of the Group’s

total revenue.

For the year ended 31st December, 2019, revenue from
three single customers in property development and trading
segment amounted to HK$181,416,000, HK$172,579,000
and HK$96,273,000 which contributed to approximately
19.81%, 18.85% and 10.51% respectively, of the Group’s

total revenue.

Tomson Group Limited {5 B 4 [#] A FR /A 7

HEERERZER

HE_ZF-LXFE+_H=+—HI
ERE S N ERR LS BT
KA=ZME—FFZ WA S 5
203,437,000% JC ~ 201,179,000 T
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B A W5 B e Y

For the year ended 31st December, 2020 # & —~F “FF - H =+ —HILF &

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Geographical information

The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong, Macau
and Mainland China.

The Group’s revenue from external customers based on the

location of the operations is as follows:

o1 JE & B (4)
Wb s gy FEOE OB

AR EH AR s - )T R
B A 3

AL AEINEF 2 WA 5
Hh B AR

2020 2019
TR OFRA —EF—JLE

HK$’000 HK$°000

T# T T

Hong Kong s 3,244 5,959
Macau G| 33,840 106,258
Mainland China Hh R A b 892,863 803,540
929,947 915,757

The Group’s non-current assets, excluding deferred
tax assets, amounts due from associates and a joint
venture, club debentures, other receivable, pledged bank
deposits and equity instruments at FVTOCI, amounted
to HK$8,781,800,000 (2019: HK$8,266,470,000). By
geographical location, the assets and operation of the
associates and a joint venture are substantially situated in

the Mainland China.

Analysis of Group’s revenue by each type of business is set

out in Note 5.

AL 2 I E)E E O
BiIHEE - BEAfAR—REER
E /NG 5 - S = N
O R IR AT AR R B R A T A R
A H Al A v e R 2 AR T H) & %8
£48,781,800,000 5 7T ( & — JL4F ¢
8,266,470,000%5 70 o Fichb [ &5
A F R — R EEREZEE N
WEET I EBEN R B AH -

A S B 5 S5 T A 2 0 A7 R
Wt 385 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

55 4 W05 i R B
For the year ended 31st December, 2020 # £ ~ & “FF+ - H =+ —HILFE
7. OTHER INCOME 7. H B A
2020 2019
ZRORAE —E—ILE
HK$’000 HK$’000
T K T T
Other income included: FHoAth U AL FE
Interest income B A 165,267 84,051
Dividends from equity instruments at 20N S B w5 HoAth 2
FVTOCI Wtn 2 A THZ
& Bl A
— listed - ki 10,227 10,227
— unlisted - JF b 15,819 16,907
8. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 8. M i Wt £ K i 18
2020 2019
RO —E-NLF
HK$’000 HK$°000
T# K Tt
Net impairment losses on trade and other il 58 B W B 5 I ik
receivables recognised oA B Wi R 3R 2
A s 18 3 (822) (1,274)
Net loss on disposal/write off of property, i i EY ¥ - WK F
plant and equipment Ko i i s 18 A (4,854) (67)
Net exchange gain FEE 2, A i {3 A 22,493 9,813
16,817 8,472
9. FINANCE COSTS 9. R &M
2020 2019
TR ORI —E—ILE
HK$’000 HK$’000
T K T T
Interest on borrowings A B 40,204 56,819
Interest on lease liabilities HE & EFE 512 398
Other finance charges HoAh it & 2 - 3,978
40,716 61,195
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
&5 0 T B W R B
For the year ended 31st December, 2020 # £ ~F “FF+ - H =+ —HILFE

10. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 10. B B i v A
2020 2019
SRORE E K
HK$’000 HK$000
T 78 T 50

Profit before taxation has been arrived at [ Bt 5if i A £ 40 B -
after charging:

Staff costs BT A 67,500 71,992
Retirement benefit scheme contributions AR AE A FEE A 1,156 5,857
Total staff costs e T A
(including Directors’ emoluments) (62 45 & 55 M <) 68,656 77,849
Auditors’ remuneration % BRI B 4 2,978 2,978
Depreciation of property, plant and W) 2 ~ W PE Do i s T B
equipment 45,044 39,456
Impairment of film distribution rights R B AT REWE
(included in cost of sales) (FTA 85 & LA = 150
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses i 78 /4 2 Fl 2 £ B WA 367,604 296,893
and after crediting: W EFFA
Gross rental income from investment WEYEM S A B
properties 199,329 197,492
Less: direct operating expenses from W AR E AR I A
investment properties that generated ZHEYEZ
rental income during the year HEEEAER (19,410) (12,460)
Net rental income from investment BEYEMES WA G
properties 179,919 185,032
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Bk 45 W 05 A Y ik

For the year ended 31st December, 2020 # £ —~F ~FF - H =+ —HIEF &

Other benefits include the market rentals of directors’ quarters

occupied by Madam Hsu Feng, Mr Albert Tong and Mr Tong Chi

Kar Charles as their residence.

Tomson Group Limited 355 4 B A PR/ 7

11. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 11. # KR B4
EMOLUMENTS
The emoluments paid or payable to Directors of the LA B AT T A T 3E S 2 4
Company as follows: T
Salaries,
allowances Employer’s
and other contribution
benefits to pension Total
Fees (Note (i) scheme emoluments
A W e
K 36 b 4 A i N
Name of Director HH RS W4 (Mt 3 @) it 3% Tl 4> 447
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T# L T# L T# L T# L
2020 SRR
Executive Directors P47
Madam Hsu Feng B &L
(Managing Director) (#E R ) - 14,875 - 14,875
Mr Albert Tong G Pias = 3,704 18 3,722
Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles % TRt - 8,228 18 8,246
Mr Yeung Kam Hoi (retired) 5 85 5 A (1 4T) = 2,384 = 2,384
Independent Non-Executive Directors S 3k AT E g
Mr Cheung Siu Ping, Oscar iR IEF B 171 = = 171
Mr Lee Chan Fai B S A 170 - - 170
Mr Sean S ] Wang EH R LA 170 = = 170
511 29,191 36 29,738
2019 “EFNE
Executive Directors AT
Madam Hsu Feng o oML+
(Managing Director) (FEF ) = 13,768 = 13,768
Mr Albert Tong & A SE A = 3,672 18 3,690
Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles W T E e AE = 5,427 18 5,445
Mr Yeung Kam Hoi s 1 56 A= - 2,408 - 2,408
Independent Non-Executive Directors B Ik AT g
Mr Cheung Siu Ping, Oscar g IR e A 171 = = 171
Mr Lee Chan Fai 2 B ST 170 - - 170
Mr Sean S ] Wang £ g %4 170 = = 170
511 25,275 36 25,822
Note (i): A

HAbAE A 5 et & £~ 5 T RISE A
R 1 3 50 A e A 9 3 AL B i T 8
4 o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B A W5 B e Y

For the year ended 31st December, 2020 # & —~F “FF - H =+ —HILF &

11. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’

EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

No Director waived any emoluments for both years.

There has been no inducement for Directors to join the

Group or compensation for the loss of office for both years.

The Executive Directors’ emoluments shown above were
for their services in connection with the management of
the affairs of the Group. The Independent Non-Executive
Directors’ emoluments shown above were their remuneration

as Directors of the Company.

Senior management only comprises the Executive Directors
listed above, so no separate disclosure for remuneration of

senior management is presented.

During the year, the five highest paid individuals of the
Group included four (2019: four) Executive Directors whose
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented above.
The emolument of the remaining highest paid individual is

as follows:

11. # F K EB M4

R T A 4 JBE A AR i S SEAT: AT

P < -

R T A 4F B2 R AR S B S AR
4 [ P2 I AT for 5% JBh 2l Ok R E
Tk 7 412 A AT fo7 4 4

P EREME R RNEA
R B A 4 [ o R P e I Y R
1M ST o bt 58 57 JF B AT 5 5F 2 P
B I AL B SF IE AR AR A R EE 0 R
P -

ACE BN B B SC#E S 2
YLAT E F o B R L BB AR
EHANBZHM -

CNIRI N LRSS a1 DN )
FEHA(CFE—ILE W) AfTHE
o HEZMEC N EXO TR
B o BT o B N 2 T
T

Salaries, allowances and other benefits

B~ R S A AR A

Retirement benefit scheme contributions AR AE A G E A 3K

2020 2019
SRORE F U
HK$°000 HK$°000
T Tl 7T
1,451 1,614

18 18

1,469 1,632
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Bk 45 W 05 A Y ik

For the year ended 31st December, 2020 # £ —~F ~FF - H =+ —HIEF &

12. TAXATION 12. BiIH
2020 2019
R ORI —EF -
HK$’000 HK$000
T# L TH# T
The charge (credit) comprises: TG R) BT
Mainland China FR R A Hb A 2E BT A5 B
Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”) 122,357 107,545
Mainland China LAT Hh ] (A Hi 1 0 (A 301,892 150,702
Macau Complementary Tax P B 45 A B 1,459 6,195
Taiwan withholding tax & 0 AL B - 6
Dividend withholding tax i PSENE &) 820 727
Overprovision in prior years A A BT R A 1 A
— Mainland China EIT (Note) — R A A 2E
T 45 Bt (B 7F) (5,028) (184,672)
— Macau Complementary Tax — WM BT 45wl T B (500) -
— Dividend withholding tax - BB A gsi (42,536) -
378,464 80,503
Deferred tax (credit) charge I HE B TH (4K %) B =2
(Note 28) (B 5 28) (151,825) 80,352
Total tax charges for the year AF B B TH B S M 226,639 160,855

The Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2019:
16.5%). No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been

made since there is no assessable profit for both years.

The Macau Complementary Tax is levied at 12% (2019:

12%) on the taxable income for the year.

The income tax rate of the subsidiaries in the Mainland

China is 25% (2019: 25%).

Note:

During the year ended 31st December, 2019, a subsidiary of the

Group cleared and settled LAT with local tax authorities and the

subsidiary became eligible to claim the related deduction for the

EIT recognised in respective previous years. As a result, the related

deferred tax asset of HK$187,179,000 recognised in previous years

was reversed to profit or loss. The same amount was credited to

current tax and presented as an overprovision in prior years.

Tomson Group Limited {5 B 4 [#] A FR /A 7

B v M 15 Bl AT E ) 2 Bl % £516.5%
(ZF—JLHF £ 16.5%) © A i i 4F
JE SN e E SR B v R > PR G NI 4 2
WA 15 BiAE O o

AN TR Y T A5 T B T DA RE BR B
A 212% (—F —JU4E 1 12%)
W o

T H B A Hb 2 BB 2 R BT A BB R
F25% (—F—JLAF : 25%) °

WEE-F-NLFT_HA=1+—HI
AERE AR AR B — 5K It 4N R BELE M Rl
55 300 P 4 A7 - b (BB S A M A
W% B B A R A A R A A AR B A R
A 2 Py 45 Bl AR FE AH B A BR o BRUE s
A A RE i ER 0 A BE IR 4E Bl JH G E
187,179,000 5 oG £ 13 [l 48 45 - HH[F &
FEFTA R BLIE > 36 2 51 A AR
JE R R A



For the year ended 31st December, 2020 f# £ —.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B A W5 B e Y

“EFEEV+ A= —HIHEE

Details of deferred taxation are set out in Note 28.

Note:

The domestic income tax rate is the income tax rate of the

jurisdiction where the major operations of the Group are based.

. TAXATION (Continued) 12. Bi IH c4)
The charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit before AR S B AR A 18 4 3R 2 BR BLAT
taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or loss as I Al 2 SRR R
follows:
2020 2019
—RoRE SR
HK$’000 HK$°000
T#x T¥ 7T
Profit before taxation (excluding share of B B AT Y6 A (A 62 455 FE Ay
results of associates and a joint venture) BEAR R —KEE&E
132 EH) 406,715 374,421
Tax at the domestic income tax rate of 25% 1% & Hb FIf 15 Bl Bl £ 25%
(2019: 25%) (Note) (ZF— L5 25%)
At BUIE (B 7E) 101,679 93,605
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised KERBIEE R
BB % 2 1,169 4,511
Tax effect of expenses that are not i 7 R B Tt ) IRE
deductible in determining taxable profit AN fEFBL B L 2
Bi B % & 20,138 41,214
Tax effect of income that is not assessable & 72 & 4 i Jic A RF 9 78
in determining taxable profit ERR B A Z
BB % 2 (17,919) (38,791)
Effect of tax rate in different jurisdiction A~ [] &) ¥ # [& 2
UES & (539) (6,712)
(Overprovision) underprovision of income  # 1E 4 £ fIf 15 Bt
taxes in prior years (HR B0 18 ) 43 A 2 (48,064) 2,507
Effect on Mainland China LAT B A b - Hb B8 (E B 2
2 169,355 63,788
Dividend withholding tax i S A S Bt 820 727
Withholding tax k€ - 6
Tax expense for the year 4 8 B TH BH 32 226,639 160,855

0 B B JE 2 A RS MY 28 e

WM BT S BB R A 4R B E S
Wi 2 B % HE I 2 P A5 BB o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
&% 0 W B 3 R B

For the year ended 31st December, 2020 # £ —~F ~FF - H =+ —HIEF &

13.

14.

DIVIDEND

In 2020, a dividend of approximately HK$216,813,000
(2019: HK$354,785,000) in aggregate was paid to
shareholders in respect of the interim dividend for the year
ended 31st December, 2019 (2019: interim dividend for the
year ended 31st December, 2018).

Subsequent to the end of reporting period, the Directors
have declared payment of an interim dividend of 5.50 HK
cents per share (2019: 11 HK cents per share) amounting
to approximately HK$108,406,000 for the year ended 31st
December, 2020 (2019: HK$216,813,000).

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable

13.

14.

B B

RoF_EZFRNERMEE F
—LE+ A=+ —HILEE ZF
HRE(CE-NE ERMEE
—E-NFT_HA=ZtT—HILFE
2R A3545216,813,000 T
(=& —JUH 1 354,785,000 7C) T
3R -

PGB RRE > EHREREE -F
—EFET_HZT—HIEFEZH
1 S 5. 509 il (& —JLAF -
BRI > S FEA)75108,406,000
6 (2 & — JL4F 1 216,813,000
JG) °

B ot £ 0

A 0% I HE 45 1 AN BB A 4 L AR

to the owners of the Company is based on the following BA TIRELUT & Bt &
data:
2020 2019
“RORAE —EF-RE
HK$°000 HK$’000
T#x T 7T
Earnings #A
Profit for the year attributable to owners 4 A HI DA 5t B8 1K
of the Company for the purposes of FARR M Z AT
basic earnings per share HE 5 R AN ME AL I8 A 174,993 172,513
Number of shares By ¥ H
Weighted average number of ordinary AR B AR B 2
shares for the purpose of basic earnings o A R HE T 34 B
per share 1,971,025,125 2,008,872,983

No diluted earnings per share is presented as there was no

potential ordinary share in issue during both years.

Tomson Group Limited {5 B 4 [#] A FR /A 7

PR T 8] 4F 52 42 8 T A A i 9k

7o WO e 5250 A SR AR A



For the year ended 31st December, 2020 f# £ —.

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

By 45 W 5 A Y

15. E Y E

“EFEEV+ A= —HIHEE

2020 2019
Fair value TR R —E —NAE
hierarchy HK$’000 HK$°000
AR 3 T#x T ¥ o0
AT FAIR VALUE 2T
At 1st January w—H—H 7,846,533 7,980,161
Additions s E 8,654 =
(Loss) gain on fair value 78 V- 55 Bl R E A 2
changes (5 18) Wi 42 (12,329) 17,226
Exchange adjustments e 54, ) % 468,781 (150,854)
At 31st December wt+—HA=+—H Level 3
5B =4 8,311,639 7,846,533

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during the

year.

The Group’s investment properties are held outside Hong

Kong and are held under operating leases.

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at
31st December, 2020 has been arrived at on the basis of
a valuation as at that date carried out by the Valuer not
connected with the Group. The valuation was arrived by
capitalising the net rental income derived from existing
tenancies with due allowance for reversionary income
potential of the properties on a recurring basis. This involves
the making of certain assumptions and the use of estimates
in respect of the reversionary yield by the Valuer. As a result
of the valuation, an unrealised loss on property valuation of
approximately HK$12,329,000 was charged (2019: gain of
HK$17,226,000 was credited) to the consolidated statement
of profit or loss for the year ended 31st December, 2020.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest

and best use of the properties is their current use.

The Group’s property interests held under operating leases to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are measured
using the fair value model and are classified and accounted

for as investment properties.

AR S EERASE = SR A 5 = A
o

A 55 1 B BE P 3 A T BT AN Fr
Ao Wi EHERA -

AEEZHEYERN_F _TF
T AZt —HZ A E T iR E A
A [5] ABE 48 B8] 38 (00 A (B B 0B AT 10
HiG A EEAR - (5EIER
e HE R E AR bR B BLA &
ZAGWAFEES - W R
BEF AW T8 T o 09 KA (H B
PR A TR 5 B ff A A B8 B ik
mRZANFE - IMBIHEZHER > W
EAGME 2 oK 5 B 48 912,329,000
BILCRBE _F_FF T -H=
T—HIEFEZ & A E S R NR
(= —JL4F 5 AR £517,226,000
ot e

st WEZ N FEFE > MEZ &K
e K dee AR A R 4 L H ET R & e

AL AR A A - ARG
& BAEEA Y E R Y R
DA/ SR =R V) i M 5 DN
FIAE R BLE Y 2E -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
&% 0 W B 3 R B
For the year ended 31st December, 2020 # £ —~F ~FF - H =+ —HIEF &

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

The following table shows the valuation techniques used in

determination of the fair values of the investment properties.

15. &YX @)

2 BT S R Ve AT
{8 2248 (1 1 -

Fair value Reversionary yield
A 15 5 0 2
Description 2020 2019 Valuation techniques 2020 2019

C.L

CRORE R NE SN

HK$000  HK$000
T#x T8 T

ZRIRE T AE

Commercial properties

= not developed by the Group 348,506 333,333

[lick7E 3

— 3l I A 4 R R

Commercial properties

BEIT A

Investment approach

2.75% 2.75%

Investment approach

— developed by the Group 1,418,800 1,340,157 6.25% — 8.50%  6.25% — 8.50%
[lik7E 3 S PTE:N

— M A G R
Residential properties 5,986,249 5,648,770 Investment approach 0.75% 0.75%
EEYE S PTE:N
Industrial properties 558,084 524,273 Investment approach 6.75% 6.75%
TP £ E T A

Notes:

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

8,311,639 7,846,533

The key inputs of investment approach are: (a) Reversionary
yield; (b) Net rental income derived from existing tenancies;

and (c) Annual unit market rental.

Reversionary yield takes into account annual unit market
rental and unit market value of the comparable properties
and adjustment factors for location and other individual

factors such as road frontage, size of property and facilities.

The slight increase in the reversionary yield would result in

a significant decrease in fair value, and vice versa.

The increase in net rental income derived from existing
tenancies or annual unit market rental would result in an

increase in fair value, and vice versa.

Tomson Group Limited {5 B 4 [#] A FR /A 7

() BEHFRZEEMAEES: )
B R ORAEAHE 2
FH & e A5 5 B (o) B8 T 35 4F
FEAR 4 o

() 18 SRR O R T R 2R
LA T 35 AR B AH < K B T ME
(B - DB T A i 0 o 48 DR R % H
At AR 90 PR 2R (4 B 7 %~ 0 3
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
&5 0 T B W R B
For the year ended 31st December, 2020 # £ ~F “FF+ - H =+ —HILFE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. Y3 ~ W B Mk fhi

Furniture,
fixtures and

Leasehold Construction  equipment
land and Plant and work-in- and motor
buildings equipment progress vehicles Total
B RE
iNER ) Bt fi
REE BRERRHE  ERIRE ] Y ]
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
T T#x T T T
At cost A
At st January, 2019 (restated) REF-NE-A—H(KEF) 636,360 25979 4,627 109,733 776,699
Additions NE - 131 - 9,161 9,292
Written off ik - - - ) )
Disposals ik - - - (1,286) (1,286)
Exchange adjustments I 5 90 % (12,275) (491) (87) (1,877) (14,730)
At 31st December, 2019 REZF-NE+ZA=1—H 624,085 25,619 4,540 115,727 769,971
Additions NE 73,371 11 - 20,296 93,678
Written off fil 85 (24,804) - (4,811) (7,304) (36,919)
Disposals & = (414) = (717) (1,131)
Exchange adjustments HE 5. % 38,060 1,530 271 6,018 45,879
At 31st December, 2020 REFZZEFZA=1+—H 710,712 26,746 - 134,020 871,478
Accumulated depreciation and it 47 96 % 0 41
impairment
At Ist January, 2019 RZF-NE—A—H 438,010 22,282 - 79,434 539,726
Provided for the year G 27,730 407 - 11,319 39,456
Eliminated on written off 3 5 = = - (4) 4)
Eliminated on disposals 1% B 8 = = = (1,150) (1,150)
Exchange adjustments I 5 o (8,640) (421) = (1,371) (10,432)
At 31st December, 2019 RZF-NE+ZA=+—H 457,100 22,268 - 88,228 567,596
Provided for the year R 30,048 28 - 14,768 45,044
Eliminated on written off §il 5 I 2 8 (24,804) - - (7,304) (32,108)
Eliminated on disposals L = (372 = (659) (1,031)
Exchange adjustments [E 5 7 % 28,014 1,330 - 4,431 33,775
At 31st December, 2020 REFZFHEFZA=1+—H 490,358 23,454 - 99,464 613,276
Carrying values I i
At 31st December, 2020 REZFZZEFZA=1+—H 220,354 3,292 - 34,556 258,202
At 31st December, 2019 REF-NE+ZA=+—H 166,985 3,351 4,540 27499 202,375
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
&% 0 W B 3 R B
For the year ended 31st December, 2020 # £ —~F ~FF - H =+ —HIEF &

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. Y13E ~ Wb B ok i o)

(Continued)
The Group’s leasehold land is situated outside Hong Kong. AL B 2 AL 7 R U B b o
Depreciation of the above property, plant and equipment PRiEg TRELIAh » B2 ~ Ws
except for construction work-in-progress, is provided to their S M o ¥ LA AT AR - LU
estimated residual values over their estimated useful lives by g 4 A0 S5 B R 0 HL A R B E 4
equal annual instalments at the following rates per annum: WEHR T8 > ERWT
Leasehold land and 2% to 4% or over the terms HE L& 2%24%3HH
buildings of the relevant leases M & 4 H
Plant and equipment 9% to 13% & K B 9% F13%
Furniture, fixtures and 18% to 40% BIE - KB 18%F40%
equipment and motor B 5% i I
vehicles B
The Group as lessee A £ A Ak BN
Right-of-use assets (included in the property, plant M AEE E GEAE - BB K&
and equipment) i )
Leasehold Leasehold
lands buildings Total
Al HERT Ha
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
T#x T#x T#x
As at 31st December, 2020 IS S S
+=A=+—H
Carrying amount M T (B 17,855 19,610 37,465
As at 31st December, 2019 B E =L
+-H=+—H
Carrying amount M T {H 22,210 4,297 26,507
For the year ended BE L E
31st December, 2020 +TZA=t—HIEFE
Depreciation charge 18 B X 6,037 7,739 13,776
For the year ended BE_F-NHFE+TH
31st December, 2019 =+ —HIEFE
Depreciation charge 31 8 B 32 5,618 8,171 13,789

Tomson Group Limited {5 B 4 [#] A FR /A 7



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

By 45 W 5 A Y

For the year ended 31st December, 2020 # & —~F “FF - H =+ —HILF &

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)
The Group as lessee (Continued)

Right-of-use assets (included in the property, plant
and equipment) (Continued)

16. Y3 ~ W5 B w i o)

A AR AR 2y R LN ()

R E R GEAYE - WK
we i) (4

2020 2019

R ORAE —EF-RE

HK$’000 HK$°000

T# L T¥ 7T

Total cash outflow for leases HE B 40t A 8,470 8,569
Addition to right-of-use assets NEMAEEE 23,051 -

For both years, the Group leases office and director’s quarter
for its operations. Lease contracts are entered into for fixed
terms from one to three years. Lease terms are negotiated on
an individual basis with different terms and conditions. In
determining the lease term and assessing the length of the
non-cancellable period, the Group applies the definition of
a contract and determines the period for which the contract

is enforceable.

In addition, lease liabilities of HK$19,390,000 (2019:
HK$4,297,000) are recognised with related right-of-use
assets of HK$37,465,000 (2019: HK$26,507,000) as at 31st
December, 2020. The lease agreements do not impose any
covenants other than the security interests in the leased assets
that are held by the lessors. Leased assets may not be used

as security for borrowing purposes.

TP A 4 B > A 8 gl EL A A
[E 52 AH ) — 2= = 4R o B EKTY
1 20 R AS [R] A 3 Ao 1 20 Tl i
T 7o E AEL ) B ¥ ik AN R 3RS )
ZRER > AEHRMEH 2 ER
Sf7 i %€ AT 8 i BT A A Z W o

ok RoFZFEFETH =1 —
H > O R8 BL( F & 7 37,465,000
W70 (ZF—JLAF 1 26,507,000%5 7T)
AH B 2 TH & £1519,390,000 % 70 (—
F—JLAE ¢ 4,297,000% 7C) o & W
e M7 A e A o] B2 55 > ME AR A
FrFe 2 B & E 2 K RE %5 bR
Gh o HEEEANBIERMERIER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
&% 0 W B 3 R B
For the year ended 31st December, 2020 # £ —~F ~FF - H =+ —HIEF &

17. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 17. # R P 3
2020 2019
R R —FE-NEF
HK$’000 HK$°000
T#x T ¥ 7T
At 1st January, at cost W—H—H A 3,388,166 3,449,254
Additions N 70,690 4,116
Transfer from deposit paid for land use right 5 % 5 + Hi i ] #E ~
(Note 18) E A AT 4 (B 3E18) 391,039 -
Transfer from prepayment % B AT RIE
(Note 24(a)) (Bt 5F 24(@)) 296,349 -
Exchange adjustments e b2, ) % 202,422 (65,204)
At 31st December, at cost wt+t—_HA=+—H>
A 4,348,666 3,388,166

18.

Properties under development under current assets of
approximately HK$4,348,666,000 (2019: HK$3,388,166,000)
are not expected to be completed within twelve months from

the end of reporting period.

DEPOSIT PAID FOR LAND USE
RIGHTS

During the year ended 31st December, 2020, the real estate
ownership certificates of the land use rights of land lots
located in Pudong New Area, Shanghai, the Mainland China
had been obtained, therefore the deposit paid for land use
rights of HK$391,039,000 (2019: Nil) was reclassified to
properties under development. Details are disclosed in Note

35(a).

Tomson Group Limited {5 B 4 [#] A FR /A 7

18.

MREBEERAMBRESYYELY
4,348,666,000% TG (= F — JL 4 :
3,388,166,000 %5 70 ) TAFTAS € A # 15
1117 S A ol e B S TN - 95 A

+ b 5 e 2 © AT ET &

WRE-_Z-FZHE+_HA=1+—H
IEAFEFE A > A7 v B O b 96 T R
BB R 2 b M (A 2 R
By B S A HRUAS >  Hfe RE
Z BT ET4:391,039,000 % 00 ( —F—
NFE - HCEHTBEE2ERTY
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B A W5 B e Y

For the year ended 31st December, 2020 # & —~F “FF - H =+ —HILF &

19. GOODWILL

=
il

HK$°000
T#
Cost and carrying value I A B S Thi L
At 1Ist January, 2019, 31st December, 2019 MN_F—LFE—H—H -
and 31st December, 2020 “E-RETZHA=T—H K
SECEREFTH=1+—H 33,288

Goodwill is allocated to the cash-generating unit of a wholly
owned subsidiary which is engaged in property development

and trading activities.

During the years ended 31st December, 2020 and 2019, the
management of the Group determined that there was no

impairment of the cash-generating unit containing goodwill.

The recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit was
measured based on fair value less costs to disposal calculation
by reference to observable market price using market
comparable approach for similar properties, adjusted for
location and other individual factors such as road frontage
and size. It was determined by management’s past experience,
based on the estimated gross profit from selling of properties,

taking into the consideration prevailing market price.

[GE i Ve S8 - § o) /ATl
R ga S R VAR VRNE R 77

WEE FER A
A= — BIRARRE » A B B
2 7 ol 9 4 2 WA R
ft -

B 4 7 AR B0 B9 AT o Il 4 T AR
35 T B T 5 AR AR RS DL 4 2E LU
WG WEEEZ2E - B &
At AR R R ER (i Bl 2 R R
/IN) R W B A% DL 8 B B A
w5 R R o R Y
RSB PR TE - AR PR Y 36 B B0 T A
BAFHE > FFRE B
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Bk 45 W 05 A Y ik

For the year ended 31st December, 2020 # £ —~F ~FF - H =+ —HIEF &

The amounts due from associates are unsecured, interest free

and have no fixed repayment terms.

In the opinion of the Directors, the amounts due from
associates will not be repayable within twelve months from
the end of the reporting period and accordingly, the amounts

have been classified as non-current assets.

Details of principal associates at 31st December, 2020 are
included in Note 39.

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s
associates that are not individually material is set out below.
The summarised financial information below represents
amounts shown in the associates’ financial statements

prepared in accordance with HKFRSs.

Tomson Group Limited {5 B 4 [#] A FR /A 7

20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 20. R BB w2 Bt
2020 2019
—gmRE SR
HK$’000 HK$°000
T T T
Cost of unlisted investments in associates i FF T ¥ 4 A\ 7 2
& A 7,071 7,071
Share of post-acquisition losses, net of JRE A A B 4% fs 18 >
dividend received B ER Bl &k B (5,514) (8,112)
Exchange difference arising from i 58 Wk N A RF EE AR 2
translation of associates [ 50, 2= %8 1,887 1,512
3,444 471
Amounts due from associates Wi 2 /s F] R 3K 10,781 10,788
14,225 11,259

S ONE T U W

B A BE A A KGR AR
o IR —AE A AR o FE
% R E SR IR i B E -

FEBREARNR_-E_FEFE+H
=+ —H Z 5 R EE39 o

A7 B A 55 1A J S AR A E K 2 T
BTG SRR -
VAT B B R ML 2S48 B A F
R R i 98 S 5 i i Y B A R RY
S 5 3R B s R e



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

By 45 W 5 A Y

For the year ended 31st December, 2020 # & —~F “FF - H =+ —HILF &

20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Coninued) 20. 7 Bk 2 W) 2 HE A o)
The associates are accounted for using the equity method in A 55 W B i 3R W A s ] DL RE
these consolidated financial statements. Ik AR o
2020 2019
—RoRE SE 0K
HK$’000 HK$000
T# L Tt
Total assets HEE 40,383 40,124
Total liabilities R (35,216) (45,731)
Net assets (liabilities) FEE (A1) 5,167 (5,607)
Group’s share of associates’ net assets A 4 [ AL B s ARl 2
FEE 3,444 471
Revenue e A 5,788 10,289
Profit (loss) for the year FEERA (EE) 9,638 (1,337)
Other comprehensive income (expense) At A T Wi 4 (BH SZ) 1,136 (213)
Group’s share of associates’ profit (loss) AR 4E ] 4E I A
for the year 28 ) 2 i A (kG 18) 2,598 (353)
Group’s share of associates” other A 4L [ 47 B AL W
comprehensive income (expense) N ) 22 A A T K R
for the year (BH 32) 375 (43)
Group’s share of associates’ total A 4 [ AR B E AL B
comprehensive income (expense) NG AT
for the year (BH 32 ) 48 4H 2,973 (396)
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Bk 45 W 05 A Y ik

For the year ended 31st December, 2020 # £ —~F ~FF - H =+ —HIEF &

21. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE

21. R — KB XL

2020 2019
—gm®E ST
HK$°000 HK$’000
T8 T
Cost of unlisted investments in a =K LEHEGERHE
joint venture ZBE A 130,185 130,185
Share of post-acquisition profits, net of R A s i 4% v A
dividend received 2B Ok i B 9,671 28,625
Exchange difference arising from ME—FE &R
translation of a joint venture FE A 2 T B, 25 B 35,371 24,993
175,227 183,803
Amount due from a joint venture —RXEBEMERK 513 513
175,740 184,316

The amount due from a joint venture is unsecured, interest

free and has no fixed repayment terms.

In the opinion of the Directors of the Company, the amount
due from a joint venture will not be repayable within twelve
months of the end of the reporting period and accordingly,

the amount has been classified as non-current assets.

Details of a joint venture at 3Ist December, 2020 are
included in Note 39.

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s
joint venture is set out below. The summarised financial
information below represents amounts shown in the joint
venture’s financial statements prepared in accordance with

HKEFRSs.

The joint venture is accounted for using the equity method

in these consolidated financial statements.

Tomson Group Limited {5 B 4 [#] A FR /A 7

AAFEERE > —HKEEMRERX
OIS & R R 8 A
R - I AT B IR R
BEE -

RoZ-FE+A=+ Al
56 Y 3 R R 739 o

ARAEHSERENYEER
BEZHI AN o DUT B85 6 R A 2
JI98 & B AR SR IR (U B S
e Q) A BB S AR BT R R

A B B R A SR DARE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
&5 0 T B W R B
For the year ended 31st December, 2020 # & —~F “FF - H =+ —HILF &

21. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE 21.
(Continued)

Shanghai Jinjiang Tomson Hotel Co., Ltd
(“Jinjiang Tomson Hotel”)

2 F

—KAEEFEIMLS

¥ AT B B K
£ BR 2w ([88 0 % B3 i 1)

2020 2019

e

HK$’000 HK$’000

T2 7t

Current assets B E 313,632 336,405
Non-current assets Ik i B & 82,336 88,226
Current liabilities i B A A 45,515 57,025

The above amounts of assets and liabilities include the

FAtEE KA EEBEAE T &

following: JH
2020 2019
—gmmE SR
HK$’000 HK$°000
T# L AR
Cash and cash equivalents He kB4 %HEEA 295,345 311,219
Current financial liabilities (excluding trade i B B 5 AR (SR 4
and other payable and accruals) JEAH B 5 B ik ~ HoAth
JRE AT B 3k B T 4R
#H) 406 4,004
Revenue A 92,646 206,385
(Loss) profit for the year B (s 18) i A1 (5,104) 34,659
Other comprehensive income (expense) A B At 4 T U AR
for the year (BH 32) 20,755 (7,777)
Total comprehensive income for the year AF B A TR 4 AR AR 15,651 26,882
Dividend received from a joint venture KR —REEREZ
iz B 16,402 14,284
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Bk 45 W 05 A Y ik

For the year ended 31st December, 2020 # £ —.

21. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE 21.

(Continued)

Shanghai Jinjiang Tomson Hotel Co., Ltd

(Continued)

The above profit for the year includes the following:

FoFEFTAS AL

op

B

)

E
R AW )
t

~RAA LR

Z HE 1

5 8L % B K g

7t 4R JE 6 A B4 T 51 45 0H

2020 2019

“RoRE S NE

HKS$’000 HK$’000

T2 T 5t

Depreciation 8 8,846 8,140
Interest income PSRN 9,439 10,539
Income tax (credit) charge Fr 15 B (3K ) B 32 (67) 11,646

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial

information to the carrying amount of the interest in Jinjiang

b Al S 5 R M B A A B B
e % N R BV B S 2 HE

Tomson Hotel recognised in the consolidated financial % B H T 2 R
statements:
2020 2019
—goRE ST
HK$’000 HK$000
T# L Tt
Net assets FEE 350,453 367,606
Proportion of the Group’s ownership AEEE 2 BEH RS
interest LE il 50% 50%
Carrying amount of the Group’s interest A< 4 [H # £ 2 i 1 {H 175,227 183,803
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

By 45 W 5 A Y

For the year ended 31st December, 2020 # & —~F “FF - H =+ —HILF &

EQUITY INSTRUMENTS AT
FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

22. &0 P AH 5 A K Ath 42 i

Wt 2 e A TR

2020 2019
RO ZE—ILE
HK$’000 HK$’000
T K T T
Equity instruments at FVTOCI &N EFEA HAth
(Note (i): AN 2 AR T B
(Kt 7E @) -
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong R S
A 78 % 150,849 125,282
Unlisted equity investments BT RA K E
(Note (ii) (B 7 (i) 257,967 264,117
408,816 389,399

Notes:

(i) The above equity investments are not held for
trading, instead, they are held for long-term strategic
purposes. The directors of the Company have elected
to designate these investments in equity instruments

as at FVTOCI.

(i)  The unlisted equity investments represent investments
in private entities incorporated in the Mainland China
mainly engaging in property investment business. The
valuation techniques and assumptions used in the

determination of the fair value is set out in Note 30(c).

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Financial assets at FVTPL represented equity securities held
for trading which are listed in Hong Kong.

23.

Wit -

) EABASEIIFREEE
M2 F5 F R R H A - A
NAEHORERZERE
T8 %€ iy 1% O (EH FHAH A 42
TS 4 2 BEAS T B -

(i) FE LA B E By B E R E
A b B S K E A E Y
EREEFTWRAANMSE - &
FE 0N B BT R R 2 A B $2 1l
KA s #7 Bit 5E30(c) e

%O PR FHA 6 %5 2 W 5
¥

BN EF AR i 2 BB B E 1R
T B 2 1 4 B AS R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
&% 0 W B 3 R B
For the year ended 31st December, 2020 # £ —~F ~FF - H =+ —HIEF &

24. NET CURRENT ASSETS

@

Trade and other receivables and
prepayments

The general credit term of the Group given to trade
customers is 60 days. A longer credit period may be
granted to customers with long business relationship.
The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its

outstanding receivables to minimise credit risk.

Included in trade and other receivables and
prepayments are trade receivables, net of allowance for
credit losses, of HK$52,000 (2019: HK$1,035,000)
and their aged analysis based on invoice date as at the

end of the reporting period is as follows:

24. i B R B HHE
(@) MEMCE MRk ~ Hth WK

AR sk S 7R °F 3k

ALEGTHESEF 2—
A S 260 H o A< 42 8 ok €r
MTARMEBRAZEF
BRZEEY - AEHTH
8 1 R A Y B AR A o B R
B P LB AR B L B -

TE ME W B 5 B 3K~ At 1 i
HR B R LA K TR T B 4 R
B 5 R R (RE 0B {5 5 s 18 48
#5) 52,0009 JC (—F — JL4F -
1,035,000 %5 76) > H 74 #4511
AR P8 4 5 H 2 B A
m:

2020 2019

R ORA ZF =LA

HK$’000 HK$°000

T T T

0 — 3 months E&E =M AH 52 1,025
4 — 6 months ES AN (T =! - =
7 — 12 months t&z+=MAH - 10
52 1,035
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
&5 0 T B W R B
For the year ended 31st December, 2020 # £ ~F “FF+ - H =+ —HILFE

24. NET CURRENT ASSETS (Continued)

(b)

24. Ui B & B A o)

(@) Trade and other receivables and () MEWEZEZ - b ER
prepayments (Continued) HR X B TH A sk H (47)
Movement in the allowance for credit losses on trade E W & 5 B 3Kk 2 A5 & 5 18 13
receivables: 2 558

2020 2019
RO —E—NLFE
HK$’000 HK$000
T# L Tt
Balance at beginning of the year W) 4 iR 2,715 2,465
Impairment losses recognised B 52 22 W E s 18 2,053 561
Impairment losses reversed B 43 ] 2 (s 1H (45) 277)
Exchange adjustments [ 5, 3 3% 109 (34)
Balance at end of the year R 4,832 2,715
Details of impairment assessment of other receivables HCAth 7 i B 3R 2 W AE BT 4G RE
are set out in Note 30(b). 1% #HP Mt 5E30(b) ©
During the year ended 31st December, 2020, the real SR sE1sH B FR - B E
estate ownership certificates of the property project had F_EEL_HA=Ft—HILF
been obtained as disclosed in Note 18, therefore the FEN > Y3ETHE 2 A B RS
prepayment of HK$296,349,000 (2019: Nil) related B A& HAS 5 i B EE R R AR A
to the development cost was reclassified to properties B 2 FELAT 3K 296,349,000 % 7T
under development. (ZE—JUF | EE DB
ZERTYE -
Inventories b) 8
Details of inventories are as follows: FEFEWT:
2020 2019
ZRORAE —EF—ILE
HK$’000 HK$’000
T K T T
Finished goods Ol AT - 6
Packaging materials and accessories  ‘f % 4 Bk S L {4 4,212 4,040
4,212 4,046
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
&% 0 W B 3 R B
For the year ended 31st December, 2020 # £ —~F ~FF - H =+ —HIEF &

24. NET CURRENT ASSETS (Continued)

24. Ui B & B A o)

(0 Bank deposit and cash and bank balances © M|ITHEZVULEBRE K
AT &5
Bank deposit comprised the time deposit with an SRATAF AR 4 R B H = A
original maturity over three months. HLL bRy E A 3K -
Included in cash and bank balances are the following B & MBITE BN - HH
amounts denominated in a currency other than the HEREZrRERIIZ B
functional currency of the entities to which they relate: By
2020 2019
RO —E—NLF
HK$’000 HK$°000
T# L TH# T
United States Dollars (“USD”) eI 57,577 59,460
Renminbi (‘RMB”) NS 45,846 173,888
Details of impairment assessment of bank deposit and SRATAF 3R UL B B & I SR AT &
cash and bank balances are set out in Note 30(b). Bk 2 W AE B Al wE R O B
30(b) °
(d) Trade and other payables and accruals d) AR ~ H A EMN

Included in trade and other payables and accruals
are trade payables of HK$116,330,000 (2019:
HK$111,188,000) and their aged analysis based on

invoice date as at the end of the reporting period is as

Ak e TR B # A

e JE AT & 5y Bk~ At JE A
W K B T B B R N B 4 E A
2 5 B #X116,330,000 5 JC (—
E—JL4F 1 111,188,000 7C) >

follows: FoR RS R R 8 B2 H MY
ZHRE A R -

2020 2019

TR R ZEF =LA

HK$’000 HK$°000

T T T T

0 — 3 months Ex = A 8,533 8,292

4 — 6 months LA i 181 81

7 — 12 months &=+ @A 485 =

Over 1 year — 4k 107,131 102,815

116,330 111,188

Tomson Group Limited {5 B 4 [#] A FR /A 7




24. NET CURRENT ASSETS (Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B A W5 B e Y

For the year ended 31st December, 2020 # & —~F “FF - H =+ —HILF &

(d) Trade and other payables and accruals d)

(e

(Continued)

The credit period on purchases is 90 days. The Group
has financial risk management policies in place to
ensure that all payables are settled within the credit

timeframe.

Included in the other payables and accruals of
HK$268,926,000 (2019: HK$262,494,000) related to
the refundable deposit for golf course.

Other payables under non-current liabilities of
HK$12,541,000 (2019: HK$14,166,000) represent the

refundable rental deposits received.

24. Ui B & B A o)

WAk B 5 MR ik ~ LAt I AR
Bk S TR #H (40)

WEZEEHAIOR - AELH
L il 57 B 55 L B A B i 5K DA
T £ BT A ME A B 3K 35 8 15 &
WA -

Ay R AF B K B T R 2 R
1 4% 268,926,000 7€ (- F —
JU4E  262,494,000% JC) J5 A
B MRk G R RS -

FF Ui B B TH T 2 H A FE A
712,541,000 7€ (—F—JL
4 1 14,166,000% J6) T3 E U AT
B E %4

Lease liabilities e MEAME
2020 2019
e e £ —E -
HK$°000 HK$°000
T#x T #5 7T
Lease liabilities payable fEAT 2 B AR
Within one year — 4R 7,645 4,297
Within a period more than one year ~ —4F LI F{H AN H i
but not exceeding two years W 4F 2 1 7,536 =
Within a period more than two T 4F PA B AH R A
years but not exceeding five LA Z S ]
years 4,209 =
19,390 4,297

The weighted average incremental borrowing rates
applied to lease liabilities was 2.94% (2019: 2.52%) per

annum.

& & A HE R 22 i 73y
B AR A R 552,948 (—
T —JL4F 1 2.52)H) o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Bk 45 W 05 A Y ik

For the year ended 31st December, 2020 % 2 —.

24,

NET CURRENT ASSETS (Continued)

®)

Contract liabilities

Contract liabilities of HK$46,874,000, HK$277,192,000
and HK$291,080,000 represented the deposits received
from a sales of properties as at 31st December, 2020, 31st
December, 2019 and 1Ist January, 2019 respectively.

The Group receives 20% to 30% of the contract
value as deposits from customers when they signed
the sale and purchase agreement. The deposits will
be recognised as revenue when the customer obtains

control of the completed property.

During the year ended 3lst December, 2020, the
amount of HK$277,192,000 (2019: HK$284,205,000)
included in the contract liabilities balance at the

beginning of the year was recognised as revenue.

Tomson Group Limited {5 B 4 [#] A FR /A 7

SFET A= o HIRFEE

24. Ui B & B A o)

®)

a# AR

N EFEZFAEA=1T—H -
“E-NEFETA=ZT—HK
“E-NLHFE—H—H: G848
1B &4 B £546,874,0004 7T

277,192,000% 7T 5 291,080,000 %%
I > TR B Y EWIR ZHTE -

A4 R %P AT B E ek
IF [] 45 56 WA 40 B E 2 20%
FE30%EATT & - ZEFTE K
MEFEECR TYE 2 &
Tl R PR A SR 2y LA o

R EF _FFE T H =T
—HIEFE > BIEEEY S5
BUE 2 & B %0277,192,000%
JG (= & — JL4F 1 284,205,000
ot R AU A -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
&5 0 T B W R B
For the year ended 31st December, 2020 # & —~F “FF - H =+ —HILF &

25. SHARE CAPITAL 25. JiE A
Number of shares Amount
Jb 4 ¥ H 2%
2020 2019 2020 2019
S . = T = T
HK$’000 HK$000
T#xL Tk
Ordinary shares of HK$0.50 each BB HES0H T
i
Authorised e
— Balance as at Ist January and -R=A—Hk
31st December w+=H
=t+—Hz
ik i 3,000,000,000 3,000,000,000 1,500,000 1,500,000
Issued and fully paid vHEIERCHR
= Balance as at Ist January -R—-A—H2
s 1,971,025,125  2,081,837,125 985,512 1,040,918
— Shares repurchased and cancelled - B E K
(Note) GXiPd ) &is
(Kt 7t) - (110,812,000) - (55,4006)
— Balance as at 31st December -+ =H
=t+—HZ
RS 1,971,025,125  1,971,025,125 985,512 985,512
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Bk 45 W 05 A Y ik

For the year ended 31st December, 2020 # £ —~F ~FF - H =+ —HIEF &

25. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)
Note:

During the year ended 31st December, 2019, the Company

repurchased of its own shares through Stock Exchange as follows:

25. e A (41)
Wt

WE_ZT-NAFEF+_A=Z+—HILF
BE > AR o w7 3t Bk 58 T B ) K B B A

Branr
Number of
ordinary shares of Price per share Aggregate
HK$0.50 each Highest Lowest  consideration paid
1 B T8I {H.0.50 5 7T B BB AE 45

Month of repurchases L ATDERG 2 R = RAK A ARE S
HKS$ HKS$ HK$°000
o oS T # T
March 2019 “E-NHE=H 6,680,000 2.86 2.68 18,537
April 2019 —F-AFDNA 62,350,000 3.20 2.95 189,844
May 2019 —EF-NFRA 41,778,000 3.14 2.78 124,630
September 2019 —E-RAERA 4,000 1.93 1.93 8
110,812,000 333,019

The repurchased shares were cancelled and an amount equivalent
to the nominal value of these shares of HK$55,406,000 was
transferred from share capital to the capital redemption reserve.
The premium paid on the repurchased shares was charged against

the share premium.

26. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS

A share option scheme was adopted by the Company
pursuant to a resolution passed on Ist June, 2012 (the “2012
Scheme”). The 2012 Scheme was set up for the primary
purpose to provide incentives or rewards to selected persons
for their contribution to any member of the Group or any
entity in which any member of the Group holds any equity
interest (“Invested Entity”). Subject to earlier termination
by the Company in general meeting or by the Board of
Directors of the Company (the “Board”), the 2012 Scheme

Tomson Group Limited 355 4 B A PR/ 7

B B | By BT R8N > AH S R RE S
U3 T 22 42 55,406,000 15 76 H % 7S 4
T 5K R W ) it M o A T I ) % ) 3
3 2 U 8 © S B0y T 18 0 bR -

26. H% HE S F A2 5

AAFMRBR-F—"4HFNA—H
A3 119 TR R S PR A — JE B RE R
F(=F - Fat#)) o & —F
— AR A E B H AR SRR
EZNLEHALEEMRE LA
ol A 4R BT AT A B 2 /)5 A AT A i
REZAT TS ([T LB 2 B
FRAF: S B B8 B o A 2 ) Sl A
e B ROK & v 4R AR AR A H]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B A W5 B e Y

For the year ended 31st December, 2020 # & —~F “FF - H =+ —HILF &

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

shall be valid and effective until 31st May, 2022. After the
expiry of such valid period, no further options will be offered
or granted but in all other respects the provisions of the 2012

Scheme shall remain in full force and effect.

Under the 2012 Scheme, the Board may grant options to
(i) any employee or proposed employee (whether full time
or part time) of any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity, including any executive director of these companies;
or (ii) any non-executive director (including independent
non-executive director) of any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity; or (iii) any adviser, consultant or customer
of or supplier of goods or services to any member of the
Group or any Invested Entity; or (iv) any shareholder of any
member of the Group or any Invested Entity or any holder
of any securities issued by any member of the Group or any

Invested Entity.

The maximum number of shares of the Company in respect
of which options may be granted under the 2012 Scheme
is 141,452,380 shares, representing 10% of the Company’s
issued share capital at the date of adoption of the 2012
Scheme, save as otherwise approved by shareholders of the
Company. The total number of shares of the Company
issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options granted
and to be granted to each participant or grantee (including
exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month period
up to the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the shares of
the Company in issue at the date of grant (the “Individual
Limit”). Any further grant of options in excess of the
Individual Limit must be subject to shareholders’ approval
in general meeting with such participant and his or her

associates abstaining from voting.

26. & HE SZAF 232 5y (a)

HAR ((EHRH]) I R & I
FHE > FE-CEFEE AR E S
Zo_HFAA=ZT—HIE - AR
Y JiE T 1R S AT R R Tk
BB > M T — AR
6% B A 45T T 519 4 A A T R o

W =T ——4FFHE > EFJRA M
DU 4% s B RE - () A SE AT
o] )& B 2 B BAT o] BT 42K R 2
AT B 3 HE IR B OF 5 4 Bk 5% 3f
Hk) > AL FE I SE A R 2 AT ] FLAT
F 5 5 (i) A< 4R AT o] i B A 7 84T
o] iy £ & M 2 AT ol JE AT S
(f3 45 %8 57 FF AT & ) 5 B (i) A
42 [ A o] B B 2 B ST o] BT 4% #
W ATl sk s N > B 20& F )
2 5 0N T B A B L T O R B
ZHERET 5 B (iv) A5 S BT AT L B A
) B AT o] By 4% & A 2 AT o] IR
s A 4E [ A o] B B 2\ AT o]
O W BT AT T 75 I 2 AT ol £F
ZEDNE

BRIE AT AR AT R Z L > 1R
T — AR B AR 2 B R RE
1M 5 47 2 A 2N w) B Ay fx =i BR A 48
B £5141,452,380 % > BPA 2\ A& A R
M- FEEE ST
110% o B 44 2 B 3H 5K 2 N TE 8
F % i R B R AT+ A
N> S K I 2 BERRE (B 45
AT J2 R AT 35 T AT (0 RF
T 3% 47 K% 8% 47 2 AN R i 4y 48
B> R R R REE B 2 A
o E EEAT IR BH 2 1% (R A E
FR 1) o i) 2 B35 P A7 4% ) e
Al b Bz B R > B ZE AR R
R R EHEAE > A B2 HE K
HBE AN AT BB ERE
HE o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
&% 0 W B 3 R B
For the year ended 31st December, 2020 # £ —~F ~FF - H =+ —HIEF &

26. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

The acceptance of an offer of granting an option must be
made within 28 days from the date on which such offer is
made with a non-refundable payment of HK$1 from the
grantee to the Company by way of consideration for the
grant thereof. An option may be exercised at any time during
a period as the Board may determine which shall not be
more than 10 years commencing from the date of grant of
option. Save as determined by the Board and provided in the
offer of the relevant options, there is no minimum period
for which an option must be held before it can be exercised
under the 2012 Scheme. The subscription price per share
of the Company in respect of any option granted under the
2012 Scheme shall be such price as the Board in its absolute
discretion shall determine, save that such price will not be
less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares as
stated in the daily quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange
on the date of offer of the option, which must be a business
day; (ii) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets on the 5 business
days immediately preceding the date of offer of the option;

and (iii) the nominal value of the shares on the date of offer.

Under the 2012 Scheme, 4,200,000 shares of the Company
were issued upon exercise of share options in 2013. Under
the 2012 Scheme, no option was granted, exercised,
cancelled or lapsed in 2020. Therefore, the maximum
number of shares available for issue under the 2012 Scheme
as at 3lst December, 2020 was 137,252,380 representing
approximately 6.96% of the Company’s issued share capital
at the end of the reporting period. There are no outstanding
options granted under the 2012 Scheme during 2019 and
2020.

Tomson Group Limited {5 B 4 [#] A FR /A 7

26. & HE SZAF 232 5y (a)

R NHE R R A
REFT /N H R $ 2 A e i
A 1) A o\ AT LS oG > 1B B IR
W B R 2 A b B A S ] AR
(] o ff A R P 7E 25 2 R 7 O Y A
NS REAT Ml > MERZ A A 1S B2t
P RE FOHA R ST M T AR - AR BB
CE-TEFE S REER AR
TE TR 48 A B I I HE 4% IR BT B
FEHAN o N R W REAT 8 2 Rl
WA R o R F
— AT B R A AT A i R T
T o AN E] AR IR 3 0 R AR
HHREMES HEZREER
BIKRAUT =FZ REmE ()RR
SRR (WEASER)E
Wk 28 BT 4 H i 8 2% BT 51 i 3 2 Wi
8 5 (i) 25 3 45 SR 132 o 0 JE ME 1 3R iy
FAR 2 B TR A2 i 49 B B =
G LA 2 - Wi 8 5 R (i) 7 4
T W B RE B B T E -

R4 = F—— 45 > 4,200,000/
A8 ) B i O F — AR AT
JERERRIEBEAT - IR T — 4
FHE R FE, DT
W AT kBB RN I RE
H > T FFEF+H =1 —
Ho Ry T — st 8 7517
Z B 8B bR £5137,252,3801% >
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
&5 0 T B W R B
For the year ended 31st December, 2020 # £ ~F “FF+ - H =+ —HILFE

27. BORROWINGS 27. fi

2020 2019
R ORA —E—NLFE
HK$’000 HK$000
T# L Tt
Short-term borrowings, secured FER R R i 216,813 354,785

Current portion of long-term borrowings, B W5z B & 4
secured L 518,450 153,423
Total short-term borrowings 50 1A A Bk AL 735,263 508,208
Long-term borrowings, secured R A 284,495 785,302
1,019,758 1,293,510

Carrying amount repayable: B R 2 AR T E -

Within one year — N 735,263 508,208

More than one year, but not exceeding — AL EAB AN A A
two years 28,450 516,846

More than two years but not more than WA DL BB S AR A AR
five years 85,348 80,537
More than five years HER L 170,697 187,919
1,019,758 1,293,510

The borrowings were secured by assets of the Group as

disclosed in Note 36.

Borrowings were floating-rate

borrowings of

HK$1,019,758,000 (2019: HK$1,293,510,000) which carried
interest rates ranging from 1.53% to 5.39% (2019: 3.50% to

5.39%) per annum.

A 45 B AR A5 IR A 2 B T R

5367 4 % -

& 3K 5 77 B A 2R {H 3K1,019,758,000
o0 (2 F —JL4F : 1,293,510,000 5
JC) o AEF R A F1.53 8 5398 (-
F—JUF 350/ £5.39)H) o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Bk 45 W 05 A Y ik

For the year ended 31st December, 2020 # £ —~F ~FF - H =+ —HIEF &

28. DEFERRED TAXATION

28. & %t Bi JH

Accelerated Revaluation Exchange
tax of difference
depreciation  properties LAT recognition  Tax losses Others Total
n & £ 3 37
BEIE  WEMH WMEB  EEmEE BB L fb At
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
Tl T#x T# Tl T#x T# Tl
Balance as at Ist January, 2019 RoE—JLE
—H—HZ &t (136,958)  (2,055,339) 1,075,398 (47,925) = (64,455)  (1,229,279)
(Charge) credit to consolidated MAFEE AR R
statement of profit or loss (0380 4 [l
for the year (12,388) 109,148 (183,837) - 7,604 (879) (80,352)
Credit to other comprehensive expense 71 A 2 [ Ffl 3 - - - - - 4,425 4,425
Exchange adjustments E 365 % 2,590 37,037 (20,280) 906 = 1,442 21,695
Balance as at 31st December, 2019 AZE—NAE
+ZA=+—H
Z K8 (146,756)  (1,909,154) 871,281 (47,019) 7,604 (59467) (1,283,511)
(Charge) credit to consolidated WAEE G ARG E
statement of profit or loss (410380 45 )
for the year (12,936) 138,747 48,647 - (8,058) (14,575) 151,825
Credit to other comprehensive expense 71 A it 2 [ B 3 - - - - = 5,402 5,402
Exchange adjustments e 5, o % (8,768) (102,909) 48,486 (2,810) 454 (4,257) (69,804)
Balance as at 31st December, 2020 RZF R
+ZH=+—H
&% (168,460)  (1,873,316) 968,414 (49,829) - (72,897)  (1,196,088)

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement

of financial position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities

have been offset. The following is the analysis of the deferred

MRS & a M BRI RS >
THEEBLIA G & K B E TR -
AT % 0t B 5 ik i 98 A9 0 2

tax balances for financial reporting purposes: TH &5 R 0 A
2020 2019
SRR —F—JLF
HK$’000 HK$’000
T# 5t T T
Deferred tax assets IR A B JH K A 37,941 35,503
Deferred tax liabilities I 4 B IH B A5 (1,234,029) (1,319,014)
(1,196,088) (1,283,511)

Tomson Group Limited {5 B 4 [#] A FR /A 7




28.

29.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31st December, 2020 f# £ —.

DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

At 31st December, 2020, the Group had unused tax losses
of HK$467.43 million (2019: HK$542.39 million) available
for offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset has
been recognised in respect of such losses (2019: HK$30.42
million). No deferred tax assets have been recognised
in respect of the remaining HK$467.43 million (2019:
HK$511.97 million) due to the unpredictability of future
profit streams. Included in unrecognised tax losses are losses
of HK$43.14 million (2019: HK$89.70 million) which will
expire within five years. Other losses may be carried forward

indefinitely.

At 31st December, 2020,
distributable earnings of the Group’s Mainland China

the aggregate amount of

subsidiaries in respect of which the Group has not provided
for dividend withholding tax amounted to approximately
HK$5,018.45 million (2019: HK$4,980.81 million). No
liability has been recognised in respect of these amounts
because the Group is in a position to control the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable
that such differences will not reverse in the foreseeable

future.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to sharcholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balances. The Group’s

overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which
includes the borrowings disclosed in Note 27 and equity
actributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued

share capital, share premium, reserves and retained earnings.

The Directors of the Company review the capital structure
periodically by considering the cost of capital and the risks
associated with each class of capital. When necessary, the Group
will balance its overall capital structure through the payment
of dividends, new share issues and share buy-backs as well as

the issue of new debt or the repayment of existing debt.

28.

29.

55 o W85 R Wk
TEEF A= HIEEE

9 % B JH (47)

WoFEERE+T A=+ —H>
A 4 8 ] A B R 2k U R 2 R
) Bl TH 5 18 £5467,430,00045 JC
(& — JU4F 1 542,390,000%5 JC) °

WE 9 k% R (R — LR
30,420,000% JC) ffE 58 4E 4€ i JH &
(RS i S 7 7 I N S =
P > B R Bt 88 467,430,000% oG
(Z & —JL4F 1 511,970,000 %% 7C)
FRMEAE B E G A o A RR B TE M 18
B> 43,140,000% 70 (& — JL4F -
89,700,000 % JG) 2 &5 8 4% s L4 A
e T o L Ath g 48 AT 4 R M & 0 o

AR CEFEFTLZA=+T—H &
A5 [ i SR gt H A B A e B A R
AT 43 IR Z 1 8 8 £95,018,450,000
W T (ZF —JLAFE 1 4,980,810,000 45
Je) > VB I B dn SR B M o R
7 45 B A RE 7 £ ) 1R R S B
Z WRf M I 5% 55 2 B AT R A A AT B
A 8 ] o[RSl 4B st a% 4 KIE
MR -

A B o B

A KA B E W R AR A
EENZ EREY TR LS > W
7 LR T I RE 4 45 B 5 I OR
e SR e Kl o ¢%IZ%%%
s L A 4F R A RN A o

A AR 2 R TR AL AT B (O
AL £ 3 O B 52274 87)) e A 28
Giki $ 3PN EACOR SRS

FEREAS ~ ROy i A ~ fok 45 B £ B it
A1)
ARFEREMA EARLWE > H

Hh B 1 25 R R AS A B LA A S
Sl BT i Al 2 LB o A G AR
V51 2 IR A TS S, R AT R I % i
‘E% DA% 8547 47 R 5 B 72 B
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
&% 0 W B 3 R B
For the year ended 31st December, 2020 # £ —~F ~FF - H =+ —HIEF &

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

@

(b)

Categories of financial instruments

30. &/t T H
(@ AT HZHE

2020 2019
“RORE —E-NE
HK$°000 HK$°000
T#x T 7T
Financial assets W 85 ¥ e
Financial assets at FVTPL BAFHEFAERRZ
B 90,302 -
Financial assets at amortised cost RS A EZ
B 5,087,029 5,005,411
Equity instruments at FVTOCI Fi2 N S H FE A Ho A 4
W 4t 2 A TR 408,816 389,399
Financial liabilities W 55 £ A
At amortised cost i B 81 WL A 1,516,794 1,788,264

Financial risks management objectives and
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
equity instruments at FVTOCI, financial assets at
FVTPL, trade and other receivables, amounts due
from associates, pledged bank deposits, bank deposit,
cash and bank balances, trade and other payables and
borrowings. Details of these financial instruments are
disclosed in the respective notes. The risks associated
with these financial instruments and the policies
on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
Management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented in
a timely and effective manner. There has been no
significant change to the Group’s exposure to financial
risks or the manner in which it manages and measures
the risks.

Tomson Group Limited {5 B 4 [#] A FR /A 7

(b) W% JE K A BE H AR B BUSR

AEE TR T AR
2 2% S (B wF A H At 2 T i 4
Z A TR 1A FEFA
Btz MBEEE BWHES
MR A B At 8 AR~ g
PR RO AR A SR AT A K
WATAEA ~ Bl RRATHBR
T 15 B 5 Mz K % L A JE A AR
AU RS e iz F &M TR
ZwEE B B M RE A4 R
N 3CH# A R S e TR A B
Z B e fa] A1 R 5 J B
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B A W5 B e Y

For the year ended 31st December, 2020 # & —~F “FF - H =+ —HILF &

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risks management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risks
(i) Currency risk

Certain cash and bank balances of the Group
are denominated in USD and RMB which are
foreign currency other than functional currency
(i.e. HKD) of the relevant group entities (see
Note 24(c)). The Group currently does not have
a foreign currency hedging policy. However,
management monitors foreign exchange exposure
and will consider hedging significant foreign

currency exposure should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to currency

risk at the end of the reporting period.

No analysis is presented on HKD against USD as
HKD is pegged to USD and management of the
Company believes the foreign exchange exposure

is insignificant.

The following details the Group’s sensitivity to
a 5% (2019: 5%) appreciation/depreciation in
HKD against RMB.

. Profit for the year ended 31st December,
2020 would decrease/increase by
HK$2,292,000 (2019: HK$8,694,000).

30. &k T H )
(b) B %5 B 4 PR H BE S R

(#7
7 5
0 R

A AR T B KORAT
A BRI DA T e AR
(%% 51 W) T JF 25 A B 48
P B R 1 2 RE T (R
7o) B (B (5 B 5E24(c)) ©
A 45 [ F Al 2 B BT
iHESRU & N TR =
g g B Y Hh ME R B
Sl A A R B 2
v B THD 3 Y O A R

B o

R JEA T

5 2 WO E 23 A TG LA
T R R 2 B L B
Iy FE HETT B S

FH A 9 o B 52 JT 4 4
Bl 4 5 51 3 T S i 58
T HA N AE
PE JE AR 45 I 4 K S FE
Jel gz

S N
i N R FHE 2 (E 5%
(ZF =L - 5%) W
TR o

e AEE#BZE_ZF
—EFEFTZH=T
— H 1k FE 2 %
F A w2 B
2,292,000% 70 (—F
— JL F 8,694,000
wot) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
&% 0 W B 3 R B
For the year ended 31st December, 2020 # £ —~F ~FF - H =+ —HIEF &

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risks management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risks (Continued)

(ii) Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate
risk in relation to bank deposit, lease liabilities,
and pledged bank deposits (see Notes 24(c),
24(e) and 36 respectively for details). The Group
is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk
in relation to bank deposit, bank balances and
variable-rate borrowings (see Note 27 for details
of these borrowings). It is the Group’s policy to
keep its borrowings at variable-rate of interest so
as to minimise the fair value interest rate risk.
The Group currently does not have an interest
rate hedging policy. However, management
monitors interest rate exposure and will consider
hedging significant interest rate exposure should

the need arise.

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of the market
deposit rate and the Mainland China official
lending rate and Hong Kong Interbank Offered
Rate arising from the Group’s RMB borrowings
and HKD borrowings respectively.

Tomson Group Limited {5 B 4 [#] A FR /A 7

30. &k T H )
(b) B %5 B 4 PR H BE S R

i 355 B B (47
i) A B

A LE R SR AT AR - M
A E LI RAT A
M 78 & 52 A F 3 A &
JE B (45 2 RIS B aE
24(c) ~ 24(e) }e36) « A %
B 78 R SR AT A7 3K - R AT
5 B TR B AR (AR 1S
FRE R R R 27) T ZE K
2 B4 R R R B o A
EEZBORBERTR
& B LA 2 °F {8 F R
JE B o A 4K [E] H Al
| R R o SR
I i B ORI % L B
o A7 T R B R
T 0 R =R R B

7 4R W 2 B M R
B E 4R HP 7E T 35 A K
MERFERALEEAR
W A K S T 1 a0
e AR N &
A e A o BRAT [ 3E 47 B
R E & -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
&5 0 T B W R B
For the year ended 31st December, 2020 # £ ~F “FF+ - H =+ —HILFE

30. &k T H )

(b) Financial risks management objectives and (b) S5l b 48 B H AR S BUR

policies (Continued) (#)

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

i 355 B B (47

Market risks (Continued)

(i) A H B (A

(ii) Interest rate risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to interest
rates risks for pledged bank deposits, bank
balances and variable-rate borrowings. The
analysis is prepared on the balances at the end of
reporting period. 50 and 100 basis points (2019:
50 and 100 basis points) increase or decrease are
used respectively which represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in

interest rates.

In relation to the Group’s exposure to interest
rates risk on bank balances, if interest rates had
been 50 basis points (2019: 50 basis points)
higher/lower and all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s profit for the year ended
31st December, 2020 would increase/decrease by
HK$15,222,000 (2019: HK$15,819,000).

Furthermore, in relation to the Group’s
exposure to interest rates risk on its variable-
rate borrowings, if interest rates had been 100
basis points (2019: 100 basis points) higher/lower
and all other variables were held constant, the
Group’s profit for the year ended 31st December,
2020 would decrease/increase by HK$8,249,000
(2019: HK$10,538,000).

8 B JE 2 B

DA B R BE 43 A T AR
PR HE SR AT AR R~ RAT
ol SR I SN | P
JE B 27 B ME T B G o Ut
HHr H R S R 2
N R T
50 % 1004 B (= & — JL
450 % 1005 B () 1
s s D R A
B 1| % 5 ) n] BB PR 1Y &
AL F -

A B A 48 T R AT A
ik A 2R E B > A R %R B
T F B0 Bi(— E
— JL 4 1 505 BY) > i By
A RTS8 R R AEREAR
o IIAEHBE —F
CEREEFTZH=1T—H
1E4F B 2 s A 5% 38 m
W 115,222,000% Jo (=
£ — JL 1 15,819,000
JG) °

WAk B A K E
HH 77 B G ORI R R
R (T S o N N 3
1005 Bi (=& — L4 -
1005 ) » 1 By A H b
Al s R R AEREASSE > HI
AEBHBEE T %
£+ A=+—HILHF
JE 2l A A% 80 88
8,249,000 7T (= F —JL
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
&% 0 W B 3 R B
For the year ended 31st December, 2020 # £ —~F ~FF - H =+ —HIEF &

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risks management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risks (Continued)

(iii) Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk
through its equity instruments measured at
FVTPL and FVTOCI quoted in the Stock
Exchange. For equity instruments measured
at FVTPL quoted in the Stock Exchange,
management intends to manage this exposure
by maintaining a portfolio of investments
with different risk profiles. In addition, the
Group also invested in certain unquoted equity
instruments for long term strategic purposes
which had been designed as FVTOCI. The
Directors of the Company closely manage the
price risk by regularly reviewing the performance

of the unquoted equity instruments.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to equity price
risks at the end of reporting period for equity
instruments. Sensitivity analysis for unlisted
equity securities with fair value measurement
categorised within Level 3 is disclosed in Note

30(c).
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B A W5 B e Y

For the year ended 31st December, 2020 # & —~F “FF - H =+ —HILF &

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 30. &t TH )
(b) Financial risks management objectives and (b) A% R By P H AR B UK
policies (Continued) (%)
Market risks (Continued) i 35 B Bs (72)

(iii) Equity price risk (Continued)

(iii) JR 8 45 bl BR ()

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

If the prices of the respective equity instruments
had been 10% (2019: 10%) higher/lower:

. profit for the year ended 31st December,
2020 would increase/decrease by
HK$9,030,000 as a result of the changes
in fair value of financial assets at FVTPL;

and

. other comprehensive income would
increase/decrease by HK$15,085,000
(2019: HK$12,528,000) for the Group as a
result of the changes in fair value of listed

equity instruments at FVTOCIL

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis
is not representative of the Group’s equity price
risk as it only reflects the impact of equity price
changes to equity securities held at the year end

but not the exposure during the year.

8BS (A1)

i A B A T B 27 18 #%
T FE10% (—
JUAE £ 10%) » 8l

e ®WE_ZF_ZHFA
“H=+—HIE®F
JE 2t A i R 4% A
qzﬁn'l']\ilﬁﬁnz
i - /N |
5 58l 11 1 W D
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W 5 AF A 4% A P
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t 2 A TR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
&% 0 W B 3 R B
For the year ended 31st December, 2020 # £ —~F ~FF - H =+ —HIEF &

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risks management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in
the event of counterparties’ failure to perform their
obligations in relation to each class of recognised
financial assets in the carrying amount of those assets
as stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position. In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management will monitor the payment status of
customers and perform necessary procedures to ensure

that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts.

The credit risk on cash and bank balances, pledged
bank deposits and bank deposit with original maturity
over three months is limited because the counterparties
are banks with good reputation. The Group use 12m
ECL to perform the assessment under ECL model
individually. The impairment yet to be recognised are
insignificant. Other than concentration of credit risk
on cash and bank balances, pledged bank deposits
and bank deposit with original maturity over three
months which are deposited with several banks with
high credit ratings assigned by international credit-
rating agencies, the Group does not have any other

significant concentration of credit risk.

The Directors of the Company regularly reviewed
and assessed the gross amount of the Group’s trade
receivables of HK$4,884,000 (2019: HK$3,750,000)
for impairment under lifetime ECL using reasonable
and supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort in accordance with requirements
of HKFRS 9. Since the balances of the trade
receivables are insignificant, no further disclosure on

the impairment were disclosed.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2020 # & —~F “FF - H =+ —HILF &

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risks management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

(Continued)

For other receivables and amounts due from associates,
the Directors of the Company regularly reviewed
and assessed the credit quality of the counterparties.
The Group performs impairment assessment under
ECL model individually. In this regard, the Directors
of the Company consider that the credit risk on
other receivables and amounts due from associates is

insignificant.

The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment

comprises the following categories:

Internal credit

30. &k T H )

(b)

St 255 Dl B A B A M B

(#)

£i5 £ W B& B A WE AN (42)

39 HE A 1R i R K B g 7 4
R > AN mI S E WA hAm
wl A 5 A6 52 7 ¥ F 19 15 B H
R ALERBEHEMGERE
R SO A7 M8 7 3 (L A o
BT F > AR ERER S
Al 8 Wi R K B g 7 A\ R
KA A7 B B I A K

7 5 1 B0 A AR R L B AT AR
P Ad B A DL R A

Amounts due from
associates and

rating Description other receivables
BB A W Rk K
W fE EEwEHR Sl I il I W R
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default and does not 12m ECL
have any past-due amounts
% = B 2 5 7 W A L B AR - LI 48 AT o] Ja 3 R E 124 A 78 B {5 & s 15
Watch list Debtor usually settles after due date 12m ECL
ERZHE T UN Y9 Rl E X R 124 A A5 & s 18
Doubtful There have been significant increases in credit risk since Lifetime ECL
initial recognition through information developed (not credit-impaired)
internally or external resources
17 5 BB UCHE 58 DA 2 I N BB AR S ) Rk 2 1A 7 A A5 B s 1R
A1 EB B TR A5 B A B 1 (RAIEEEWAE)
Loss There is evidence indicating that the asset is Lifetime ECL
credit-impaired (credit-impaired)
&5 18 A E R G BUE S RE 2 W S B 1R
(BEAEfEEWE)
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in severe Amount is written off
financial difficulty and the Group has no realistic
prospect of recovery
i &4 A Es BN E B R 4 A EH

A 45 [ 7 408 T B AT i ] 2 f B
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Bk 45 W 05 A Y ik

For the year ended 31st December, 2020 # £ —~F ~FF - H =+ —HIEF &

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risks management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

(Continued)

The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of the
Group’s pledged bank deposits, bank deposit and cash
and bank balances, amounts due from associates and

other receivables, which are subject to ECL assessment:

30. &k T H )
(b) B %5 B 4 PR H BE S R

(#)

1 £ ML B8 B i AFL ¥ A (A1)

R A A B R %
i & i 18 A A6 2 K40 R A7 47
A AT AL KB KR
1745 B~ B R R R H
b B AR R 2 A BT L B

External Internal 12m or Gross carrying amount
credit rating credit rating lifetime ECL IR i 48 4
A 8 R 124 H 2 % 8 2020 2019
fii £ w1 % fii £ w1 % T 5 £% 0 41 SRR CFJUE
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T o
Financial assets at
amortised cost
0 Bk 6 B AR i BE 2
o B
Other receivables N/A Low risk 12m ECL 94,852 7,420
Al 0 R 3K AN 78 A% JL B 1248 H A5 2 s 1R
Watch list 12m ECL 110,726 116,778
WA 121 H 705 & e 18
Doubtful Lifetime ECL
(not credit-impaired) 14,578 16,655
17 5t 2 W S B 1R
(R AE A5 £ B E)
Loss Lifetime ECL
(credit-impaired) 3,579 4,599
i 15 2 1 TE S B 1R
(BEEfE B EE)
223,735 145,452
Amounts due from N/A Watch list 12m ECL
associates 10,781 10,788
/NN S 78 [:oF -} 12418 F 7 45 B e 18
Pledged bank deposits, BB+ or above N/A 12m ECL
bank deposit and
cash and bank balances 4,856,040 4,852,735
HEHERAT A7 K BB+ M | R A 12418 H 76 45 B e 18
SRAT A7 KA I
B4 K SRAT &5 R
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For the year ended 31st December, 2020 f# £ —.

B A W5 B e Y

“EFEEV+ A= —HIHEE

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 30. &t T H )

(b) Financial risks management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

The following tables show reconciliation of loss
allowances that has been recognised for other

receivables:

St 255 Dl B A B A M B
(%)

15 8 I B B WAL Al (4)

T 2% 51 7wl H Ath B i B KR
Fal TRk L e

Lifetime ECL

12m (not credit- Lifetime ECL
ECL impaired)  (credit-impaired) Total
k¢ RiE ] Z W EMH
1248 7 B 5 B0 £ B0k 1
HEER OREEREMA)  (TAE M) it
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$000
T T#x T#x T#x
As at Ist January, 2019 AZFE—JLFE—~H—H - - 3,670 3,670
Changes due to financial AZE—JLE—-H—H
instruments recognised as at TR 2 W B LR i Bz
Ist January, 2019: ST -
— Impairment losses recognised - DR Z Bl k1 - - 997 997
— Impairment losses reversed - B 2 W R - - @) 7)
— Exchange adjustments — [ 50, i % - - (61) (61)
As at 31st December, 2019 REZF—NF+ZH=+—H = = 4,599 4,599
Changes due to financial ﬁhzg LHE—H—H
instruments recognised as at MRz M TRARESZ
Ist January, 2020: )
— Impairment losses reversed - BRI 2 W(E kR = = (1,186) (1,186)
— Exchange adjustments R - - 166 166
As at 31st December, 2020 REFZFEFZHA=1—H = - 3,579 3,579

In accordance with HKFRS 9, the management has
assessed the impairment in relation to pledged bank
deposits, bank deposit, cash and bank balances, the
amounts due from associates and other receivables
which are categorised under 12m ECL and lifetime
ECL (not credit impaired). The impairment yet to be

recognised is insignificant.

R U8 CFr s I s i o E D) 56
95J*E=H"£EJEEE}ETEE#F§E TAF

T BE kAT
ﬁff‘ Hﬁ%‘ D7) R B HoAte
WEH&P& JORT il E - H o BT
ﬁa*ﬁﬂﬁlzﬁﬂﬁ/ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁfﬁ
B W AR Bl 1R CRAE (S
FEBRAE) o AR E R 2 R E
SEEEL R -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Bk 45 W 05 A Y ik

For the year ended 31st December, 2020 # £ —~F ~FF - H =+ —HIEF &

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risks management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Liquidity risks

The Group is not exposed to any significant liquidity

risk as it has sufficient funds to meet its financial

obligations when they fall due.

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents generated from operations which are
deemed adequate by the management to finance the
Group’s operations and to mitigate the effects of

fluctuations in cash flows. The Group will consider to

raise bank borrowings when it is necessary.

Tomson Group Limited 355 4 B A PR/ 7
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&5 0 T B W R B
For the year ended 31st December, 2020 # £ ~F “FF+ - H =+ —HILFE

30. &k T H )
(b) B %5 B 4 PR H BE S R

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risks management objectives and

policies (Continued)
Liquidity risks (Continued)
Liquidity risk table

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on
the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
based on the earliest date on which the Group can be
required to pay. The table includes both interest and
principal cash flows. To the extent that interest flows

are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived

(#)
i ) B 4 e B ()
o B B £ M bR 7

S R LV E e o)
BREZHBTaREMER -
b 3R T AR B8 A 4R IR AT RE
TR R B AR R H
W2 BB ARUORM BB &R
M E] o MR B AR R
Az B ERE - £ B
BT R AR T > R

B B WA 7Y B 25 3 2

from interest rate at the end of the reporting period.

Weighted
average  On demand or Total Total
effective less than 3 months 7 months Over  undiscounted carrying
interest rate 3 months to 6 months to 1 year 1 year cash flows amount
EEH B2k B )k t]A AWRA L
THAE  ZHAURK AMA -4 —~HY Lk i H AR I i 48 £
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000
T#x T#x T#x T T#x T#x
As at 31st December, REZ-%%
2020 TRt R
Non-derivative financial A & Jh £ £ 65
liabilities
Trade and other payables 1 B 5 R 3 &
F A0 f e 3 484,495 = = 12,541 497,036 497,036
Leases liablites HEAkK 2.940% 2,268 1560 4,296 12,036 20,160 19390
Borrowings — variable rate 18 3 - 176 3.523% 7,666 713,843 36,518 422,504 1,180,531 1,019,758
494,429 715,403 40,814 447,081 1,697,727 1,536,184
As at 31st December, ey K8
2019 tZAZF—H
Non-derivative financial A 2 o £ £4 £
liabilities
Trade and other payables  FEFT % 51 % 3k Rt
Fe Bk 480,588 = = 14,166 494,754 494754
Leases liabilires HEAR 2520% 2313 1548 7 = 4,59 4,297
Borrowings - variable rate {57 - 8 4.149% 13,667 507,077 30,836 953,908 1,505,488 1,293,510
496,578 508,625 31,558 968,074 2,004,835 1,792,561
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
&% 0 W B 3 R B
For the year ended 31st December, 2020 # £ —~F ~FF - H =+ —HIEF &

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risks management objectives and

(0

policies (Continued)
Liquidity risks (Continued)
Liquidity risk table (Continued)

The above undiscounted cash flows amounts could
change if there are movements in floating interest rates

subsequent to the reporting period.

Fair value measurements of financial
instruments

Some of the Group’s financial instruments are
measured at fair value at the end of each reporting
period on a recurring basis. The following table
gives information about how the fair values of these
financial instruments are determined (in particular, the

valuation techniques and inputs used).

Tomson Group Limited {5 B 4 [#] A FR /A 7

30. &k T H )

(b) % A kg A BE H AR B BUSR

©

(}éég
i ) B 4 e B ()
i ) B <& B 7 ()

{4 954 00 45 9 R ) 5 A
IBEYEEPS T E L
TR -

e TRZAPFHEGGR

A 4 B 4B A TR R A% #R
o R A% B B TR DL O
EwH & - T RE M A B
HEEZEEM TR AE
(R 1 2 T 58 PR ) A4 L 452 9l %
WA AR KR
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B A W5 B e Y

For the year ended 31st December, 2020 # & —~F “FF - H =+ —HILF &

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 30. &/l L H )

(0

Fair value measurements of financial

instruments (Continued)

Financial assets

Y 05 ¥

© AT RZ AV R

(#

Fair value
as at 31st December
BRE+_H=F+—HZ
A A
Fair value Valuation techniques
2020 2019  hierarchy and key inputs
A F A Al 4 8% 45 B
RORE T JUE EH EEE AR
HK$°000 HK$000
Tt T o

Financial assets at FVTPL

HAFEFA R G 2 BB EE

Equity instruments at FVTOCI

/N N T &
A TR

— Listed equity investment

bl A &

— Unlisted equity investments

BB ABE

90,302 — Level 1 Quoted prices in an

active market

B T i R T 8 2 R fE

150,849 125,282 Level 1 Quoted prices in an
active market

Bk TR TG T 3 2 R

257,967 264,117  Level 3 Market approach for
business enterprises
valuation with
reference to the
market capitalisation
of listed entities in
similar industries
with consideration
of marketability
discount of 25% and
adjustment of idle
cash

22 JAATER L
B 0 T e
25% T 355 i 748 1 4T
N ] B o R
15 %) v E AR SE AT
(B 89 77 35 07 %

#
[1]
=

499,118 389,399
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Bk 45 W 05 A Y ik

For the year ended 31st December, 2020 % 2 —.

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

SFET A= o HIRFEE

30. &k T H )

() Fair value measurements of financial

instruments (Continued)
Note:

A slight increase in the marketability discount used in
valuation would result in a significant decrease in the fair
value measurement of the private equity investments, and

vice versa.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had no Level

2 fair value measurements financial instruments.

There were no transfers into or out of Level 1 and Level 3

during the year.
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value
measurements

Unlisted equity investments measured at

FVTOCI

©

& TR Z A&
(4)

it
i G P 0 T 35 5 4 37 W B

B ¥ 2B BORL 53 I HE BB 9 A
EFFRBEEWRD > RZIRR -

T I o A 4 0 5
AT HEFEEMTA -

R WA — S5 =
o5 A B S AR
=R T R B R

# A VA A HE A 2w
W 2k 2 H_L 7 I A B B

HK$°000
T#x
As at 1st January, 2019 W_F—-NE—-H—H 287,739
Fair value loss recognised in other comprehensive i At 22 T U i W R 2
income ST {H 5 1R (18,197)
Effect of foreign exchange rate change A [ R 4 Bl > R 2 (5,425)
As at 31st December, 2019 R_F—-NET_A=+—H 264,117
Disposal of equity instruments at FVTOCI A i A 7 {H wEA A
R A 2 A TR 1,752)
Fair value loss recognised in other comprehensive G Al 2 T Ui i R
income YN S i (20,159)
Effect of foreign exchange rate change S T T 28 5% ) 2 5% 2% 15,761
As at 31st December, 2020 hNTE X

Except the financial assets that are measured at
fair value on a recurring basis, the Directors of the
Company consider that the carrying amounts of
financial assets and financial liabilities recognised in
the consolidated financial statements approximate their

fair values.

Tomson Group Limited {5 B 4 [#] A FR /A 7

EEF_H=1+—H 257,967

W i KR R 5 DLAY ST (B FE
BZMBEEIN > ALEE
FRA REAGMBEHREN
il w8 2 B 5 A B B
2 MR TH R BN P {E AR A



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
&5 0 T B W R B
For the year ended 31st December, 2020 # £ ~F “FF+ - H =+ —HILFE

31. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES 31. il B AR 2 AU IR
ARISING FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities TRFINAEEMBME T =L 2
arising from financing activities, including both cash and BEEY > BB & LB a8
non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing are those 5o MEFRHELZABIRRELE
from which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, G B R R B 4R B R A 4L
classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows LGAB e R RSB MERE

32

HELAZBHeEREZAM -

as cash flows from financing activities.

Interest payable

(included in

trade and
Lease other payables
Borrowings liabilities and accruals) Total
HE A AL Gl A
R A B 50
L b A S K e
fiisk  REAK B M) ot
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T# T# T# T#x
At Ist January, 2019 AN_E—LFE—A—H 1,428,355 12,468 10,473 1,451,296
Financing cash flows il BB (128,638) (8,569) (68,469) (205,676)
Interest expenses FE B X - 398 60,797 61,195
Effect of foreign exchange 4 M 5 5% By 2 5% %¢
rate changes (6,207) = = (6,207)
At 31st December, 2019 R=ZF—h4FE+ZA=+—H 1,293,510 4,297 2,801 1,300,608
Financing cash flows & B &= (292,197) (8,470) (41,869) (342,536)
New lease entered R HE = 23,051 = 23,051
Interest expenses ipsy i a = 512 40,204 40,716
Effect of foreign exchange 4 i 38 5% By 2 5% %%
rate changes 18,445 - - 18,445
At 3lst December, 2020 R-ZF_FHE+ A=+ —H 1,019,758 19,390 L136 1,040,284
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 32. KA A
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had no T RS SR - A B2 A 8 4F B 1
material contingent liabilities for both years. i R s R AR -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
&% 0 W B 3 R B
For the year ended 31st December, 2020 # £ —~F ~FF - H =+ —HIEF &

33. COMMITMENTS 33. & ifE
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the R AL E 2 EEORE
following material commitments: ik
(@ Commitments in relation to expenditure on @ AEHBETYERYIE K
properties under development and property, plant and 5 B % e St 2 R
equipment:
2020 2019
- Ja 08 —E—LEF
HK$°000 HK$°000
T#x T I
Properties under development TR E
— Contracted but not provided for — — T ] #{H A 4 #§ 224,499 122,585
Property, plant and equipment EDN NG L]
— Contracted but not provided for — — T ] #1{H A 4 #§ - 43,056
(b) Operating lease arrangements: (b REHELH:
The Group as lessor N L R (R DN
The properties held have committed tenants from the FrFe ) 2 2 R N Z K5
majority of one year up to the maximum of ten years MRKZH—F > EREHTF
(2019: ten years). (ZF—NF:T4F) -
Minimum lease payments receivable on leases are as TS 2 ik R A & a0
follows:
2020 2019
R R —E-NE
HK$°000 HK$°000
T#x T # I
— within one year - —4FR 131,096 124,389
— in the second year - A 45,989 38,093
— in the third year — P =4F 28,482 19,388
— in the fourth year — 0 4E 21,050 4,825
— in the fifth year — 5 LA 12,801 4,512
— after five years - WA 1% 15,276 12,232
254,694 203,439
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B A W5 B e Y

For the year ended 31st December, 2020 # & —~F “FF - H =+ —HILF &

34. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

35.

The Group participates in a Mandatory Provident Fund
(“MPE”) Scheme established under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance in
December 2000. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group, in funds under the
control of an independent trustee. Under the rules of the
MPF Scheme, the employer and the employees are obliged to

make contributions at the specified rate under the scheme.

The contributions arising from the MPF Scheme charged
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss represent
contributions paid and payable to the fund by the Group at

rates specified in the rules of the scheme.

The employees in the Mainland China are members of
respective state-managed defined contribution retirement
benefits schemes operated by the local governments.
The employers and the employees are obliged to make
contributions at a certain percentage of the payroll under
rules of the schemes. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to the retirement benefit schemes is to make the

specified contributions.

RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group had the following significant

transactions with related and connected parties:

(@ On 10th January, 2020, Shanghai Tomson Real
Estate Investment & Development Co., Ltd.,
(“Tomson Real Estate”) and Tomson Golf (Shanghai)
Limited, both being wholly owned subsidiaries of the
Company, entered into a conditional agreement (the
“Supplemental Framework Agreement”) with Shanghai
Pudong Land Holding (Group) Co. Ltd. (“SPLH”), a
substantial shareholder of Shanghai Tomson Pudong
Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. which is an
indirect 70% owned subsidiary of the Company.

34. 3B P g A st

35.

AR - EEEE+ AR
s G B P B 2 B ) 2
BT R A B (R ) 7T
B o S AT 2 7 B S
2 BB S AR - R TR
A - BB S
A2 AR 0 RO B A A
e 8 AT 03 9 B S £ 03K <

T AR A E AR 3R AN BR 22 0 R AR R
W E R 2 PR 8 B AL
BT W] 2 B R A R R A T

sz

Hh B A A B ) 45 A Ee R
e 2 1 5278 BB AR OB R AR A R
HZ W o ARIERFBAA - EE R
BEHARMEEH & TAME
T ER o A 4R B 3 R AR AR AR A w
B EA FAE S A B AT B K o

o 285 S B BN 22 5

AN > AR AR R B R O B 2 A L
AUTEKRRZS:

(@ MZF_FF—HTH- L
W oL b BR B A PR A A ([
B E ) XEGES®R(E
W AERAR M AARRNFZ
2B MHE A E) B E R+
HhoPE R (BB A BR A A (T
el AN AR A T70% B
HE 2 Bt JB8 2N B b i B BT R
R E B S A R A A 2
JBEBR) w1 S A W A W ek (TCHE 72
HE 28 15 5% )]) o
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For the year ended 31st December, 2020 # £ —~F ~FF - H =+ —HIEF &

35. RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(a) (Continued)

The principal terms of the Supplemental Framework

Agreement are summarised below:

(i)  there will be an adjustment of the land lots
entitled by Tomson Real Estate and land
lots with aggregate site area of approximately
328,687.50 square meters in Pudong New Area,
Shanghai, the Mainland China (the “Revised
Portions”) will be adjusted to Tomson Real
Estate. There is a slight decrease of 298.70
square meters in aggregate in site area as
compared with the original aggregate site area of

approximately 328,986.20 square meters.

(i) Certain land lots (including the land lot of
which prepayment of development costs had
been included in trade and other receivables and
prepayments) have been planned and varied as
land for public welfare and will be resumed by
the local government and will be developed by
the relevant government authorities and/or any
entity authorised by the government authorities
of the Mainland China. The said land lot will

not be delivered to Tomson Real Estate.

(iii) The total consideration payable for the land lots
remains unchanged at RMB2,951 million and
has already been paid.

During the year, the real estate ownership
certificates of the Revised Portions had been
obtained, therefore the deposit paid for land use
right and related prepayment included in trade
and other receivables and prepayments were

reclassified to properties under development (see

Notes 18 and 24(a)).

Tomson Group Limited {5 B 4 [#] A FR /A 7

(#4)

35. BAE T R BEN LR S

@ (#)

i FEME 2R k) 2 B AR
HE 7 R

()

(i)

(iii)

LrEE M EER 2+
A AE w7 i E
TN b, b ¥ T R SR T R 2
4 3th 39 1 R 49328,687.50
7 Kz (TR AE 5T
F M) A% TR BT B E
M EE o B A 3t MY R
#)328,986.20°F 5 K #H
L A 3 T AR S G
4298.70°F 75 K o

AT (B EFHARE
W B2 5 Bk~ L At E Wi
AR Bk L AT A 2 L FH
BB M A 2 ) B
KR 1 31046 ok A o i
ML > 5 R R AR
[ > 7 F A A b AR B
B R & B B A
i L JRF A48 A9 5 HE 2 AT T
HHETERE - B
Al KN S AT
L EFEHE -

5% 55 1 M 2 AT A
#) N %2,951,000,0007C
P FE RS 8500 B 88 AT o

HEN S BEFT A2 R
BEEE T KRG W
it > b fFRE © AT ET
& Rt AR E 5 R
A~ H A R i R B K TR
i 3 IH 2 AH B AT 3 E &
o EgERE (R
B 5E18 K 24(a)) ©
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For the year ended 31st December, 2020 # & —~F “FF - H =+ —HILF &

35. RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(@

(Continued)

The Company executed a guarantee (the “Guarantee”)
in favour of SPLH on 10th January, 2020 to guarantee
the tax indemnification obligation of Tomson Real
Estate under the Supplemental Framework Agreement
and undertake not to dispose of the shares of Tomson
Real Estate and not to transfer any rights in relation to

the Revised Portions.

The Supplemental Framework Agreement and the
Guarantee had been approved by the Board of
Directors of the Company. More details are set out
in the announcements of the Company dated 10th
January, 2020 and 24th January, 2020.

SPLH is a connected person of the Company of
the subsidiary level and the transaction therefore
constitutes a connected transaction for the Company

under the Listing Rules.

35. AT RBHEANLR S

(%)

(@)

(%)

AN A AR B 32 ak AR
FoFAE—A+ AR AR E
RO (KPR E BKDD) > A 55 L 55
FE A KRl TEAE 2R W ) TH T 2
B Kl 15 2 B 42 AR B > 0
N ke R NS )
B A 2 A A5 G A R AR AE RT
I b 22 AT AT HE A -

i 75 1 24 ) B AR 38 )
£ 1 A% 24 7] 9 R o o
% REN E IR BIRA 4 7 FLB
—E A FARCE
FaE—A o MAZ A -

b 7Y A 2 W 24 R
2 B A SR C T
HRLAID » 52 5 96 4 LA 4 7
— S -
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For the year ended 31st December, 2020 # £ —~F ~FF - H =+ —HIEF &

35. RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b) A substantial shareholder of Rivera (Holdings) Limited

(0

(“RHL”) together with her close family members
control the Company and that shareholder has
significant influence over RHL. Accordingly, RHL is
considered as a related party of the Company. The
Company agreed to share administrative resources
and office premises with RHL and its subsidiaries
in Hong Kong, and in return, RHL is required to
share an attributable portion of the administrative
expense of the Company on a cost basis. During the
year ended 31st December, 2020, the administrative
expense of the Company shared by RHL amounted
to HK$4,992,000 (2019: HK$5,232,000). As at 31st
December, 2020 and 2019, no outstanding balance
was owed by RHL.

The above transaction constitutes a continuing
connected transaction of the Company but is exempted
from disclosure and independent shareholders’ approval

requirements under the Listing Rules.

Compensation of key management personnel

35.

o 285 B B BN 22 5

(%)

(b)

(©

AN w1 I 4K A BR A F
(T VAT ) — A7 35 B 3R R Hor
HPE % 44 M R )1 e
A ERPEET - S I
WA B AN E 2 BT o AN
A [R] 2 A W B0 3T K
J& 2 w) A [R] AT B IR I
WENZE > T ] ZE 4% A A L e
o3& AN RN AT BUE R 2 EAG
W o ME B _FE+
A=+ —HILEE > I
RN T ZATEUE F 544,992,000
i o0 (Z % — JL4F £ 5,232,000
WIt) e R_F_FEEKR _F
—EFHA=+—H Il
A 8 KA A A B AT o] oK A 22
&5 BR o

VA B3 5 1 A 08 /) 22 5 A
B AL 5 o MR ST (B
TR BN 2 99 % K 48 57 e At
HEZHLE -

TEEHANBZME

The remuneration of Directors of the Company during FERARAFERZ FH M -
the year was as follows:

2020 2019
- Ja 08 —E—LEF
HK$°000 HK$°000
T#x T I
Short-term benefits 6 39 48 Al 29,702 25,786
Post-employment benefits #R AR AR F 36 36
29,738 25,822

Tomson Group Limited {5 B 4 [#] A FR /A 7
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st December, 2020 # & —~F “FF - H =+ —HILF &

RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

() Compensation of key management personnel

(Continued)

The
by the Board (or under the authorisation of the

remuneration of Directors is determined
shareholders of the Company as the case may be) by
reference to market terms, individual responsibilities
and performance, and recommendation from the

remuneration committee of the Board.

(d) The balances due from associates and a joint venture
at the end of the reporting period are set out in Notes

20 and 21 respectively.

The above transactions were conducted in accordance
with terms mutually agreed between the Group and

the respective related parties.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

Assets with the following carrying amounts have been
pledged to secure the Group’s borrowings of HK$1,019.76
million (2019: HK$1,293.51 million):

35.

36.

i 32 5 M B SN 22 5
(48)
(O EBAFHA R ZME ()

EHB I EER (SR
Ao AR 2 R B D
1M 5E ) 2 7% i1 35 3 B K7~ R
AN 2 A R &R UK
EERBETZFEMNEZREZ

(d) A K 2 I A A
k—REELELERE DA
=AM E 205221

bk g 5 AR 4 A 4
5 B 7 8 7 R R 2 M
i -

& A K4
T SR (B 2 6 7 L 0 4 A 4

B %0 £41,019,760,000 % 0 (= F —
JLAE 1 1,293,510,000% 7C) 1F & 4

2020 2019

ZRORAE —EF L

HK$’000 HK$°000

T T T

Properties held for sale rEEY %k 441,606 416,566
Pledged bank deposits (Note) KA R AT AF X (M 7E) 1,131,476 1,187,062
1,573,082 1,603,628

Note:

The pledged bank deposits pledged to secure the Group’s
borrowings carry interest at rates which range from 0.30% to
3.85% (2019: 0.30% to 3.85%) per annum. Deposits amounting to
HK$912,755,000 (2019: HK$559,284,000) have been pledged to
secure short-term borrowings and are therefore classified as current
assets. The balances of HK$218,721,000 (2019: HK$627,778,000)
have been pledged to secure long-term borrowings and are therefore

classified as non-current assets.

AF Z A DL £ A 42 13 1 6 22 K 4 4R
T 47 3> H AR F A 0308 £3.85
JE(ZF—JL4 : 0.30E £3.85/F) - 4
B 912,755,000 6 (= & — JL 4 :
559,284,000% JG) 2 17 3K F 1E ¥ 4} /&
W & 2 R [ BB BB B
% o 45 15218,721,0008 0 (- F — L
1 627,778,000%5 7G) Bk I {7 = 1 1
SVEIR I - DA 2 5 JE Wi B o
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For the year ended 31st December, 2020 # £ —~F ~FF - H =+ —HIEF &

37. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF

THE COMPANY

The Company’s Statement of Financial Position is as follows:

37. A vz W EE R

AAFZ BRI LT

2020 2019
—RoBE SR
HK$’000 HK$°000
T# 0 T# T
Non-Current Assets Ik i W A
Investments in subsidiaries K & N 7] 597,404 637,404
Amounts due from subsidiaries JRE Wiz B G 2 ) Kk T 1,724,735 2,027,300
Right-of-use asset fiff FHE & B 19,280 4,055
Club debenture ar fif & 2% 315 315
Other receivable H: At JE Wi BR 2K 2,361 =
2,344,095 2,669,074
Current Assets T O/RE g
Amounts due from subsidiaries JRE Wiz A J A ] 3k TE 435,705 333,138
Other receivables and prepayments At 8 i R K K
A AT FOIH 1,357 6,038
Cash and bank balances B4 TR 1T 45 ik 816,423 848,583
1,253,485 1,187,759
Current Liabilities b I RER
Amounts due to subsidiaries JE AT A & A W] 3k IE 533,304 523,590
Other payables and accruals At A B 3k &
e E A 14,159 16,101
Lease liability GRS Ki 7,313 4,055
554,776 543,746
Net Current Assets R ) 698,709 644,013
Total Assets Less Current Liabilities HOF 7 WO B A 3,042,804 3,313,087
Capital and Reserves ¥ A K fili i
Share capital J& A= 985,512 985,512
Share premium and reserves J& 103 i 1 K £ A5 2,045,547 2,327,575
Total Equity B 2 3,031,059 3,313,087
Non-current liability Ik R By £1 %
Lease liability GRS Ki 11,745 -
3,042,804 3,313,087

Tomson Group Limited {5 B 4 [#] A FR /A 7
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For the year ended 31st December, 2020 # & —~F “FF - H =+ —HILF &

38. COMPANY’S SHARE PREMIUM AND

38. A o ] i oyt 1 I Gk

RESERVES
Capital
Share redemption Contributed Retained
premium reserve surplus earnings Total
HA
By de Bl BEIGEAE O MOAES REEA b
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T#x T#x T# T T# T T#x
Balance at Ist January, 2019 o E—JUE
—H-HZ&# 1465518 16,608 327,645 1,210,683 3,020,454
Loss for the year A ¥ 5 1 - - - (59,741) (59,741)
Repurchase and cancellation of i [ S G 8 A
ordinary shares (333,019) 55,406 - = (277,613)
Transaction costs attributable to i [e] 5 7 A A 2
repurchase of ordinary shares 22 5 2 (740) = = = (740)
Dividend paid for 2018 WA = F— N
B B (354,785) - - - (354,785)
Balance at 31st December, 2019 i E—JUAE
+ZH=1+—H
Z 776,974 72,014 327,645 1,150,942 2,327,575
Loss for the year 4 5 = = - (65,215) (65,215)
Dividend paid for 2019 IRAT =T —JUAF B
B B (216,813) = - - (216,813
Balance at 31st December, 2020 A
+-A=+—H
Z & R 560,161 72,014 327,645 1,085,727 2,045,547
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For the year ended 31st December, 2020 # £ —~F ~FF - H =+ —HIEF &

39. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,
ASSOCIATES AND A JOINT VENTURE

Principal subsidiaries as at 31st December, 2020

Paid up

AR S

39. EBHE ]~ Bk o]
Ak

R-Z_EH+-H=1+—H
Z R & o)

Proportion of issued share

Place of issued ordinary  capital/voting power/effective
incorporation share capital/ interest in registered capital
Name of subsidiary and operation registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
BRUHELT  AAARHCHIRA/
0 K VBB A BB A
W8 4 v 4 B I % A TR AR I TEEH
Directly Indirectly
H# il £
% %
Charlesville Limited British Virgin Islands US$100 100 = Investment holding
KB AW B 100% 7t BEER
Classic Era Limited Hong Kong HKS$2 = 100 Investment holding
BHAERAH s 27T REHER
Cosmos Success Development Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Investment holding
BB E AR AR i 10,0007 7 /8 g1
Farskill Development Limited Hong Kong HKS$2 = 100 Investment holding
1t 2558 R A TR A s 27T REHER
Garland Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Investment holding
RHAHRAR & 10,0007 7t BRI
Grand Lion Limited Hong Kong HKS$2 = 100 Investment holding
R HRAT S 27T REER
Grand View Property Management Mainland China US5$500,000 = 100 Property management
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd. (Note (1))
FENEER (L) o B A 3 500,000 7 WEER
ARAT (W)
Humphreys Estate (Strawberry Houses) Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$200 = 100 Securities trading
i 2008 76 #rHE
Ideal Movement Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Property holding
BRFARAT (s 27T MERH
Island Sky Limited Hong Kong HKS$1 = 100 Inactive
BIARA i VST T

Tomson Group Limited {5 B 4 [#] A FR /A 7
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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ASSOCIATES AND A JOINT VENTURE

(Continued)

Principal subsidiaries as at 31st December, 2020

(Continued)

Paid up

AR S

For the year ended 31st December, 2020 # & —~F “FF - H =+ —HILF &

39. EEE A - BEAH
1 2 ()

R-FE_FHF+_H=1+—H
Z B FHE 2w )

Proportion of issued share

Place of issued ordinary  capital/voting powet/effective
incorporation share capital/ interest in registered capital
Name of subsidiary and operation registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
MREOHL  AMARHCEARA/
il W 3 A SR/ B Ak
W 2 4 1 BEMH ik A WA A PR FEEH
Directly Indirectly
% Il
% %
Jentime Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Providing property services
to the Group
REARA i 27T T S BB 43t 3 T
Kuto Limited Hong Kong HKS$2 = 100 Investment holding
618 A IR A A ik 27T 1884313
Maxi Charm Holdings Led. British Virgin Islands US$1 = 100 Investment holding
REEMARE €T HEE
MHK (Penha Hill) Limited British Virgin Islands US$30,000 - 70 Property development
TR AT B 30,000% 7 WERERE
Model Year Limited Hong Kong HK$2 = 100 Investment holding
HEARAR & 2T BE R
Multiclassic Investments Inc. British Virgin Islands US$40,200,000 - 100 Investment holding
EEAERRNE 40,200,000% T RHEER
Owina Limited Hong Kong HK$2 = 100 Investment holding
B AR i 28T BE R
Shanghai Cheng Qi Technology Limited Mainland China US5$15,000,000 = 100 Property development
(formerly known as Shanghai Tomson Outer
Gaogiao Development Co., Ltd.) (Note (1))
Eig R A RAH B 15,000,000 7. UES
(il 7 - 6 e O e 4R T A IR D)
(et )
Shanghai Tomson Huangpu Real Estate Mainland China US$18,500,000 = 100 Property development
Development Co., Ltd. (Note (1))
LEGEERFREREARAA M Z0) HEEL 18,500,000 7 ES Y
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
&% 0 W B 3 R B
For the year ended 31st December, 2020 # £ —~F ~FF - H =+ —HIEF &

39. LRME ¥ ~ B8 Al
k—REGREE

39. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,
ASSOCIATES AND A JOINT VENTURE
(Continued)

R_-Z_FHF+_H=1—H
Z F AW ()

Principal subsidiaries as at 31st December, 2020
(Continued)

Paid up Proportion of issued share
Place of issued ordinary  capital/voting power/effective
incorporation share capital/ interest in registered capital
Name of subsidiary and operation registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
BRCEE  AAIRACEORA/
0 % K BB A BRI A
W8 4 v 4 BEMYS ik it 6 A FERRHE 2R I TEEH
Directly Indirectly
H# il £
% %
Shanghai Tomson Investment Management Co. ~ Mainland China RMBI1,000,000 - 100 Investment holding
Limited (Note (3))
FEBEREERERARMAB) o B A 3 A 1,000,000 78 REER
Shanghai Tomson Plastic Company Limited Mainland China RMB1,000,000 = 100 In liquidation
(Note (1))
L A R E (M ) o 3 A R#1,000,00078 A
Shanghai Tomson Pudong Real Estate Mainland China US$46,000,000 - 70 Property development
Development Co., Ltd. (Note (2))
e B R S B A PR B 3 46,000,000 7t MR
(i)
Shanghai Tomson Real Estate Investment & Mainland China U$$100,000,000 = 100 Property development and
Development Co., Ltd. (Note (1)) investment holding
Ll B R A B A A R AR (i) o B 3 100,000,000% 72 EZ 133818 80 e
Toben Limited Hong Kong HKS$2 = 100 Investment
BHARAF o 2L BREEH
Tomson Administration Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 - Providing administrative
services to the Group
i 10,0007 7 o A B A 42 {2t 77 IR
Tomson (China) Limited Hong Kong HKS$2 = 100 Investment holding
P b (R ) A PR Fi 2B &
Tomson Corporate (L.P.) Limited Hong Kong HKS$2 100 = Trademark holding
P Rk 1) A IR AT oS 27T WA
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39. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
&5 0 T B W R B
For the year ended 31st December, 2020 # £ ~F “FF+ - H =+ —HILFE

ASSOCIATES AND A JOINT VENTURE

(Continued)

Principal subsidiaries as at 31st December, 2020

(Continued)

Paid up

AR S

39. EEE A - BEAH
1 2 ()

R-FE_FHF+_H=1+—H
Z B FHE 2w )

Proportion of issued share

Place of issued ordinary  capital/voting power/effective
incorporation share capital/ interest in registered capital
Name of subsidiary and operation registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
BRUBL  AARRHCEARA/
il R . B A BN/ A
W A 4 BERY ok It ¥ A O 4 B % TEEH
Directly Indirectly
Hi% Il %
% %
Tomson Corporation British Virgin Islands US$1 100 = Investment holding
EEEWABE 1T REH R
Tomson Empire View Co. Limited British Virgin Islands US$65,010,000 = 100 Investment holding
P L7 S PR A IR R REEMARE 65,010,000 7t BE R
Tomson Financial Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Investment holding
Yl i A BE AR AR i 10,0001 ¢ HEHER
Tomson Golf (Shanghai) Limited (Note (1)) Mainland China US$40,000,000 = 100 Golf course and club
operation, and property
development
o B TR () A R R (W () i 7 40,000,000% 7 ELES: VS LS £
DYEEX 1T
Tomson Group Garland (Shanghai) Mainland China US$16,000,000 = 100 Property development
Housing & Estate Ltd. (Note (1))
GEEEEML (LG ERERRAR o B 1 16,000,000 7t E S
(Witm)
Tomson Group (Nominees) Limited Hong Kong HKS$20 = 100 Providing nominee services
to the Group
HEEE (RN FRAR ik 20% 7T B R B A A IR
Tomson Group (Nominees) No. 2 Limited Hong Kong HK$20 = 100 Providing nominee services
to the Group
BEEBE (RN ARAR i 20T RA AR AR AR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Bk 45 W 05 A Y ik

For the year ended 31st December, 2020 # £ —~F ~FF - H =+ —HIEF &

39. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,
ASSOCIATES AND A JOINT VENTURE

(Continued)

Principal subsidiaries as at 31st December, 2020

(Continued)

Paid up

AR S

39. EEE A - BEAH
1 2 ()

R-FE_FHF+_H=1+—H
Z B FHE 2w )

Proportion of issued share

Place of issued ordinary  capital/voting power/effective
incorporation share capital/ interest in registered capital
Name of subsidiary and operation registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
MRUEST  AXARHCHEITRA
kW 3 B WA SR/ B Ak
Wi A 5 44 7R BEBY il it ¥ A 1 BT FEEH
Directly Indirectly
Hik I %
% %
Tomson Haijing Garden (Shanghai Pudong Mainland China US5$58,200,000 = 100 Property development
New Area) Co., Ltd. (Note (1))
Vo B SAC I (LI ) 4 R A ] o1 B A A 58,200,0003% JG NEER
(W)
Tomson International Entertainment Company ~ Hong Kong HK$2 = 100 Investment holding and
Limited investment in live
entertainment shows
business
0 e R R TR A R ik 2T SRR E B G R
CIEE S
Tomson International Entertainment Distribution  Hong Kong HKS$1 = 100 Film distribution
Limited
0 e R 6% R B 1 A TR ) ik 1% 70 PhERD
Tomson International Trade Building (Shanghai) ~ Mainland China US$16,800,000 = 100 Property development
Co., Ltd. (Note (4))
o o B KL (L) A R R (2 ) B A A 16,800,000 7 BT 3
Tomson Investment Limited Hong Kong HKS$3 100 = Investment holding
P BB A R &k 3T BE R
TPR Secretarial Services Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 — Providing secretarial services
to the Group and
investment holding
i 10,0004 7C PP TS A R &
BEHEK
Yamako Limited Hong Kong HKS$2 = 100 Investment holding
FRSCH B2 i 24 7T fEH R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
&5 0 T B W R B
For the year ended 31st December, 2020 # £ ~F “FF+ - H =+ —HILFE

39. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, 39. LRME ~w] ~ B A
ASSOCIATES AND A JOINT VENTURE E—XEG&RE®
(Continued)

Principal subsidiaries as at 31st December, 2020 R_E_FHE+T+_HA=1+—H
(Continued) 2 EEE A ()
Notes: For those subsidiaries established in the Mainland China, Vs R VN | YA S /AT D
their classification of establishment is as follows: H A
(1) limited liability company (solely funded by Taiwan, (1) ARELAHR (BHBEEAN
Hong Kong or Macau corporate) &)
(2) limited liability company (Taiwan, Hong Kong or Q) AMREALLN A (G |
Macau and domestic equity joint venture) BANEE)
(3) limited liability company solely funded by a foreign B) AEHESEENBES
invested enterprise BR & AT 2 7
(4) limited liability company (Taiwan, Hong Kong or @) BAREMLELF(RBRA
Macau equity joint venture) %)
There have been no material changes on the details of the TE 7 8 4F B A R SR A E Y SRS
principal subsidiaries for both years. 37 0 B R S E) o
None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding 25 BB 2 R 4E A B B4R AT ]
at the end of the year, or at any time during the year. IR A 40 AT 0] 04 R 5 38 2 15 S o
# o
Summarised financial information in respect of the B AR 4 A R JE 1 R AR
Group’s non-wholly owned subsidiary that has material 2 EEEWE AR Z BB E R
non-controlling interest is set out below. The summarised MESLEE H A0 o DA B %S & Rl 32
financial information below represents amounts before T s £ [E [ E 8 R 4 A o

intergroup eliminations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
&% 0 W B 3 R B
For the year ended 31st December, 2020 # £ —~F ~FF - H =+ —HIEF &

39. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, 39. REMEAFE ~ s AW

ASSOCIATES AND A JOINT VENTURE

(Continued)

Principal subsidiaries as at 31st December, 2020

(Continued)

MHK (Penha Hill) Limited

k—KGEEFEw

nN_ZF_FH+_HA=1+—H
Z B FHE 2w )

MHK (Penha Hill) Limited

2020 2019
—gmmE SR
HK$’000 HK$°000
T# 0 Tt
Properties held for sale &Yk 465,821 481,127
Other current assets oAt i B & A 58,309 110,586
Total current assets QB A 524,130 591,713
Non-current assets I B & = - -
Current liabilities B B A (23,545) (107,035)
Equity attributable to owner of the ENNESI R ETEE PN
Company JRE A HE £ 350,409 339,274
Non-controlling interest IE ¥ B B BRBE 2 150,176 145,404
Revenue A 33,840 106,258
Expenses B 3 (17,933) (70,432)
Profit for the year A I R 15,907 35,826
Profit and total comprehensive income JRE A Vi ] K 4 T
attributable to: Wi 45 AAEE QR
Owner of the Company ZNYNEIE ETESEEPN 11,135 25,078
Non-controlling interest IE FE B B BRBE 2 4,772 10,748
15,907 35,826

Tomson Group Limited {5 B 4 [#] A FR /A 7




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
&5 0 T B W R B
For the year ended 31st December, 2020 # & —~F “FF - H =+ —HILF &

39. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, 39. FEME A - BisAw
ASSOCIATES AND A JOINT VENTURE E—XEG&RE®
(Continued)

Principal subsidiaries as at 31st December, 2020 Ro-ZFFHE+"H=1—H
(Continued) 2 EEE A ()
MHK (Penha Hill) Limited (Continued) MHK (Penha Hill) Limited ()
2020 2019
RO —E—JUE
HK$’°000 HK$°000
T# L Tt
Net cash (outflows) inflows from operating %8 %5 215 Bl 4 (i )
activities i A (52,289) 55,129
Net cash inflows from investing activities &S B B4 AR 36 47

Net cash outflows from financing activities P& TS B 3 4 U A - -

Net cash (outflows) inflows for the year FEB S G WA

Gk (52,253) 55,176
The Directors are of the opinion that a complete list of the HEHEBLTERITAWE AR Z
particulars of all subsidiaries would be of excessive length BEREEIREARICRE > # b
and therefore the above list contains only the particulars of REIN B ZEFEHAEEEHNE
those subsidiaries which significantly affect the results or EHMREREEZHBARZE
assets of the Group. B
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
&% 0 W B 3 R B
For the year ended 31st December, 2020 # £ —~F ~FF - H =+ —HIEF &

39. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, 39. REMEAFE ~ s AW
ASSOCIATES AND A JOINT VENTURE E—XEG&RE®
(Continued)

Associates as at 31st December, 2020 W _E2EE+T_H=+—H
2 Wk 2 A )

Proportion of

Paid up issued issued share capital/
Place of ordinary share voting power/effective interest
Form of business incorporation capital/registered in registered capital
Name of associate structure and operation capital held by the Company Principal activities

MRTHST AMAHHCHELRA/
ik % 3 VB BA BHE A

BEATAR EHHEREA EBRY ol ¥ A BB 4 Te R FEEH
Directly Indirectly
H i ¥
% %
Abundance Tomson Incorporated Hong Kong HKS$2 = 50 Investment holding
Management Limited
WERGEHEENGRAT  gEfRL & 278 BEER
China Boom Enterprises Incorporated British Virgin US$1,280,000 - 44 Tnvestment holding
Limited Islands
BEMEARAH L A WA 1,280,000 JG g gidie
T &
Roma Era Limited Incorporated Hong Kong HK$3,935,206 - 26.7 Investment holding
ARARAF [ A R 3,935,206 7 BEH
Tomson Entertainment Incorporated Taiwan NTD25,000,000 = 45 TInvestment in film,
Co. Limited television and

entertainment

businesses
o B 4 1 0 A7 IR /A HRLI A 8% 25,000,000 & BETY  EHL
i 4 2E

Tomson Group Limited {5 B 4 [#] A FR /A 7



39. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,
ASSOCIATES AND A JOINT VENTURE

(Continued)

A joint venture as at 31st December, 2020

Form of business

Place of

incorporation

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

By 45 W 5 A Y

For the year ended 31st December, 2020 # & —~F “FF - H =+ —HILF &

39. EBHE ]~ Bk o]

Paid up

k—KGEEFEw

R-F_FHE+_H=1+—H
ZRXAEMEE

Proportion of effective

registered interest in registered capital

Name of joint venture structure and operation capital held by the Company Principal activities
ik % 3 e SR ARB R E R
RHEZLM EBHEBER KRB (i3 T WA 2 b R FEEH
Directly Indirectly
H% I 4%
% %
Shanghai Jinjiang Tomson Limited liability =~ Mainland China US$24,340,000 - 50 Hotel owning and
Hotel Co., Ltd. company operation
(Taiwan,
Hong Kong
or Macau
and domestic
equity joint
venture)
i3 RIRGIEDN AREERA  FEA 24,340,000% 7T BEH RS EWE
HIRAH (& it R 5
AR )

There have been no material changes on the details of the

principal associates and a joint venture for both years.

1 T 1B 4 FE 7 S A T R
£ W4 S 10 A I T KB -
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Investment Properties

Schedule of Principal Properties
FEWMER

As at 31st December, 2020 A - X X+ +—-H=+—H

PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP

AREM 2Tk
LSS EYE S

A iei A8 P B e A e 19

L EBEGE S KE
HEEIZFIBERE
BAKEOE - OEF 1M
ITHEEBELE

R EgH - 1AM EISE 2 B 6
Je 10518 37 H {3

C3-001 % 3 Bt

Tomson Group Limited 355 4 B A PR/ 7

36,0825 K 5
HEL{]
4,299°F 1 K

Term of Approximate Gross Group’s
Description Lot Number Lease Floor Area (Sq.m.) Use Interest
B 4 48 B v i
ik fi 1o B i % i CEHX) Mg AR 2 HE %
The whole of basement level 1, Lot 2-2-1 Medium term 19,521 for offices Commercial 100%
part of the level 1 and Lujiazui Finance and podium;
the whole of level 2 to 5 of and Trade Zone 7,594 for car parks
the commercial podium and
141 car parking spaces of
Tomson Commercial Building,
710 Dongfang Road,
Lujiazui Finance and Trade Zone,
Pudong New Area, Shanghai,
People’s Republic of China
3 N R SR AT T SRR (R PEX W& M ik MRy W 100%
e 2% W 2 A L 03 [ R B 71098 B 19,521F 7 K5
A YN 22-155 Hh B JA AL
WO S8 2T 7.594F 75 K
EEEAl A T EVEE 3] kX
S 141 36 5 i
The whole of level 1 to 3 of the Lot C3-001 Medium term 36,082 for offices Commercial 100%
commercial podium, Waigaoqgiao Free and podium;
4/E, 9/F. to 12/F., 17/F. to 25/F. Trade Zone 4,299 for car parks
and part of 7/F. to 8/F,, 12A/F.
and 14/F. of the office tower
and 105 car parking spaces of
Tomson International Trade Building,
No. 1 Jilong Road,
Waigaogiao Free Trade Zone,
Pudong New Area, Shanghai,
People’s Republic of China
e \ RSN B g T O R VISt S 4] MRy wE 100%



Schedule of Principal Properties

P EE

As at 31st December, 2020 A - X X+ +—_H=+—H

PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP ANAE B R 23 )
(Continued)
Investment Properties (Continued) w"aEMm¥Em
Term of Approximate Gross Group’s
Description Lot Number Lease Floor Area (Sq.m.) Use Interest
HEE 2% 480 B T i
it Wi Ho Bt % 5% AL CPikK) Mg AL 2 B 4
Whole of level 1 to 4 of Lot 1/1, 244 Street, Medium term 11,903 for offices Commercial 100%
the commercial podium and Weifangxincunjiedao, and podium;
136 car parking spaces of Lujiazui Finance and 5,054 for car parks
Tomson Business Centre, Trade Zone

158, 188, 228 Zhangyang Road,
Lujiazui Finance and Trade Zone,
Pudong New Area, Shanghai,
People’s Republic of China

E YN R A S BXESHESE T8 Moy ¥ 100%
BEREEME SR YA 11,903F 75 K 5
545 #4158 188 ~ 2285 U N R X
I LN 5,054 J7 K
EEEIEE Y
136 11 B3

Tower B, Tomson Riviera, Lot No. 1, 17 Jiefang, Long-term 35,423 Residential 100%
28 Huayuanshigiao Road, Meiyuan Road

Lujiazui Finance and Trade Zone,
Pudong New Area, Shanghai,
People’s Republic of China

E YN e R B BRERE7EYIERE R 35423 HE 100%
TC 18 A A Bk 28 5%
B b — B
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Schedule of Principal Properties
HEPER

As at 31st December, 2020 A - X X+ +_—H=+—H

PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP
(Continued)

Investment Properties (Continued)

A S MR 2 W 3 o)

& Wk )

Term of Approximate Gross Group’s
Description Lot Number Lease Floor Area (Sq.m.) Use Interest
B 4 48 B v i
i B o Bt i i CEHX) Mg AR 2 HE %
Tomson Waigaogiao Industrial Park, Lot 1/1 & 1/4, Medium term 108,561  Industrial 100%
No. 381, 383, 1 Futexi Road, 19 Jiefang,
27 & 29 Huashen Road, Waigaogiao
358 Futebei Road, Free Trade Zone
Waigaogiao Free Trade Zone,
Pudong New Area, Shanghai,
People’s Republic of China
GE YNGR B 18 TR L i 108,561 L% 100%
b 3 R [ &S
SR R B R4k
ARG 3194381 3835 -
3 F §27 % 2958
AR L 358 5
GEARELERR
72/F., Shanghai World Financial Center, Lot 1, 20 Jiefang, Medium term 3,222 Commercial 100%
No. 100, Century Avenue, Meiyuan Xincun
Pudong New Area, Shanghai, Jiedao, Pudong
People’s Republic of China New Area
i INSE i A i 3020 ¥ 100%
¥ T R [ A B
it 4K 481009 08 1E
FBRRE DO

Tomson Group Limited 355 4 B A PR/ 7



PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP

Schedule of Principal Properties

P EE

As at 31st December, 2020 A - X X+ +—_H=+—H

A S MR 2 W 3 o)

(Continued)
Golf Course & R ER
Term of Approximate Gross Group’s
Description Lease Floor Area (Sq.m.) Use Interest
188 40 48 i ¢
i ik (P75 %) i 3 3 P FH
Tomson Shanghai Pudong Golf Club Medium term Club houses, driving range and An 18-hole golf 100%
No. 1 Long Dong Avenue, maintenance room of 12,652 course
Pudong New Area, Shanghai, with site area of 952,154
People’s Republic of China
PEARLTR il G FR IR R 181 7 A K 100%
8 I R BT I R K A 1R 55 2,650 ok 97
Hh EEHRA WAk E (4 08 1 7 2952, 154°F- 7 K )
Properties under development I
Approximate
Gross Gross
Site Area Floor Area Group's  Stage of Estimated Date of
Description Lot Number (Sq.m.) (Sq.m) Use Interest  Completion Completion
o A0 4 0 v
of £ W E &% (CEIi%) CEIK) g AEMZHER R B fiskZ e M
A piece of land near the junction of ~ A2-04, A2-02 328,687 230,081 Residential 100%  The land will be Phase I -
Loushan Road and A221 developed in phases. 2022
and Long Dong Avenue, Jingiao-Zhangjiang Superstructure for
Jingiao-Zhangjiang District, District Phase I and original
Pudong New Area, Shanghai, Phase VIII was topped
People’s Republic of China out in December 2014
fi PEARSEAR &t - RILE 318,687 230081 HE 100% % W6 4 73 B Eilg
LR R A04HL RE-F-MR i S
& -RILE A2-02B3E R AT’
BIL BB RERKE AV “R-METZA
KRR HRHTE
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Schedule of Principal Properties
HEPER

As at 31st December, 2020 A - X X+ +_—H=+—H

PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP

A S MR 2 W 3 o)

(Continued)
Properties held for sale ER-E/ES
Term of Approximate Gross Group’s
Description Lot Number Lease Floor Area (Sq.m.) Use Interest
B 0 A0 i i
G Ho Bt 5 ik CEX) g ¥ Y P4
Part of 6/F. to 7/F., 10/E, 11/, 17/F. of Lot 2-2-1 Medium term 3,039 Commercial 100%
Tomson Commercial Building, Lujiazui Finance
710 Dongfang Road, and Trade Zone
Lujiazui Finance and Trade Zone,
Pudong New Area, Shanghai,
People’s Republic of China
mEARLME EHHERAE HEXEERESR th i 3,039 ¥ 100%
FLET -V 2215 B
FO7 B 7109
R amMAE
6E7HE 108 BRI Z B
Part of 5/F., 6/F., 15/F., and 16/F. of Lot C3-001 Medium term 4,035 Commercial 100%
Tomson International Trade Building, Waigaogiao Free
No. 1 Jilong Road, Trade Zone
Waigaogiao Free Trade Zone,
Pudong New Area, Shanghai,
People’s Republic of China
PEARLME EETHATE  SARBREE i 4,035 Mk 100%
A e 48 P e 15 C3-001%% 1 B
o L P S K
SHE -~ ot 15HE otz i iy
Part of Towers A & C & Tower D, Lot No. 1 Long-term 29,514 Residential 100%
Tomson Riviera, 17 Jiefang,
28 Huayuanshigiao Road, Meiyuan Road
Lujiazui Finance and Trade Zone,
Pudong New Area, Shanghai,
People’s Republic of China
PHEANRLEME LA R ER R’ 29514 fEE 100%
F L EX SVl 1785 57 198 4 Bt
TC 1 A 1 B 28 %
Yo E—

AR CRRZ 43 LA & DR
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Schedule of Principal Properties

P EE

As at 31st December, 2020 A - X X+ +—_H=+—H

PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP AELEEEFHZWE @
(Continued)
Properties held for sale (Continued) wEmMED
Term of Approximate Gross Group’s
Description Lot Number Lease Floor Area (Sq.m.) Use Interest
B 0 A0 i i
G Ho Bt 5 ik CEX) g ¥ Y P4
Phases VI, VIII & IX Lot 23/10 Long-term 1,741  Residential 100%
Tomson Golf Villas, Tong Le Cun,
1 Long Dong Avenue, Hua Mu Xiang
Pudong New Area, Shanghai,
People’s Republic of China
PHEANREME AR E AR =2 1741 fi%E 100%
HE RO 19 7] 4 K4 23/10 2.
P e 7 K B
BN BAREIM
Part of Block B & F and Lot 47/1, Long-term 363 for residential; Residential 100%
131 car parking spaces of Zhangbang Cun, 3,955 for car parks
Tomson Golf Garden, Jingiaozhen,
1 Long Dong Avenue, Pudong New Area
(2 of North District),
Pudong New Area, Shanghai,
People’s Republic of China
MEARLMBE LETHEAE  WREE =2 tE #% 100%
UK 158 (d2l%) SR ERER 363°F I K 5
Y B R AL 4Nk EER
BREREZE M 3,955°F ik
DA R 13148 A B i
Part of One Penha Hill, No. 22356 folio 100, Long-term 9,398 for residential; Residential 70%
Travessa do Colégio No. 7 Book B16K 3,328 for car parks
e Calcada do Bom Parto No. 2,
Macao Special Administrative Region,
People’s Republic of China
AR LM BIGK {# Mt =2 tE fE 70%
P45 3 AT B H1008 9,398 K
SRR TR TR AR 25 oF M 4R 9% 22356 THHA
HEEBLERZHH 3,328 F )k

Annual Report 2020 4 & 4F 43

200



201

Schedule of Principal Properties
ERR/E .2

As at 31st December, 2020 A - X X+ +_—H=+—H

PROPERTIES HELD BY A JOINT VENTURE

—FXAERERAZIVE

Properties held for investment FEREZWE
Term of Approximate Gross Group’s
Description Lot Number Lease Floor Area (Sq.m.) Use Interest
B 4 48 B v i
ik fi o Bt i i CEHX) Mg AR 2 HE %
InterContinental Shanghai Lot 12 Zhangyang Medium term 52,622 Hotel 50%
Pudong hotel, Road Commercial
777 Zhangyang Road, District
Lujiazui Finance and Trade Zone,
Pudong New Area, Shanghai,
People’s Republic of China
PEARIME LEHHATE  REG% i 52,622 WJE 50%
BREEHE SR T8 2 I 1255 4 Bt
b bk 7775%

inc3apinc iRl YN

Tomson Group Limited {5 B 4 [#] A FR /A 7



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

PROFIT OR LOSS

Five-Year Financial Summary

ﬂ@ﬂi%ﬁ%

o 1H £ R

Year Ended 31st December
BRET-H=1+—HIL4E

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
RN ZF - ZF-N\F ZEZUFE ZEIFE
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
T ¥ o T ¥ T T T

Gross proceeds from AL 78 g A AR
operations 4,174,196 2,167,464 684,829 938,057 936,303
Profit before taxation W B AT s 1,759,651 2,400,505 700,722 391,398 406,761
Taxation FiJH (751,984)  (1,055,840)  (313,244) (160,855)  (226,639)
Profit for the year 4 Vi A 1,007,667 1,344,665 387,478 230,543 180,122

Attributable to: JEEAG R

Owners of the Company A/ Al #f 48 7% A A 876,256 1,255,486 407,681 172,513 174,993
Non-controlling interests IE 12 1B I R RE 4 131,411 89,179 (20,203) 58,030 5,129
1,007,667 1,344,665 387,478 230,543 180,122
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Five-Year Financial Summary

T 4¢ Vit 5 e 2

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

0 B IR DL &

At 31st December

#+=HA=+—H
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
TE-NE B —LE ZF-NE ZZ-NE ZFFR4E
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
T 0 R T T T T T#xL
Fixed assets B E 7,543,584 8,287,655 8,176,159 8,048,908 8,569,841
Lease premium for land 1 fH & 2 33,368 30,410 22,753 - -
Film distribution rights 5 )7 8 17 HE 4,942 4,942 150 - -
Goodwill Gk 33,288 33,288 33,288 33,288 33,288
Deferred tax assets IR S ol JH 364,538 281,729 273,982 35,503 37,941
Interests in associates and 7 ¥ ’KE'K'/A CIDSES ,%f
joint ventures 32 HE % 188,265 201,581 196,809 195,575 189,965
Other receivable H At 1 i B K = = = = 2,361
Available-for-sale At RS
investments 184,115 189,228 - - -
Club debentures & & 7 - - 515 515 515
Equity instruments at fair %0 P EFEA H At
value through other BT £ 2
comprehensive income A TR = = 436,031 389,399 408,816
Pledged bank deposits R RAT A 3K 163,960 941,848 798,733 627,778 218,721
Net current assets T 6,777,861 5,473,479 5,792,887 5,359,329 5,297,736
15,293,921 15,444,160 15,731,307 14,690,295 14,759,184
Equity attributable to NUNEGIE R =R PPN
owners of the Company JE AL HE 25 11,399,052 13,224,128 13,027,057 12,259,425 12,888,642
Non-controlling interests I F= B B o RE 45 993,146 296,461 256,316 312,388 327,732
Total equity HHE £ 12,392,198 13,520,589 13,283,373 12,571,813 13,216,374
Other payables and Al 8 A B 5 %
lease liabilities HEARE = = - 14,166 24,286
Borrowings fi &K 1,607,876 345,780 944,673 785,302 284,495
Deferred tax liabilities 1 4 o TH 4 1K 1,293,847 1,577,791 1,503,261 1,319,014 1,234,029
15,293,921 15,444,160 15,731,307 14,690,295 14,759,184
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